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1MP-SEC Form 20-IS (DIS)
Dec, 31, 2020

IMPERIAL RESOURCES INCORPORATED

Unit 202 Villa Building, No. 78 Jupiter Street, Bel-Air
Makati City, Metro Manila

NOTICE OF THE REGULAR ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETING

DEAR STOCKHOLDERS:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the regular annual meeting of the stockholders of
IMPERIAL RESOURCES INCORPORATED will be held at Events Space, Unit 206 2+ Floor,
Villa Building, No. 78 Jupiter Street, Bel-Air, Makati City, Metro Manila, on Thursday,
July 08, 2021, at 10:00 o’clock in the morning through Google Zoom Platform, with
Meeting ID: 879 9928 3914; Passcode: 831718. The order of business of said meeting shall
be as follows:

1. Secretary’s Proof of Notice of Meeting
2. Declaration of Quorum

3. Approval of the Minutes of Regular Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on
e September 03, 2020

4. Annual Report as at December 31, 2020
4.1. President’s Report to Equity Holders
4.2. Financial Statements

5. Approval by the stockholders of the Annual Report and the Financial Statements of
the corporation

6. Election of seven (7) members of the board of directors inclusive of two (2)
independent directors

7. Ratification of the appointment of Villaruz, Villaruz & Co. CPA’s as Independent

Auditor of Imperial Resources Incorporated, with business address at Unit 3, Level
. 9 Galleria Corporate Center, E. Delos Santos Avenue (EDSA) corner Ortigas
- Avenue, Quezon City, Metro Manila

8. Ratification of all acts, contracts, resolutions and proceedings of the Board of
Directors and Corporate Officers acting within the scope of their designated
authority from September 03, 2020 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting until the
present, July 08, 2021

9. Other Matters

10. Adjournment

The Board of Directors has fixed May 24, 2021 as the record date for the de .:/. i
of stockholders who are entitled to notice and to vote at the meeting. /On the othe
stock and transfer book of the Company will be closed at 5:00 o’clock'in the afté

Corporgte Secretary
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IMPERIAL RESOURCES INCORPORATED
Unit 202 Villa Building, No. 78 Jupiter Street, Bel-Air,
Makati City, Metro Manila
Telephone Nos. 8721-6994 & 8570-6972

CERTIFICATION

This to certify that none of the members of the board of directors or officers of
Imperial Resources Incorporated are connected or employed in the government.

This certification is issued in connection with the preparation of SEC FORM
20-1S, a requirement by the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Makati City, Metro Manila
June 15, 2021

JEZ E B. CAPELLAN

e Secretary



IMP-8EC Form 20HS (DIS)
Dec. 31, 2020

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-18

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
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1. Check the appropriate box: eaRKE fﬁ?-ﬁ EATMIN DEPT

......

[ ]Preliminary Information Statement } U
[ X ] Definitive Information Statement

2. Name of Registrant as specified in its charter IMPERIAL RESOURCES INCORPORATED

3. Metro Manila, Philippines
Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization

4. SEC Identification Number 39243

5. BIR Tax Identification Code 000-463-670-000

6. Unit 202 Villa Building, No. 78 Jupiter Street, Bel-Air, Makati City
Metro Manila 1200
Address of principal office Postal Code

7. Registrant’s telephone number, including area code (632)8721-6994/8570-6972

8. July 08, 2021, 10:00 A.M. at Events Space, Unit 206 2™ Floor, Villa Building
No. 78 Jupiter Street, Bel-Air, Makati City, Metro Manila, through Google Zoom
M Platform, with Meeting ID: 879 9928 3914; Passcode: 831718 .
Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

9. Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or
given to security holders June 17, 2021

10. There is no proxy solicitation

11. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Section 4 and
8 of the RSA (information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable
only to corporate Registrants):

Number of Shares of Common Stock
Title of Each Class Outstanding and Amount of Debt Qutstanding

Common Stock — P1.00 par value 652,500,000 Six Hundred

Fifty-Two Million Five Hundred
Thousand Common Shares
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There are no debt securities
Amount of Debt Outstanding - Php55,200,696
12. Are any or all of Registrant’s securities listed on a Stock Exchange?
Yes[x] No
If yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed therein:

Philippine Stock Exchange Common Stock Shares

The original Twenty Million (20,000,000) shares of stock consisting of Fourteen Million
(14,000,000) Common Class “A” shares and Six Million (6,000,000} Common Class “B” shares are
listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange. After the approval of the change in par value from Php5.00
to Php1.00 and declassification of Class “A” and Class “B” into Common Stock by the Securities and
Exchange Commission on February 10, 2017, the Common Stock shares listed with Philippine Stock
Exchange has become 100,000,000 shares.

PART I
INFORMATION REQUIRED IN INFORMATION STATEMENT
A. GENERAL INFORMATION

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEND
US A PROXY.

However, if you wish to send a representative or proxy, please send your proxy letter not later than
June 30, 2021 for recording and validation to the office of the Corporate Secretary of Imperial Resources
Incorporated at Unit 202 Villa Building, No.78 Jupiter Street, Bel-Air, Makati City, Metro Manila 1200
or at No. 82-J 4™ Street, Mariana, New Manila, Quezon City, Metro Manila 1112,

N
ITEM 1. DATE/TIME/PLACE OF THE ANNUAL MEETING OF THE SECURITY HOLDERS

a. The stockholders’ meeting shall be held on:
Date : July 08,2021 (Thursday)
Time : 10:00o’clock
Place : Events Space, Unit 206 2" Floor, Villa Building
No. 78 Jupiter Street, Bel-Air, Makati City
Mode : Through Google Zoom Platform, with
Meeting ID: 879 9928 3914; Passcode: 831718

Complete mailing address of the business office of the Registrant:
No. 82-J 4'* Street, Mariana, New Manila, Quezon City, Metro Manila

b. The approximate date on which the information statement is first to be sent and given to the
security holders shall be June 17, 2021.
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ITEM 2. DISSENTER’S RIGHT OF APPRAISAL
Any stockholder of the corporation shall have the right to dissent and demand payment of the fair
value of his/her shares in any of the following instance(s):

1. In case of any amendment to the articles of incorporation which has the effect of changing or
restricting the rights of any stockholder or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences in
any respect superior to those of outstanding shares of any class, or of extending or shortening
the term of corporate existence;

2. In case of sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposition of all or

substantially all of the corporate property and assets as provided in the Revised Corporation
Code; and

3. In case of merger or consolidation; and,
4. TIn case of investment of corporate funds for any purpose other than the primary purpose of
the corporation.
There are no corporate actions that will be taken up at the regular annual stockholders’ meeting for
which a stockholder may exercise the right of appraisal.

How Right is Exercised - The appraisal right may be exercised by any stockholder who shall have
voted against the proposed corporate action by making a written demand on the corporation within thirty
(30) days after the date on which the vote was taken for the payment of the fair value of his/her shares;
Provided, that failure to make the demand within such period shall be deemed a waiver of the appraisal
right. If the proposed corporate action is implemented or effected, the corporation shall pay to such
stockholder, upon surrender of the certificate(s) of stock representing his/her shares, the fair value thereof
as of the day prior to the date on which the vote was taken, excluding any appreciation or depreciation in
anticipation of such corporate action.

If within a period of sixty (60) days from the date the corporate action was approved by the
stockholders, the withdrawing stockholder and the corporation cannot agree on the fair value of the
shares, it shall be determined and appraised by three (3) disinterested persons, one of whom shall be
named by the stockholder, another by the corporation and the third by the two (2} thus chosen. The
findings of the majority of the appraisers shall be final, and their award shall be paid by the corporation
within thirty (30) days after such award is made: Provided, that no payment shall be made to any
dissenting stockholder unless the corporation has unrestricted retained earnings in its books to cover such

payment; and Provided, further, That upon payment by the corporation of the agreed or awarded price,
the stockholder shall forthwith transfer his/her shares to the corporation.

Effect of Demand and Termination of Right - From the time of demand for payment of the fair
value of the dissenting stockholder's shares until either the abandonment of the corporate action involved
or the purchase of the said shares by the corporation, all rights accruing to such shares, including voting
and dividend rights shall immediately be restored the stockholder.

When Right to Payment Ceases — The demand for payment pursuant to the exercise of appraisal
right may not be withdrawn unless the corporation consents thereto. If, however, such demand for
payment is withdrawn with the consent of the corporation, or if the proposed corporate action is
abandoned or rescinded by the corporation or disapproved by the Commission where such approval is
necessary, or if the Commission where such stockholder is not entitled to the appraisal right, then the
right of the stockholder to be paid the fair value of the shares shall cease, the status of the stockholder

shall be restored, and all dividend distributions which would have accrued on the shares shall be paid to
the stockholder.

Who Bears Costs of Appraisal - The costs and expenses of appraisal are borne by the
corporation, unless the fair value ascertained by appraisers is approximately the same as the price which
the corporation may have offered to pay the stockholder, in which case said expenses shall be borne by
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the dissenting stockholder. In the case of an action to recover such fair value, all costs and expenses shall

be assessed against the corporation, unless the refusal of the stockholder or receive payment was
unjustified.

Notation on Certificates; Rights of Transferee - Within ten (10) days after demanding payment
for shares held, a dissenting stockholder shall submit the certificates of stock representing the shares to
the corporation for notation that such shares are dissenting shares. Failure to do so shall, at the option of
the corporation, terminate the appraisal right. If shares represented by the certificates bearing such
notation are transferred, and the certificates consequently cancelled, the rights of the transferor as a
dissenting stockholder shall cease and the transferee shall have all the rights of a regular stockholder; and
all dividend distributicns which would have accrued on such shares shall be paid to the transferee.

ITEM3. INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS IN OR OPPOSITION TO MATTERS TO BE
ACTED UPON

(a) There is no substantial interest, direct or indirect, by security holders or otherwise, of each of
the following persons in any manner to be acted upon, other than the election to office.

1. Each person who has been a director or officer of the Registrant at any time since the

beginning of the last fiscal year;

Each nominee for election as director of the Registrant;

Each associate of any of the foregoing persons.

W

(b) No director has informed the Registrant in writing that he/she intends to oppose any action to
be taken at the meeting. No indication of any action intended to be opposed.

“B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION
ITEM 4. VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS THEREOF

(a) As of Record Date, the Company had the following outstanding shares of common

stocks:
Class No. of Shares Voting Shares
Voting Share Qutstanding Entitled to Vote
Title Number of Shares Outstanding No. of Shares
of Computed at P1.00 Par value per % Entitled to Vote
Each Class Share
Common 650,496,724 99.69% One vote per share
Filipino
Common 2,003,276 0.31% One vote per share
Foreign
Total 652,500,000 100%

(b) All stockholders as of May 24, 2021 record date are entitled to notice, and shall have the
right to nominate any director who possesses all of the qualifications and none of the
disqualifications set forth in the Revised Corporation Code.

At all elections of directors, there must be present, either in person or through a

1

Ly
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representative authorized to act by written proxy, the owners of majority of the outstanding
capital stock entitled to vote. The Registrant, it being vested with public interest, allows
stockholders to vote through remote communication or in absentia.

The stockholder who participates through remote communication or in absentia, is
deemed present for purposes of quorum.

The election must be by ballot if requested by any voting stockholder. Otherwise, it
is by the raising of hands to determine the number of shares who voted in favor of the
resolution or the matter submitted for approval.

Stockholders entitled to vote shall have the right to vote the number of shares of stock
standing in their own name in the stock and transfer book of the corporation as at record
date. The said stockholder may: (a) vote such number of shares for as many persons as there
are directors to be elected; (b) cumulate said shares and give one (1) candidate as many votes
as the number of directors to be elected multiplied by the number of shares owned; or (c)
distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as may be seen
fit: Provided, That the total number of votes cast shall not exceed the number of shares
owned by the stockholders as shown in the books of the corporation multiplied by the whole
number of directors to be elected (The total number of votes that may be cast by a
stockholder of the Company is computed as follows: No. of shares held on record as of
record date x 7 Directors. In all other cases, each share of stock is entitled to one
vote: Provided, however, That no delinquent stock shall be voted. Nominees for directors
receiving the highest number of votes shall be declared elected.

If no election is held, or the owners of majority of the outstanding capital stock
entitled to vote are not present in person, by proxy, or through remote communication or not
voting in absentia at the meeting, such meeting may be adjourned.

The non-holding of elections and the reasons therefor shall be reported to the
Commission within thirty (30) days from the date of the scheduled election. The report shall
specify a new date for the election, which shall not be later than sixty (60) days from the
scheduled date.

If no new date has been designated, or if the rescheduled election is likewise not
held, the Commission, upon petition of a stockholder on a showing of good cause therefor,
may issue an order, directing the petitioning stockholder to call a meeting of the corporation
by giving proper notice required by the Revised Corporation Code or the by-laws. The
petitioning stockholder shall preside thereat until at least a majority of the stockholders
present have chosen from among themselves, a presiding officer.

The directors or trustees elected shall perform their duties as prescribed by law, rules
of good corporate governance, and by-laws of the corporation.

Right to Vote of Secured Creditors and Administrators - In case a stockholder grants security

interest in his/her shares, the stockholder-grantor shall have the right to attend and vote at meetings of
stockholders, unless the secured creditor is expressly given by the stockholder-grantor such right in
writing which is recorded in the appropriate corporate books.

Executors, administrators, receivers, and other legal representatives duly appointed by the court

may attend and vote on behalf of the stockholders without need of any written proxy.

Voting in case of joint ownership of stock. - In case of shares of stock owned jointly by two or
more persons, in order to vote the same, the consent of all the co-owners shall be necessary, unless there
is a written proxy signed by all the co-owners, authorizing one or some of them or any other person to
vote such share or shares; Provided, that when the shares are owned in an “and/or” capacity by the holder
thereof, any one of the joint owners can vote said shares or appoint a proxy therefore.
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Voting right for treasury shares - Treasury shares shall have no voting right as long as such
stock remains in Treasury.

VOTING PROCEDURE

Tn all matters to be submitted to voting which are: (1) amendment of the By-Laws; and, (2)
increasing the authorized capital stock, the counting of the majority or two thirds (2/3) of the outstanding
capital stock shall be by raising of hands to determine the number of shares who vote in favor of the
resolution for the amendment or increase of the authorized capital stock and other incidents.

a. Vote required for amended By-Laws, the owners of at least a majority of the outstanding
capital stock.

b. Vote required for the increase of authorized capital stock, the approval by a majority vote of
the Board of Directors and two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock.

c. There is no information or fact gained that a change in control of the Registrant has occurred
since the beginning of its last fiscal year. Hence, no details can be stated.

In the election of the seven (7) directors of the board, the seven (7) nominees (including the two (2)
nominees for independent directors) who garner the highest votes shall each be deemed duly elected to

. the Board. Voting by ballot shall be supervised by a Voting Committee. However, voting by ballot shall
“~"be dispensed with upon assent of seventy per cent (70%) of the outstanding shares.

C - Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners and Management

(1) SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN RECORD AND BENEFICIAL OWNERS
OF MORE THAN 5% OF ANY CLASS AS OF May 31, 2021

(1) Title of Class | (2)Name, Address of Record | (3) Name of Beneficial | (4) Citizenship| (5) No. of {6) Percent
Owner and Relationship Owaner and Relationship Shares of
‘With Issuer With Record Owner Held Ownership
Commaon Stock PCD Nomines, Coprration Various Fifipino and 33228565 5.093%
: G/F MSE Building Stoddhaldears Others
. 6767 Ayalz Ave, Makati City Clients Natianalities
(Stockholder)
Comman Stock Oliverio G. Laperal, Sr.* Owner Filipino 546,552,070 83.763%
31 Pili Avenue, Forbes Park
Makati City
(Stockholder)

* Insofar as the affected shares, Desiderio L. Laperal is the designated executor of the testate state of
Oliverio G. Laperal, Sr., who died on August 26, 2018, now pending probate proceedings, entitled — In
Re: Petition for the Probate of the Will of Oliverio G. Laperal, Sr., Desiderio Christopher L. Laperal,

petitioner, docketed as R-MKT-18-04136-SP, Regional Trial Court, Branch 148, Makati City, Metro
Manila.
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Dec. 31, 2020
(2) SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AS OF MAY 31, 2021
(1) Title of {2) Name of (3) Amount and Nature (4) Citizenship | (5) Percent
Class Beneficial Owner Of Beneficial O wnership of Class
(a) Directors and Executive Officers:
Common Stock Desiderio L. Laperal 1,670,000 shares (voting power Filipino 0.256%
and investment return  (Record)
Common Stock Oliverio L. Laperal, Jr. 1,580,000 shares (voting power Filipino 0.242%
and investment return (Record)
Common Stock Jesus Vicente B. Capellan {160,000 shares (voting power Filipino 0.025%
' and investment return (Record)
Common Stock Vilma B. Villanueva 200,000 shares (voting power Filipino ¥ 0.031%
and investment return (Record)
Common Stock Horacio M. Pascual* 175,000 Shares (voting power Filipino 0.027%
and investment return (Record)
Common Stock Nelson G, Mendoza 10,000 shares (voting power Filipino 0.002%
and investment return (Record)
Common Stock Genelita G. Manandic 1,000 shares (voting power Filipino 0.000%
and investment returmn (Record)
~ (b) Directors and Executive Officers as a group unnamed
Common Stock 3,796,000 shares (voting power Filipino 0.582%
and investment returm (Record)

(2) VOTING TRUST HOLDERS OF 5% OR MORE
There are no holders of voting trust agreements or of similar import.
(3) CHANGES IN CONTROL

Management continues to receive inquiries regarding possible strategic alliance or merger.
However, as of the date of this report there is no formal arrangement firmed up with any person or group
of persons or entities which may result in a change in control of the Registrant and, therefore, there is no
maierial information to disclose.

N
D - Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

During the years 2019 and 2020, the Company records show that there were consummated
transactions to which the Registrant was a party, in which a director, executive officer or stockholder
owns ten per cent (10%) or more of the total outstanding shares. The following are material transactions:

1.Parent Company and Subsidiary

The Parent Company has made advances for the working capital of its subsidiary
Philippine Cyber College Corp. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 the Parent Company’s
advances amounted to Php24,175,934.25 and Php23,961,934.25, respectively. In accordance with
the consolidation process, these have been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.
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2.Key Management Personnel

Amount of | Outstanding

; Terms and conditions
transactions balance g

Year 2020 There are no termination,

other long-term benefits and
share-based payments
granted to our key
management personnel for
the year ended December 31,
2020.

Short-term employee benefits [P 1,645,902 [P -

Post-employment benefits 2,603,859 -

Year 2019 There are no termination,
other long-term benefits and
Shori-term employee benefits {P 1,732,721 |P - |share-based payments
granted to our key
management personnel for
Post-employment benefits 2,572,770 - |the year ended December 31,
2019.

Year 2018 There are no termination,
other long-term benefits and
Short-term employee benefits P 1,657,652 |P - |share-based payments
granted to our key
management personnel for
Post-employment benefits 2,522,890 - |the year ended December 31,
2018.

There were no termination, post-employment, other long-term benefits and share-based
payments granted to the key management personnel for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019
and 2018. The President/Chief Executive Officer and Vice-President/Treasurer (Chief Financial
Officer) do not receive salary from the Company but receive a monthly allowance of P5,000.00
starting last April 2019. The members of the Board of Directors receive only per diem of P10,000 per
attendance in the regular and special meeting of the Board. The Per Diem for the attendance in the
annual stockholders’ meeting followed by the organizational meeting or special stockholders meeting
is Fifteen Thousand Pesos (P15,000.00). The total amount of per diem paid in 2020, 2019 and 2018
were P245,000, P225,000 and P195,000, respectively.

3. Parent Company and Imperial Development Corporation — Common Director
The Parent Company is renting its office from Imperial Development Corporation. Mr. Desiderio
L. Laperal, a director and officer of the company, owns more than ten percent (10%) of the total
outstanding shares of Imperial Development Corporation and is at the same time a director and
officer of said corpotation. The total rental expense for 2020 was P635,712. The contract of
lease expired on December 31, 2020 and was renewed for another year at a monthly rate of
P52,976 for another year. Starting from January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021.

This is further discussed under Note 19 pages 50-51 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements as of December 31, 2020.

4.Parent Company and its Subsidiary and Filipinas Golf and Country Club, Inc. -
Common Director
The Parent Company and its subsidiary (PCC) have a sub-lease agreement (sub-lessee) with
Filipinas Golf and Country Club, Inc. as a sub-lessor for an office space of about ten (10) square
meters, more or less, each located at the second floor of an office building for a period of one year
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starting January 1, 2015. The monthly rental paid by each sub-lessee is P6,179.04 from January,
2015 to May, 2015 and P6,434,40 from June, 2015 to December, 2015. The sub-lease agreement
was renewed for another year. From January, 2016 to May, 2016 the monthly rental paid by each
sub-lease was P6,434.40 and from June, 2016 to December, 2016 it was P6,689.76. The sub-lease
agreement was extended until the expiration of the lease contract of Filipinas Golf and Country
Club, Inc. with the building owner which was May 31, 2017, FGCC renewed its contract with the
building owner for another one (1) year starting June 1, 2017 until May 31, 2018. Subsequently,
IRI & PCC renewed its sub-lease contract with FGCC for another one (1) year starting from June
1, 2017 to May 31, 2018 with a monthly rental of P6,689.76 each which covered water bills,
parking and association dues. Again IRI & PCC renewed its sub-lease contract with FGCC at
P7,013.89 per month which covered water bills, parking and association dues for another one (1)
year starting from June 1, 2018 until May 31, 2019 after FGCC renewed its lease contract with the
building owner also for another one (1) year from starting June 1, 2018 until May 31, 2019. On
April 6, 2019, FGCCI renewed its lease contract with the building owner for a term of three (3)
years commencing on April 1, 2019 until March 31, 2022.

IRI and PCC renewed the sub-lease contract with FGCCI for another year starting from
April 1, 2019 until March 31, 2020 at P8,915.91 each per month which covered also water bills,
parking and association dues. Again, IRI and PCC renewed its sub-lease contract with Filipinas
Golf & Country Club, Inc. for another year. The rent from April 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020 is
P8,465.41 and from January 1, 2021 to March 31, 2021 is P9,325.43 including water bills,
parking and association dues in both period.

5.Parent Company and its Officer / Major Stockholder

The Parent Company has advances payable as of December 31, 2020 to its major stockholder,
Mr. Oliverio G. Laperal, Sr., amounting to P12,861,214.83. This payable does not have any
repayment date. It is also non-interest bearing.

6.Parent Company and LTC Real Estate Corporation

In March 2016, LTC Real Estate Corp., an investor, and the Parent Entity entered into a
memorandum of agreement for the prospective subscription on the shares of stocks of the
Parent Entity at the prevailing par value in the amount of Ten Million Pesos (P10,000,000) on
or before December 31, 2016. The said amount shall be considered as a deposit and shall be
subject to disposition, transfer and recovery by the investor. The Parent Entity bas the
corresponding duty to hold in trust and/or return the said amount on demand.

As at December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017, the Parent Entity failed to meet all the required
conditions to consider the deposit as deposit for future stock subscription. Thus, the deposit
was recognized as advances from shareholders under non-current liabilities in the statements of
financial position. The total amount of advances made by LTC Real Estate Corp. are
P37,522,625, P31,001,625 and P21,737,625 for the years 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The Parent Entity and its subsidiary do not have any guarantees of securities of other issuing
entities by the issuer for which the statement is filed as at December 31, 2020.

These certain relationships and related transactions are further discussed in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements under Note 19 pages 48-49.
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The Parent Entity and its subsidiary do not have any relationship with any parties that fall
outside of the definition “Related Parties” under SFAS/IAS No. 24.

In the past three years there has been no complaint, dispute or claim against related party
transactions that the Company is aware of.

Insider Trading/Material Inside Information

The Company is not aware of any case of insider trading involving any of its directors and
officers in the past three years. All its directors, officers and employees are aware that the
Company does not allow the unlawful use of material inside information by any of them.

ITEM S. Directors and Executive Officers of the Company

(1) a-c.
Name Age | Citizenship Position
Atty. HORACIO M. PASCUAL 88 Fil. Chairman of the Board
President/Chief Executive
" Mr. QLIVERIO L. LAPERAL, JR. 71 Fil. Officer/

Member, Board of Director
Vice President/Chief Financial

Mr. DESIDERIO L. LAPERAL 66 Fil. Officer /Treasurer/
Member, Board of Director
Assistant
. Treasurer /Comptroller/
Ms. VILMA B. VILLANUEVA 78 Fil. Chief Accounting Officer/
Member, Board of Directors
Atty. JESUS VICENTE B. CAPELLAN . Corporate Secretary/
54 Fil. .
Member, Board of Directors
Ms. GENELITA G. MANANDIC* . .
(Independent Director) 53 Fil, Member, Board of Directors
Mr. ANTHONY NELSON G. MENDOZA* . Member, Board of Directors
. 78 Fil.
(Independent Director)

~ **Ap “Independent Director” refers to a person other than an officer or employee of the corporation, its parent or
... subsidiaries, or any other individnal having any relationship with the corporation, who would interfere with the
exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director.

The Company has its Nomination Committee which recommends to the board those qualified to
be elected as members of the board of directors. Since there was no regular annual stockholders’ meeting
as scheduled on September 03, 2020, due to the absence of quorum, those members of the board at that
time retained their positions on hold-over basis.

There has been no director who has resigned nor declined to stand for re-election to the board of
directors since the last three (3) years because of a disagreement with the Company on matters relating to
its operations, policies and practices.

Pursuant to SEC Memorandum Circular No. 4, Series of 2017, which promotes and reinforces
board independence and consistent with recognized best business practices, the following are the
amended rules on the term limit of independent directors:

1.A company’s independent director shall serve for a maximum curoulative term of nine (9)

years;

2.After which, the independent director shail be perpetually barred from re-election as such in the

same Company, but may continue to qualify as a non-independent director;
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3. In the instance that 2 Company wants to retain an independent director who has served for nine
(9) years, the Board should provide meritorious justification(s) and seek sharcholders’
approval during the annual stockholders® meeting; and,

4 Reckoning of the cumulative nine-year term is from 2012.

All directors are aware of the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission regarding
the purchase and/or sale of their Company shares which are covered by SEC Form 23 A/B and
18A/18AS. During the year 2020 no director purchased or sold any shares of the Company.

The term of office of the directors is one year. The period during which the directors/ officers

have served the Company is presented in their respective resume attached to and forming part of this
report.

d. A summary of the business experiences during the past five (5) years of

each of the above-named directors are shown in their respective resume
attached to this report as ANNEX “B”.

(2) Significant Employees

The Company views its human resources as an important factor in its operations, however, the

_ Company is not highly dependent on the services of any key personnel, hence, no arrangerent has been
“~~made with respect to any person who will remain with the Company and perceived to compete upon
termination. Employees who resign or terminated are required to sign a quitclaim stating among others
that they are binding themselves not to divulge any information or trade secrets which they have learned

or which have come to their knowledge in confidence and which if revealed would be prejudicial to the
Company.

(3) Family Relationship:

Mr. Oliverio L. Laperal, Jr., Chief Executive Officer/President, and Mr. Desiderio L. Laperal,
Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer are the sons of Mr. Oliverio G. Laperal, Sr.(+), former
President and Chief Executive Officer and a major stockholder.

(4} Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings (Occurred during the past five (5) years and
Material to Evaluation)

During the past five (5) years or since January 1, 2015 up to the present, the Company is not
aware of any events involving legal proceedings of such nature that are material to the evaluation of its
present Directors/Officers, namely: Desiderio L. Laperal, Oliverio L. Laperal, Jr., Jesus Vicente B.
Capellan, Horacio M. Pascual, Vilma B. Villanueva, Anthony Nelson G. Mendoza and Genelita G.
Manandic.

a. The Company is not aware of any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business which
any of the above-mentioned directors/officers was a general partner or executive officer at
anytime within five (5) years;

b. The Company is not aware of any conviction by final judgment for any offense, in a criminal
proceeding, domestic or foreign, or being the subject of a pending criminal proceeding of any
of the above-mentioned directors/officers;

c. The Company is not aware of any order, judgment or decree, not subsequently reversed,
suspended, or vacated, by any court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign,
permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting the
involvement of any of the above-mentioned directors/officers in any type of business,
securities, commodities or banking activities;
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d. The Company is not aware of any finding by a domestic or foreign cowrt of competent
jurisdiction, the Commission or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign exchange
or other organized trading market or self-regulatory organization, that any of the above
mentioned directors/officers has violated a securities or commodities law or regulation and
said judgment has not been reversed, suspended or vacated.

While there are cases in which Mr. Desiderio L. Laperal is named individually as party-litigant,
said cases do not directly or indirectly concern or pertain to Imperial Resources Incorporated and its
subsidiary, the Registrant Corporation, but are cases which name him as representative or individually

outside of Imperial Resources Incorporated and its subsidiary. Please see the list of cases hereto attached
as Annex “A”.

Number of Independent Directors

All companies are encouraged to have independent directors. However, issuers of registered
securities and public companies are required to have at least two (2) independent directors or at least
twenty percent (20%) of its board size, whichever is lesser. Provided further that said companies may
hoose to have more independent directors in their boards than as above-required.

e

The nominees for election as Independent Directors of the Board of Directors on July 08, 2021 are
as follows:

Nominees of Independent | Person/Group Recommending | Relation of (a) and
Directors Nomination {(b)
(a) (b)
Mr. Anthony Nelson G. Mendoza Mr. Oliverio L. Laperal, Jr. None
Ms. Genelita G. Manandic Atty. Jesus Vicente B. Capelian None

C. Nominees for Election as Members of the Board of Directors.

For the year 2020, the Chairman of the Nomination Committee is Atty. Jesus Vicente B. Capellan,

“with the following members, Mr. Oliverio L. Laperal, Jr. and Ms. Genelita G. Manandic, as Independent
Director.

The nominees for election of the Board of Directors on July 08, 2021 are as follows:
1.Atty. Horacio M. Pascual

2 Mr. Desiderio L. Laperal

3.Mr. Oliverio L. Laperal, Jr.

4 Ms. Vilma B. Villanueva

5.Atty. Jesus Vicente B. Capellan

6.Ms. Genelita G. Manandic  (independent Director) and

7.Mr. Anthony Nelson G. Mendoza (Independent Director)
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ANNUAL COMPENSATION
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e)
Name and Year Salary {P) 13t *Other Annual
Principal Position Month/ Compensation
Bonus (P)
Oliverio L. Laperal, Jr. 2019 No Compensation - 25.000.00
President /Chief Executive 2020 Allowance - 45,000.00 3,750.00
Officer No Compensation - 35,000.00
Allowance - 60,000.00 5,000.00 -
2021 No Compensation - 35,000.00
Allowance - 60,000.00 5,000.00 -
Desiderio L. Laperal 2019 No Compensation - 35,000.00
Chief Financial Officer/ 2020 Allowance — 45,000.00 3,750.00
Vice-President/Treasurer No Compensation - 35,000.00
2021 Allowance - 60,000.00 5,000.00 -
C No Compensation 35,000.00
- Allowance - 60,000.00 | 5,000.00 -
A. Jesus Vicente B. 2019 300,000.00 25,000.00 35,000.00
Capellan 2020 275,000.00 22,916.67 35,000.00
Corporate Secretary 2021 300,000.00 25,000.00 35,000.00
B. Vilma B. Villanueva 2019 513,096.00 42,758.00 35,000.00
Assistant Treasurer/ 2020 470,338.00 39,194.83 35,000.00
Comptroller 2020 513,096.00 42,758.00 35,000.00
C. Bernadette S. Magahis 2019 474,456.00 39,538.00 -
Secretary to the 2020 429.,068.54 35,755.70 -
President/CEO 2021 474,456.00 39,538.00 -
D. A&iﬁiﬁfﬁf’; (";‘11113 2019 - - 65,000.00
E. Unnamed 2020 - - 95,000.00
2021 - - 105,000.00

_ ¥* The “Other Annual Compensation” column represents the per diem paid to all the members of the Board
“_-of Directors for their attendance in the regular and special meetings of the Board.
For the year 2021, the figures under columns (c), {d) and (e) arc estimated figures only.

(3) Compensation of Directors

Except for the two directors who receive a monthly allowance of P5,000.00 cach starting in April, 2019
the Members of the Board do not receive fixed compensation but each member is given per diem for
every attendance in regular and special meeting of the Board of Directors in the amount of Ten Thousand
Pesos (P10,000.00). The per diem for the attendance of each member in the annual stockholders’ meeting
followed by the organizational meeting or special stockholders’ meeting is Fifieen Thousand Pesos

(P15,000.00).

During the year 2020, there were two (2) special meetings of the Board of Director and one (1) Annual
stockholders’ meeting. There were no absences recorded during the three (3) meetings held through video

conferencing.

Other than the standard arrangements pursuant to which the directors of the Registrant are compensated,
there are no other arrangements nor consulting contracts, pursuant to which any director of the Registrant
was compensated, or is to be compensated, directly or indirectly during the Registrant’s last completed
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fiscal year and the ensuing year, for any service provided as a director. Other than the per diem paid,
there are no other arrangements, bonuses, profit sharing, or other similar plans, which arrangements
forming part of the compensation, hence, the details being asked could not be discussed nor disclosed.

(4) Empioyment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change-In-Control Arrangements.

There are no employment contracts and tormination of employment and change-in-control
arrangements, hence, the details being asked could not be discussed or disclosed.

(5) Warrants and Stock Options of Officers and Directors

During the year covered by this report up to the date of this report, none of the Officers or Directors
are recipient of stock options, warrants or ri ghts. )

ITEM 7. INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

The accounting firm of Villaruz, Villaruz & Co., CPAs will be nominated and recommended to security
holders for appointment as External Auditors for the period 2021-2022. Representatives of Villaruz, Villaruz &
Co., CPAs are expected to be present in the Annual shareholders Meeting to respond to appropriate questions and
<0 make statement if they so desire. In compliance with SRC Rule 68(3)(b)(iv) as amended on the rotation of
External Auditors, the audit of the financial statements of the Company was handled and certified by the managing
partner, Mrs. Normita L. Villaruz for calendar years 2019-2020.

As stated in the information statement under “Other Events” and in compliance with the principles of good
corporate governance and best business practices, the Board constituted committees, which are the (1) Nomination
Commitiee (2) Audit Committee and (3) Compensation and Remuneration Committee, through the process of
election during organizational meeting of the officers of the Company. The term of the elected members is for one
(1) year. The election of candidates takes into consideration the qualifications and disqualifications of nominees.
Each of the three (3) Committees is composed of three (3) members of the board, one of whom shall be an
independent director and shall have adequate understanding or competence of the Company’s financial
management system and environment. For the year 2020, the Chairman of the Audit Committee is Ms. Genelita G.
Manandic, Independent Director, with following member, Mr. Desiderio L. Laperal, and Aity. Horacio M. Pascual.

ITEM 8. COMPENSATION PLANS

N

No action shall be taken with respect to any plan pursuant to which cash or non-cash compensation may be
paid or distributed.

a. The Company has no stock options, warrants or rights;

b. Likewise, there is no other type of compensation plan;

c. There is no compensation plan which has been taken up.

Thus, the details being asked could not be discussed nor disclosed. In the same manner no other type of
compensation plan, consequently, no details can be discussed.
C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES
ITEMY9. AUTHORIZATION OR ISSUANCE OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN FOR EXCHANGE

No action will be taken with respect to the authorization or issuance of any securities otherwise for

exchange for outstanding securities of the Registrant. Hence, no information required by Part III paragraph (B) of
Annex “A” can be given.
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ITEM 10. MODIFICATION OR EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

) No action will be taken with respect to the modification of any class of securities of the Registrant or the
15suance or authorization for issuance of one class of securities of the Registrant in exchange for outstanding
securities of another class.

All other instruction contained in letters (a) through (g) are not applicable.

ITEM 11. FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

(a) Information required.
No other action will be taken with respect to any matter specified in ITEM 9 or ITEM 10, hence, the
information required in numbers 1, 4 and 5 with the exception of management discussion and analysis and plan of

ITEM 12. MERGERS, CONSOLIDATIONS, ACQUISITIONS AND SIMILAR MATTERS
No action will be taken with respect to any transaction involving merger, consolidation, acquisition or
similar matters, hence, the discussion with respect to the details thereto cannot be given.
All matters asked concerning letters (@), (b), and (c) cannot be given owing to the absence of transactions.

"ITEM 13. ACQUISITION OR DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY

No action will be taken with respect to the acquisition or disposition of any property, hence, no information
can be given on the matters asked in (a) to (d).

ITEM 14. RESTATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

No action will be taken with respect to the restatement of any asset, capital or surplus account of the
Registrant, hence, no information on matters asked can be given.

D. OTHER MATTERS
Suggestions and/or proposals are open to all stockholders of record.

ITEM 15. ACTION WITH RESPECT TO REPORTS

All minutes of meeting of the Directors are included in Fem 8 of the agenda. Likewise, all reports of its

directors, officers, or committees are included in the minutes of meetings of the security holders. Specifically, the -

1. Approval of the Minutes of the regular annual stockholders’ meeting heid on September 03, 2020.

2. Approval by the stockholders of the Annual Report and the Financial Statements of the Company as of
December 31, 2020.

3. Election of seven (7) members of the Board of Directors inclusive of two (2) Independent Directors.

4. Ratification of the appointment of Villaruz, Villaruz & Co. CPA’s as Independent Auditor of Imperial
Resources, Incorporated with business address at Unit 3 Level 9 Galleria Corporate Center, EDSA
corner Ortigas Avenue, Quezon City, Metro Manila.

5. Ratification of all acts, contracts, resolutions, and proceedings of the Board of Directors and Corporate
Officers acting within the scope of their designated authority, from September 03, 2020 Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting until the present July 08, 2021, are included in said reports. These refers to
acts, contracts, and proceedings of the Board of Directors and Corporate Officers which shall be
approved and thenceforth, ratified by the security holders. All actions of the Board of Directors shall
be approved in the annual stockholders’ meeting.

Such matter intended for approval or disapproval of any action to be taken have been acted upon in the
resolutions passed and approved in the meetings and after proper discussion of the Board, Committees of the
Board.

As stated, such matter intended for approval or disapproval have already been acted upon, to a vote of
security holders, or by immediate action as called for. :
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ITEM 16. MATTERS NOT REQUIRED TO BE SUBMITTED

No action is to be taken with respect to any matter which is not required to be submitted to a vote by
security holders.

ITEM 17. AMENDMENT OF CHARTER, BY-LAWS OR OTHER DOCUMENTS

No pending proposals for amendment of the charter, by-laws or other documents which may be submitted to
a vote by security holders.

ITEM 18. OTHER PROPOSED ACTION

No other proposed action will be taken up with respect to any matter for the approval of the proposed
exchange of shares of stock with real estate whose appraised value is less than ten (10%) percent of increased
capital stock of the corporation.

ITEM 19. VOTING PROCEDURES

For election of directors, the seven (7) nominees receiving the highest number of votes shall be declared
elected. For other proposals or matters submitted to a vote, the majority of the quorum except when otherwise
provided by law, shall be sufficient for its approval.

Counting of the 4yes and Nays or showing of hand shall be the method by which the votes will be counted
unless a stockholder requires balloting in which case, the casting of votes of the stockholders shall be by the
hallots. Votes shall be counted by the representatives of the external auditor, Villaruz, Villaruz & Co., CPA’s and

the Corporate Secretary, Atty. Jesus Vicente B. Capellan, who shall serve as members of the Committee on
Election.

INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE

Incorporated hereto, by reference as Annex “A” is the Management Report; Annex “B” is the lists of cases
where Mr. Oliverio L. Laperal, Jr. and Mr. Desiderio L Laperal are joined as parties-litigants and which are outside
of or extraneous to [mperial Resources Incorporated; Amnex “C” is the Resume of directors and officers; Annex
“D” is the Quarterly Report 17-Q as of March 31, 2021; Annex “E” is 2020 Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements as at December 31, 2020 of Imperial Resources Incorporated; and, Amnex “F” is the Certification of
the Independent Directors.

PART II
SIGNATURE
After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge, I certify that the information set forth in this

report are true, complete and correct. This report is signed in Makati City on June 15, 2021. The Issuer has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behaif by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

IMPERIAL RESOURCES INCORPORATED

B

fforale Secretary

Copf

Page 17 of 51



IMP-SEC Form 20HS (DIS)
Dec. 31, 2020

ANNEX “A”

MANAGEMENT REPORT:

BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

PART 1 - BUSINESS
(A) Description of Business —
1. Business Development

Imperial Resources Incorporated (the Company), was incorporated in the Philippines on
September 5, 1969, with the principal purpose of engaging in the mining and oil exploration business. Its
capitalization was Php 25 million with P0.01 par value per share or 2.5 billion common shares of stock.
In 1970 the shares of the Company were listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange. Pursuing its primary
vurpose, the Company conducted an onshore drilling in Badian, Cebu. This did not result to a discovery

\__f gas and oil. Thereafter, the Company participated in twelve (12) offshore oil drilling in the South Sulu
Sea and Reed Bank area in partnership with three (3) internationally-renowned oil companies despite its
limited resources. Again, there was no commercial oil or gas discovery in all its offshore drillings. With
depleted financial resources the company decided to close its mining and oil exploration projects.

In 2000, the Company amended its articles of incorporation making the business of Information
Technology (IT) as its primary purpose and the mining and oil exploration as one of its secondary
purposes. In line with this, the Company established Philippine Cyber College Corporation (PCC) as its
99% per cent — owned subsidiary which operated two (2) L.T. learning centers, one in Baguio City and
another at Malolos City, Bulacan until the end of school year 2007-2008.

In 2007 after the approval by the Board of Directors, the stockholders and finally, the SEC the
change of the par value of the Company’s common shares of stock from Php 0.01 to Php 5.00 was
implemented in the Philippine Stock Exchange.

e In 2009 after closing the two (2) LT. learning centers, PCC opened a techno-vocational training

project in Pasay City to train students to become world class welders. However, it operated only until the
latter part of 2009.

A Memorandum of Agreement was executed in January, 2009 by and between the Company and
P.T. Aspal Buton Nasional, an Indonesian company, which owns about 2,900 hectares of Asphalt Mining
Concession in Sulawesi, Indonesia, whereby the Company was given exclusive rights to explore and
evaluate the mining property and subsequently exploit, develop and bring it to commercial production.
Series of geophysical and geologic studies and surveys were conducted in the ensuing years as basis for
the preparation of a Project Feasibility Report.

In 2015 the Company received proposals to venture into silica sand mining to address the demand
of companies in the manufacture of flat glass and glass bottles. A project cost study was presented to the
Company for analysis, discussion, evaluation and consideration. Thereupon, initial findings show that the
project is financially viable and promising.

The Company, however, after making further studies on the sustainability of the project owing to
the latest environmental policies, regulations and pronouncements made by the various government
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agencies on mining and the local peace and order situation in the proposed silica sand mining sites, the
management has decided to keep the project on hold temporarily.

The Company since the incorporation has never experienced bankruptcy, receivership or similar
proceeding because the majority stockholders have committed to support financially the Company’s
operations through payments of their unpaid subscription even in the absence of a formal call by the
Board of Directors and cash advances as needed. There are no new material classification, merger, or
purchase or sale of a significant amount of assets not in the ordinary course of business.

On March 29, 2011, the Board of Directors held a special meeting wherein the change of par value
of the shares of stock of the Company from Five Pesos (Php5.00) to one Peso (Php1.00) per share was
approved. This was subsequently ratified by the stockholders during the regular annual stockholders’
meeting held on July 14, 2011.

On March 28, 2016, the Board of Directors held a special meeting wherein the declassification of
the shares of stock of the Parent Entity from Common Class ‘A” and Class “B” to Common Stock voting
shares was approved. This was subsequently confirmed and ratified by the stockholders during the
regular annual stockholders’ meeting held on July 14, 2016.

-
The change of par value and the declassification of the Class “A” and Class “B” shares of stock

into Common stock were approved by the SEC on February 10, 2017 and PSE implemented the said
changes on February 22, 2017.

2. Business of Issuer
a. Mining
a.1. Asphalt
The Company conducted geologic and geophysical (Electric Resistivity) surveys in 2009 on
approximately two hundred (200) hectares and one thousand seven hundred (1,700) hectares, all located
in Buton Island, southwest of Sulawesi Province in Indonesia the result of which was promising.

In August, 2010 the Company furnished a few samples of rocks gathered from the mining property
to Toyo-Union Co. Lid. (TUCL) and expressed an intention to have a business association with them,
subject to some terms and conditions, including confidentiality and exclusivity rights reserved for the

~ Company. This was firmed up through a Memorandum of Agreement signed on September 13, 2010.
During 2011, the engineers and geologists of TUCL together with the engineers from Aspal Buton
Nasional were able to go to the asphalt concession areas and collected about sixty (60) kilos of samples
and TUCL were able to bring the samples to Tokyo. However, this project with TUCL did not prosper.

During the second half of 2011, the two asphalt concessions were expiring. However, because of
the significant geophysical electric resistivity survey arranged and conducted by Aspal Buton Nasional,
and funded by the Company, approval for extension of the exploration concession for additional period of

two (2) years was obtained. In 2013, the Company was able to secure another extension of the lease of its
mining concession.

In 2011, the Company has spent US$220,000 for additional geologic works/studies needed for the
preparation of the project feasibility report and environmental impact report required pending conversion
of PT Aspal Buton Nasional Exploration permit to Development and Exploitation permit. In 2012, the
Company spent US$120,000 for more geological works/studies. The Project Feasibility Report and
Environmental Impact Report written in Bahasa Indonesia upon completion were submitted to the
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Indonesian authorities for approval. The Company funded the translation of the Project Feasibility Report
and Environmental Impact Report from Bahasa Indonesia to English in 2012 and was completed in 2013.
These English version reports will be used by the Company in looking for and negotiating with foreign
investors for possible tie-up or capital funding considering that this project entails a huge capital outlay.

In 2014, the Company spent US$50,000 for obtaining informal approval for exploitation
concession of the 1,722 hectares located at Waangu-Angu area and US$ 52,000 for the preparation of the
required technical report on post-production program to restore most of the mined-in areas to usable
condition.

In 2015, the Company remitted US$99,250 to Mr. Eddy Surohadi for the account of P.T. Aspal
Buton and P.T. Indominas to cover the budget required for various technical and tax expenses on the
CNC (Clean and Clear Certificate) TUP Production Program for the coverage area of 1,722 hectares
located at Waangu-Angu area.

Up to the present, the Company is awaiting a progress report from the Indonesian partners and
submission of additional budget needed regarding its application for formal approval for the exploitation
concession of the above stated area before it releases additional funds.

On March 16, 2017, in the special meeting of the Board of Directors, it was resolved that while
the Company is proceeding with caution and at the same time re-evaluating its Indonesian mining project
owing to the precipitous fall in the world price of crude, the Company is at present inclined to pursue the
said project especially so that the Indonesian partners have been continuously looking for foreign partners
to invest capital needed after they have secured formal approval of the exploitation concession because of
its viability. Furthermore, an in depth study and evaluation, shall be made on silica mineral mining
venture as priorly been proposed and discussed. Towards this end, the Laperal family and LTC Real
Estate Corporation committed to support and fund the said projects.

a.2. Precious Metals

On January 17, 2010, the Company signed a Memorandum of Agreement with PT. Indominas, an
Indonesian Company duly organized and existing under the laws of the Republic of Indonesia, with
rincipal office address at JL. Kiampis Anom II/29, Surabaya, Indonesia (referred to as Claimowners).
After January 17, 2010, the Claimowners expect to be granted Mining Rights by the government state
corporation Perusahaan Daerab (Perusda) Pd. Utama Sultra of South East Sulawesi of the Republic of
Indonesia, covering an approximate 4,779 hectares mining exploration concession at South East Sulawesi
Province of the Republic of Indonesia. The Claim owners granted the Company the exclusive rights to do
preliminary studies before choosing the area to be developed. If the results of the studies are favorable,
the Company shall pay another US$170,000 upon approval of the conversion of the selected areas into
exploration concession. Within thirty (30) days after the Claimowners shall have obtained and delivered
all government approvals, permits, extensions and licenses, the Company at its sole expense shall start
geological and geophysical surveys on the mining concessions for the purpose of determining the
potentials for commercial operations, development and exploitation of the above-mentioned mining
concessions. In 2010, preliminary studies on the said area have started. The preliminary geologic survey
on the proposed subject area indicated possible deposits. Outside and a bit far from the subject area there
are many gold panners. The Company is also evaluating the peace and order situation in the area. After

evaluating several factors the Company will have a better total picture on the business prospects of the
gold mining project.

N

Several years ago our Company was invited to operate in Papua New Guinea. The prospects are
interesting but we are cautious. The area is a semi-autonomous region controlled by former anti-
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government rebels. Companies from China have established presence in the area and are reportedly
involved in basic infrastructure projects and in mining. We will look for a strategic partner before we
commit to Papua New Guinea.

b. Information Technology (IT) Related Business

b.1. L.T. Education
b.1.a. Description

PCC’s IT learning centers in Baguio City (PCC-Baguio) and Malolos, Bulacan (PCC-Malolos)
started operations in 2001. These two learning centers were accredited with Technical Education and
Skills Development Authority (TESDA). The methodologies and teaching curriculum of the two learning
centers were patterned after Singapore’s “higher educational system for Information Technology™ which
was prepared by Tata Conglomerate Group (TATA) from India. PCC’s educational system was drawn
under the supervision of TATA and the University of Sto. Tomas (UST).

PCC-Baguio and PCC-Malolos gained accreditation to offer courses for CISCO, Microsoft, Oracle

and Sun Microsystem. Relative to its accreditation with CISCO, both centers entered into a CISCO

\__~Networking Academy “Local Academy Agreement” with UST, a CISCO Regional Academy. PCC-

Malolos was named one of the two best CISCO local academies in the Philippines in 2005. This

agreement was not renewed after the two centers temporarily suspended their operations. The other

courses offered were Web Developer, Data Developer, Server Back-End Management, Business
Automation Provider, E-Commerce Programming and Network Management and Administration.

The Company’s awareness of its social responsibility was shown by PCC-Malolos working in
partnership with the Provincial Government of Malolos, Bulacan through it’s “Joint Livelihood Project”
by offering its IT courses to less fortunate students from Bulacan at a much lower cost. All students who

graduated under this program gained employment. Unfortunately, this program was terminated by the
Bulacan government in May, 2007.

During the years that the two learning centers operated, they produced highly competent graduates
who were able to land good paying jobs locally and abroad. Because of the continuous losses incurred by
the two learning centers, their operations were suspended at the end of school year 2007-2008.

—

¢. Technical-Vocational Education, Training and Assessment Project

c.l.a Description

In March 2008, PCC put up training facility in Pasay City focused on Applied Metals Engineering
Skills requirements starting with the development of First Class welders in Submerged Metal Arc
Welding (SMAW) or stick welding; Tungsten Inert Gas Welding (TIG also called Gas Tungsten Arc
Welding or GTAW) for stainless steel, aluminum and other special alloys; and Gas Metal Arc Welding
(GMAW) for continuous welds. In the following year after this training facility secured its accreditation
with Technical Education and Skills Development Authority (TESDA) it started operating.

During 2009 there were about a hundred students under the TESDA PGMA Scholarship Program
who successfully passed the independent TESDA-approved Assessor’s assessment program. Most of
them gained employment abroad through TESDA. About twenty one (21} of them were recommended by
TESDA for employment with Negros Navigation. TESDA temporarily cut its PGMA Scholarship
Program when funds were depleted. Since this was the mainstay of welding schools for sustaining their
operations and PCC’s marketing efforts with shipping establishments and placement agencies did not
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bear fruit it was forced to suspend its operations. Management has finally decided to phase-off its
Techno-Vocational Project. Tt has concentrated its financial resources on the development of its
Indonesian mining project and will focus its efforts and resources on the more promising economic and
financially lucrative Indonesian mining project.

The Group has no reported income since PCC suspended its operations in 2009.

On March 20, 2013, at the meeting of the Management Committee, wherein , all members who
are also directors were present and representing majority of the members of the Board of Directors
unanimously resolved and approved the dormant status of its Subsidiary (PCC) due to its non-operation
since 2010 and because of the significant losses incurred by the Company.

The Parent Company has committed to continue providing financial support to (PCC) for its
working capital and payment of all its debts when they fall due. Given the financial condition of PCC, the
Parent Company does not demand immediate repayment of its advances.

In 2015, PCC has entertained inquiries or proposals to lease its building in Baguio City. The
management is hoping to have the building rented out in 2016 and is looking at rental income of about

.__Thirty-Five Thousand Pesos (P35,000) per month. Consequently, PCC has changed its basis of

accounting from liquidation basis to going-concern basis.

In 2016, an interested party proposed to rent the building to be used as its marketing office for
Thirty-Five Thousand Pesos (P35,000) per month. On March 16, 2017, at the special meeting of the
Board of Directors, it was resolved that the Vice-Chairman and Vice-President, is authorized and
empowered to negotiate, transact, conclude, execute and sign, for and in behold of PCC, agreements or
contracts for the lease of the property in Baguio as well as to deliver such necessary records, documents
or papers pertinent to or in its implementation. It was resolved further that the same person is authorized
and empowered to agree on the terms, conditions and stipulations, and the price of the lease, for the best
interest of PCC. However, due to the change of marketing plans of the prospective lessee the lease
agreement was not finalized. Early in 2018 and interested party made an offer to lease the building to be

used as a primary school for Forty Thousand Pesos (P40,000) per month. However, the negotiation
bogged down.

Despite the presence of a caretaker to prevent informal settlers to enter and use the building as
their dwelling place and as additional deterrent management in 2013 decided to allow Philippine National
Internal Affairs Services (PNPI-AS) to use a portion of the ground floor as its office for free. During the
latter part of 2018 the PNP-IAS moved out of the property. In 2019, the management repaired and
repainted the building in order to better attract potential lessees considering its good location.

In June 2020 management received a proposal from an educational institution to lease the Baguio
property to set up a school for its mainstream learning and distant learning programs at Pesos: Seventy-
Five Thousand (Php75.,000) per month. The prospective lessee wanted a minimum of five-year lease
contract. The negotiation did not prosper. In January, 2021 another interested party submitted a proposal
to lease the Baguio property for its planned bed and breakfast business at Pesos: Seventy-Five Thousand
(Php75,000) per month for two (2) years. Management is evaluating the proposal including some
conditions proposed by the lessee in line with the short and long-term effects of the COVID-19 Pandemic

on the business of the Company and the lessee. Management is confident that it can find a lessee during
the year 2021, thus, making the building an income-generating asset.

The Parent Company and PCC are not holding any parent, trademark, copyright of franchise.
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GOVERNMENTAL APPROVAL, REGULATIONS AND ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS

The Parent Company and PCC are committed to follow governmental laws and regulations
governing the conduct of its operations. As of the date of this report, management is not aware of any
existing or probable government regulation which has or will have a great impact on the business of the
Group. There is no environmental or mining law in the Philippines that significantly affects the projects
of the Company at present or in the near future, since it does not have approved mining claim in the
country. Since the Company is still in the pre-development and pre-exploration stage, and its mining
project is located in Indonesia, no material cost is likely to be incurred as regards this matter.

TRANSACTIONS WITH AND/OR DEPENDENCE ON RELATED PARTIES

The Group has not been totally dependent on any single or few suppliers of equipment and
materials needed in its operations. Party related transactions of the Group is discussed in detail on pages
48-51 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

COMPANY OFFICE STAFF

N The President and Vice President started receiving an allowance of P5,000/months in April 2019.
Two (2) employees, resigned in 2019 leaving six (6) employees all under operations. Including the
President and the Vice President there were eight (8) employees as of the end of 2019. Because of the
COVID-19 Pandemic one (1) employee retired on August 31, 2020 leaving seven (7) employees as of
December 31, 2020. Management is presently evaluating the need for hiring replacements and
restructuring the work force because of the unstable economic condition and uncertainty as to when the
COVID-19 Pandemic will end.

The Company’s regular employees are entitled to 13" month pay, SSS, PHIC and Pag-Ibig fund
benefits including medical and dental benefits and separation pay as provided for by law.

In October, 2018 the Company decided to give its employees a 14" month pay to help them cope
with the unabated increase in the cost of fuel and basic necessities as a result of the TRAIN-Law.
However, this was not a continuing benefit. There was no such benefit given to its employees in 2019.

. Except for a non-contributory retirement pay benefit computed according to the requirements of R.A. No.
\"7641 known as “Retirement Pay Law” there are no profit-sharing benefits, long-term benefits, share-
based payments and other post-employment benefits. As regards retirement benefits the Company has

applied PAS 19 (as amended-June, 2011) this is further discussed in Note 18 pages 45-47 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Starting September, 2020, the Company has given Two Thousand Pesos (P2,000) per month per,
employee as additional benefit to cover increase in living and transportation expenses. This COVID-19
related benefit is only temporary and management will discontinue granting this benefit when the
business climate improves and more public transportations become available.

The Company’s members of its Board and executives as well as regular employees are
encouraged to attend accounting, tax and management seminars and other professional and business
training programs offered by the government and private entities to enhance their skills and abilities in
the performance of their assigned tasks and to be updated on policies, rules and regulations implemented
by various regulatory and governing bodies at the expense of the Company. All Board Members have
been attending the Corporate Governance seminars as required by SEC. The latest corporate governance

seminar attended by all members of the board was the SEC-PSE Corporate Governance Forum (CG
Forum) held on November 19, 2020 via Zoom Webinar.
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There is no company union, consequently, there is no collective bargaining agreement.

MAJOR RISKS

The Group does not have a Risk Management Committee which is not practicable at its current
operational set up. Risk Management is the responsibility of the Board of Directors. Management has
adopted sound policies and measures in order to preserve its financial assets and fully maximize
effectively their usage and sees to it that these are implemented and monitored. The Annual Sustainabihity
Report being submitted with SEC serves as guide for management in promulgating policies for risk
management and evaluating the effects of the policies on the business.

Cash and cash equivalents are deposited with stable and reputable banks. Placements normally
have 35-day maturities, thereby, reducing the risk of change in value. The Group is not engaged in the
trading of financial assets for speculative purposes. Presently, its source of cash comes primarily from
cash advances from major stockholders and the payments of major stockholders of their subscription
payables. Because of the commitment given by the major stockholders to continue supporting the
financial operations of the Company by paying their subscription payables even in the absence of a
formal call by the Board of Directors, or extending cash advances to the Company, exposure to liquidity
risk is minimized.

L
The Company does not have any loans or notes payable, hence, it is not exposed to the risk of
changing market interest rates. Furthermore, its cash and cash equivalents have fixed interest rates. The
Company maintains foreign currency accounts to defray its mining pre-development costs, and is,

therefore, exposed to currency risk. The Company has no material exposure to credit risks from
outsiders.

Its Financial Assets are not used for collateral or other credit enhancement.

A more detailed analysis and discussion of the Group’s Financial Assets in relation to financial
risks such as credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk are presented in Note 6 pages 31-34 of the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

OTHER RISKS

The Company moved from Makati City to its current Quezon City address in the early 90°s. All
these years it did mot experience any destructive flooding until typhoon “Ondoy” in 2009. The
Company’s office equipment, furniture and fixture and some office documents and accounting records
were destroyed during the said flood. This kind of risk was never anticipated by management. In 2010,
the Company undertook preventive measures to avoid destruction of its assets and records in case another
catastrophe of that magnitude occurs. In the middle of 2011, the Company’s office in Makati moved to a
flood-free location. Also, the Company was able to lease additional space for its Quezon City office to
house some of its records and files.

In 2015 its Makati office transferred to a much better location at Barangay Bel-Air, Makati City.

In June, 2016 the building where the Company’s Makati office was situated was partially
destroyed by fire. Some office files were water-damaged. The lessor finished the repair and renovation of
the partially damaged building including the Company office in 2017. The following year the Company
moved its office to a more spacious room in the same building at a much higher rental cost.

Management is aware of the following risks that the Company will face in the future as regards its
mining project:
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Mining metals and non-metals is essentially risky and expensive and faced with multiple problems.
The prices of commodities are always subject to fluctuations.

All governments change its heads and regulations are subject to unpredictable changes and
government laws and regulatory policies and corporate governance poses hazards to plan, execute
and deliver on long-term projects.

The global weather is unpredictable because of climate change.

Many governments are demanding larger and larger share of the profits. Higher taxes and rents are
seen as management problems.

Terms of contracts may be subjected to unpredictable changes.

Management’s Responses and Outlook

p—_—

1.
2.

3.

N 4.
5.

The Company’s main goal is to explore for less risky exploration and exploitation minerals.
Shorten exploration period and look for the most economical ways to explore and conduct the
latest geological and geophysical techniques to minimize risks of exploration.

Management will engage experts to utilize proven hedge and financial initiatives to mitigate and
minimize the inherent risks of the volatility of commodities.

The Group is aware of the importance of community welfare and community relationship.

Strict observance of COVID-19 Pandemic protocols to safeguard the health and well being of its
employees and adopt measures to sustain business operations.

(B) Description of Properties

As of December 31, 2020 the following are the properties of material value owned by the Group.

1. A parcel of land located at No. 1004 EDSA, Quezon City, covered by Transfer Certificate of Title

No. N-307207 of the Register of Deeds of Quezon City with an area of Five Thousand (5,000),
square meters, more or less, issued under the name of Imperial Resources Incorporated was
acquired in 2007 with a transfer value of Four Hundred Million Pesos (P400,000,000.00) as full
payment for Thirty Four Million (34,000,000) Common Class “A” shares and Forty Six Million
(46,000,000) Common Class “B” shares subscribed all at Five Pesos (P5.00) per share by Mr.
Oliverio G. Laperal, Sr. This property is taken up as “Investment Property”. The Company is in
the process of opposing a request for reinstatement of /is pendens annotation with the Registry of
Deeds of Quezon City with Reference No. 009783-10-000001. The Company’s legal consultants
confirmed that as an innocent purchaser for value of the land in question, cannot be prejudiced by
Jis pendens annotation that did not appear in the predecessor title of the land at the time of the
transfer. Up to the date of this report, management has not received any communication with the
Registry of Deeds and the /is pendens annotation has not been restored. There are informal settlers
in the property. This property was appraised by Cuervo Appraisers, Inc., an SEC accredited
appraiser. The appraisal value of this property as of December 31, 2020 is P830,000,000.

2. School Building — In September, 2002, the school building constructed by Phil. Cyber College

Corp. (PCC) for PCC Baguio Center was finished and inaugurated. The total cost amounted to
Two Million Two Hundred Thousand Pesos (P2,200,000.00).

3. Welding machines and equipment needed for the Techno-Vocational Education Training and

Assessment courses of PCC costing of about P1.4 million were acquired in 2008.

4. Transportation Equipment - A Toyota Innova acquired in 2009 at P1,150,000.00.

All the above-mentioned properties are not mortgaged. The Group is not aware of any lien or
encumbrance on any of them.

The Group does not have any property under lease.

5. Exploration and Evaluation Asset account consists of:

a. The exclusive mining rights of exploration, exploitation, development and operation of
about 1,940 hectares of Mining Exploration Concession located at Buton Island, South
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East Sulawesi Province, Indonesia which the Company has acquired on January 30, 2009
from PT Aspal Buton Nasional by paying a signature bonus of US $150,000.00 or
P7,090,500.00.

b. The signature bonus amounting to P4,705,000.00 (US $100,000.00) paid by Imperial
Resources Incorporated to PT. Indominas, an Indonesian Company, for the former to
acquire other mining rights in Indonesia per memorandum of agreement executed on
January 17, 2010 between the said parties.

c. Tn 2015, the Company spent US$99,250.00 or P4,453,844.00 to cover the budget required
for various technical and tax expenses on the CNC IUP Production Program for the
coverage area of 1,722 hectares located at Waangu-Angu area.

d. As of December 31, 2016 the accumulated cost of geophysical and geological
works/studies amounted to P38,676,848.00 and the acquisition of rights to explore
amounted to P11,795,500.00.

e. There was no disbursement pertaining to the mining project in 2019 and 2020 so the
amounts remain the same.

There was no material acquisition of assets by the Group during 2020. The Company has not
perfected any mining claims in the Philippines.

(C) Legal Proceedings

There are no legal proceedings pending or terminated during the fiscal year covered by this report,
which directly or indirectly concern or pertain to Imperial Resources Incorporated and Philippine Cyber
College, hence, no information similar to that required by afore-stated disclosure can be disclosed.

So far as is known to the registrant, there is no proceeding known or contemplated by government
authorities or any other entity to be brought against it.

(D) Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

The Company did not submit during the 4™ quarter of the fiscal year covered by this report to a
vote by security holders, through the solicitation of proxies.

PART II — SECURITIES OF THE REGISTRANT

(A) Market Price of and Dividends on Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder
Matters

1. Market Information

The shares of stock of Imperial Resources Incorporated (IMP) are traded in the Philippine Stock
Exchange. Presented below are the quarterly market prices of the stocks of the Company in 2020 and
2019 as providled by the Research Department of the Philippine Stock-Exchange:
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2020 {stQTR _2nd QTR _3rdQTR  _4thOTR
Common Stock Par Value 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
High 1.80 1.80 2.05 2.00
Low 1.00 1.12 1.12 1.19
Close 1.00 1.21 1.37 1.67
2019 1st QTR 2nd QTR 3rd QTR 4th QTR
Common Stock Par Value 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
High 2.21 2.03 2.09 1.94
Low 1.82 1.75 1.75 1.65
Close 1.88 1.92 1.77 1.66
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In 2019, the total volume of Common shares traded was 6,698,859. In 2020 the total volume
traded was 2,1791542 shares. In 2020 the Common stock traded at a high of P2.05, low at P1.00 and
closed at P1.67. On June 1, 2021 the Common stock traded at a high of P1.62, low at P1.55 and closed at

. P1,55.0n June 10, 2021 the Common stock trade ata high of P1.75, low at P1.74 and closed at P1.735.

S

2. Holders

Until February 10, 2017 the Company had two (2) classes of stock; both classes were identical in
all aspects, except that:

Class “A” shares may be issued and/or sold only to citizens of the Philippines or to

corporations at least sixty percent (60%) of the capital stock of which is owned by citizens of the
Philippines; and

Class “B” shares may be issued and/or sold to any person or corporation irrespective of
citizenship. Provided, that a stockholder who is a Filipino citizen holding Common Class “B”
shares is entitled at any time to convert his Common Class “B” shares to Common Class “A”
- shares in the manner provided in the By-Laws.

On February 10, 2017 the SEC approved the declassification of the Common Class “A” and Class
“B3” shares into Common Stock of at least 60% of the common shares of stock shall be issued and/or sold

only to citizens of the Philippines or to Corporations at least 60% of the capital stock of which is owned
by the citizen of the Philippines.

The holders of Common Stock have the right to participate and vote in the regular annual

stockholders’ meeting have rights to dividends and are entitled to all proprietary right in relation to their
stockholdings.

(a) The approximate number of holders of Common Stock as of May 31, 2021 is 1,666. There are
about 1,663 stockholders owning 100 shares or more. The following is a list of the top twenty (20)
stockbolders as of May 31, 2021, submitted to us by our transfer agent, Professional Stock Transfer, Inc.
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AS OF MAY 31, 2021
TOTAL
NAME OF STOCKHOLDER SHAREHOLDERS NUMBER %
OF EACH CILASS OF SHARES
1 |LAPERAL, SR., OLIVERIO G. * Common 546,552,070 83.763%
2 |PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION Common 33,228,565 5.093%
3 |LMI HOLDINGS CORPORATION Common 21,905,000 3.357%
4 |IMARINO OLONDRIZ Y CIA Common 2,411,095 0.370%
5 |LAPERAL, DESIDERIQ L. Common 1,670,000 0.256%
6 |LAPERAL, ALEXANDRA L. Common 1,660,000 0.254%
7 |GANQTISL, FILOIVIENOI Common 1,630,000 0.250%
8 |LAPERAL, ROSAMARIA Common 1,626,500 0.249%
9 |CONCEPCION, REGINA L. Common 1,580,000 0.242%
LAPERAL, JR., OLIVERIO Common 1,580,000 0.242%
LAPERAL, VICTORINA L. (VICTORINA HERAS) Common 1,580,000 0.242%
L 10 |JLTC REAL ESTATE CORPORATION Common 1,047,375 0.161%
11 [BENJAMIN CO CA & CO_, INC, Common 1,009,755 0.155%
12 |ICHIONG & CO., INC. Common 976,100 0.150%
13 [INVESTORS SECURITIES, INC. Common 948,750 0.145%
14 |E. SANTAMARIA & CO., INC. (SP Common 812,275 0.125%
15 |JANSELMO TRINIDAD & CO., INC. Common 797,875 0.122%
16 JANSALDO, GODINEZ & CO., INC, Common 699,850 0.107%
17 {PHILSEC INVESTMENT CORPORATION Common 662,273 0.101%
18 |DACTLLO, NENITA C. Common 638,000 0.098%
19 KU1, JOHN Common 605,620 0.093%
20 JAQUINO ANTONIO&VELMONTE SEC. Common 573,250 0.088%

(b) Asof May 31, 2021, 99.69% are owned by Filipinos while 0.31% are owned by other nationalities.
*The number of shares under the name of Oliverio G. Laperal, Sr. who passed on last August 26, 2018 includes 318,400 shares
\_~ under RCBC TIA which is owned by him.

3. Dividends
The Company has never declared any dividend on any class of its common equity since its

incorporation because it has not gone into commercial operations and, therefore, it does not have cash
surplus earnings.

The Board of Directors of the Registrant has the unrestricted power to declare dividends out of the
unrestricted earnings which shall be payable in cash, property or in stocks to all stockholders on the basis
of outstanding stock held by them. Other than as are provided for in Section 43 of the Corporation Code,
as exception to the retention of surplus earnings, the registrant has no agreement, stipulation or
undertaking in favor of any bank, financial institution or any other entity or person, limiting its ability to
pay dividends on common equity or that are likely to do so in the future.

4. Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
For the year 2020, there was no sale of unregistered securities.
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Exemption from Registration Claimed:

In its Resolution No. C15, series of 1998, the Securities and Exchange Commission upon letter
petition filed by Imperial Resources, Inc. requesting that the issuance to LMI Holdings Corporation of
Fifteen Billion (15,000,000,000) Common Class “A” (Par value per share P0.01) shall be exempted from
the registration requirements of the Revised Securities Act., the Commission granted the request

considering that the said securities are to be issued exclusively to an existing stockholder out of the
increase in authorized capital stock approved by the Commission on August 5, 1997, and held that the
issuance thereof, is an exempt transaction based on Section 6(a) (4) of the Revised Securities Act (now
Sec. 10 1(e) of the Securities Regulation Code.

(B) Description of Registrant’s Securities
1. Common Stock
(a) As of December 31, 2020 presented below is the capital stock structure of the

Company:
Common
Stock
No. of shares Amount
Authorized Capital 1,800,000,000 P 1,800,000,000.00
Issued and Outstanding 230,643,195 230,443,195.00
Subscribed & Partially Paid 421,856,805 422.056,805.00
Total 652,500,000 P 652,500,000.00
(b) As of December 31, 2019
Common
Stock
No. of shares Amount
Authorized Capital 1,800,000,000 P 1,800,000,000.00
Issued and Qutstanding 230,643,195 230,643,195.00
Subscribed & Partially Paid 421,856,805 421,856,805.00
Total 652,500,000 P 652,500,000.00

A further discussion of the Company’s share capital is shown in Note 20 page 52-54 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2020.

(d) By provision of the Articles of Incorporation, security holders are denied of their pre-
emptive rights. All shares of stock are entitled to equal voting rights. Likewise, all shares of
stock are entitled to the distribution of dividends, either in cash or stock dividend.

2. The Company has no stock options, warrants or rights, debt securities, securities subject to

redemption or call, securities other than common equity and other securities, hence, the details
being asked could not be discussed nor disclosed.
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INTEGRATED ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A. In relation to the implementation of the Code on Corporate Governance and the Company’s duly
adopted Manual on Corporate Governance, the Company is always reminded of its reportorial obligation which
should be complied with by the responsible officers of the Company.

B. All material information about the Company which could adversely affect its viability or the interest of
its stockholders and other stakeholders should be publicly and timely disclosed. Such information include, among
others, earnings results, acquisition or disposition of assets, off balance sheet transactions, related party
transactions, and direct and indirect remuneration of members of the Board and Management.

C. Disclosures are reported in the following manner:

1. For changes or updates required to be reported or disclosed under Section 17 of the Securities
Regulation Code (SRC), the Company shall notify the Commission using SEC Form 17-C within
five (5) calendar days from the occurrence of the reportable change to be signed by the duly
authorized officer of the Company;

2. For changes or updates not required to be reported or disclosed under Section 17 of the Securities
Regulation Code (SRC), the Company shall notify the Commission through an advisement letter
stating the changes or updates made within five (5) days from the occurrence of the reportable
change to be signed by the Corporate Secretary and Compliance Officer;

3. To facilitate the disclosure and to harmonize the corporate governance requirements of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the Philippine Stock Exchange, the Company shall
submit an Integrated Annual Corporate Governance Report (I-ACGR) in the following manner:

a. The Company shall submit four (4) copies of a fully accomplished I-ACGR on
May 30 of the following year and every year thereafter;

b. The I-ACGR shall cover all relevant information from January to December of
the given year. At leastone (1) complete copy of the I-ACGR filed with the
Commission shall be duly notarized and shall bear original and manual
signatures of the following required signatories: Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer or President, all Independent Directors, Compliance
Officer and Corporate Secretary;

¢. The IFACGR, with accessible links, shall be posted on the Company’s website
within five (5) business days from submission to the SEC;

The Company, however, is no longer required to file updates and changes on its - ACGR
within five (5) days from the occurrence of the reportorial change(s). Further, the Company
is no longer required to file its Consolidated Changes in the ACGR within ten (10)
days from the end of the year pursuant to SEC Memorandum Circular No. 15, Series of 2017.

D. As evaluation system and as measure of level being undertaken by the Company to fully comply with
the adopted leading practices and principles on good corporate governance, the Company has resorted to the use of
the Corporate Governance Self-Rating.

The Compliance Officer submits a certification concerning the commitment of the Board of Directors and
the Management i.e., officers and staff of Imperial Resources Incorporated, to bind themselves to the principles and
best practices contained in the Manual on Corporate Governance adopted by the Company. Thence, the
Compliance Officer certifies that at a certain date, the Company has completely complied with the same without
deviation, as adopted and submitted to the Securities and Exchange Commission with further certification that the
Board has conducted itself with utmost honesty and integrity in the discharge of its duties, function and
responsibilities.

Within the period covered by the Code on Corporate Governance, there has been no recorded or noticeable
deviation from the Company’s Manual on Corporate Governance. Consequently, there cannot be a disclosure of
the name and position of the persons involved and the sanctions imposed on the said individual.

It is admitted that there are incompleteness or delay in compliance area as shown and explained in the
Corporate Governance Self-Rating Report.
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PART III - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
A. Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD & A) or Plan of Operation
1. Plan of Operations

Mining and Asphalt
In 2015 Mr. Eddy Surohadi of P. T. Aspal Buton and P. T. Indominas, requested funding from the
Company for the various technical works, government taxes and fees, and other construction and

engineering expenses to secure the necessary CNC (Clean and Clear Certificate IUP Production Program
for the coverage area of 1,722 hectares located at Waangu-Angu area .

The Company remitted to Mr. Eddy Surohadi for the account of P. T. Aspal Buton and P. T.
Indominas the amount of US8$99,250 in 2015. So far the Indonesian partners have not requested

additional funding for whatever is needed to secure the formal approval for the exploitation concession of
the above stated area.

The Indonesian partners have been offering the project to other interested entities to enter into a
soint-venture agreement with the Company inasmuch as the project entails huge capital outlay. The

Company is hopeful that the Indonesian partners can find a foreign investor because of the viability of the
project.

The Company has been studying and evaluating a project cost study submitted by a project
proponent pertaining to silica sand quarrying and processing operation. The Company is aware of the
increasing demand for flat glass and glass bottles by local glass manufacturing companies like San
Miguel Corporation and Asia Brewery, Inc. Prospective silica sand mine sites have been identified by
the proponent. While the project cost study shows a fairly good ROI management has been evaluating,
analyzing and discussing further the data used in the project cost study including the impact of the latest
environmental policies, regulations and pronouncements made by various government agencies on the
feasibility and sustainability of the project. Another important factor being considered by management
is the peace and order situation in the prospective silica mining sites. Because of the Covid-19 pandemic
management has shelved the project temporarily.

Techno-Vocational Education, Training and Assessment Project

On March 20, 2013 at the meeting of the Management Committee wherein, all members who are
also directors where present and representing majority of the members of the board unanimously resolved
and approved the dormancy status of PCC due to its non-operation since 2010 and because of the
significant losses incurred by PCC which resulted to a capital deficiency as at December 31, 2018 and
2019 the capital deficiency was P23.5 and 23.8 respectively. As at December 31, 2020 the capital
deficiency is P24.1 million.

Other Business Opportunities

In 2018 the President, Desiderio L. Laperal travelled to Europe for preliminary discussions and
observation of IT-based business applications related to remote sensing of marine and land resources,
land-use, and community development. President Laperal observed driver-less autonomous farm
machinery, robotic steel fabrication and remote-controlled fisheries management systems. He was
impressed with the Green Energy initiatives mandated by the European Union, which is meant to
encourage more reliance on renewable power such as air turbines, hydro and solar. All of these
applications and the downstream business opportunities are relevant to Imperial Resources.
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Mr. Desiderio Laperal travelled to Europe in June 2019 to meet with potential partners and
continue discussions on investment opportunities in the Philippines. On that trip he accompanied two
Italian businessmen to the Philippine Consul in Milan, Italy to confer with Consul General Irene Susan
Natividad and Consul Mersole Mellejor. Mr. Laperal invited the two Italian businessmen to visit Manila

in 2019. The date was subsequently reset to March 2020. The Covid-19 pandemic has caused the visit to
be cancelled.

The development of vaccine by various pharmaceutical companies against COVID-19 during the
latter part of 2020 boosted the hopes for global economic recovery. Management plans to re-establish
communications with the Italian businessmen when travel to Europe becomes safer and less stringent in
order to pursue further discussions on the business opportunities inmitially discussed. Meantime, the
Laperal family will continue to support financially the operations of the Company.

2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The Company has never been into commercial operations since its incorporation. In 2008, its
revenues were derived from its subsidiary’s (PCC) LT. project. In 2009 its revenues were derived from
its subsidiary’s techo-vocational education and training project. Since 2010, except for interest income
earned unrealized gain on foreign exchange, and gain from investment revaluation (2013), no other
‘income was reported because of the temporary suspension of PCC’s Techno-Vocational Project. For
several years the subsidiary (PCC) allowed the Philippine National Internal Affairs Service (Benguet) to
use a portion of the building as its office for free to deter informal settlers from occupying the building.
In 2018 the said agency vacated the place. The subsidiary (PCC) repaired and repainted the building
during the middle part of 2019 to attract more prospective lessees. Currently the building is up for lease.
The subsidiary (PCC) has been receiving offers to lease its building in Baguio City. The latest proposal
received was in January, 2021. Management has been evaluating the said offers.

The yearly losses shown in its financial reports are actually administrative and pre-development
and pre-exploration expenses incurred. Presented below are the consolidated financial highlights of the
Company as of December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018.

2020 2019 2018
Statement of Loss
Revenues 39,503,098 5,509,770 235,140,356
Administrative Expenses 6,402,911 8,112,624 7,440,754
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) (210,396} 149,029 08,581
Balance Sheet
Total Current Assets 2,939,360 3,031,287 3,543,716
Non Current Assets 881,796,748 842,448 369 836,913,501
Total Assets 884,736,108 845,479,656 840,457,211
Current Liabilities 768,864 239,583 2,273,251
Non-Current Liabilities 54,431,832 48,355,794 38,949,859
Total Liabilities 55,200,696 48,595,377 41,223,110
Equity 829,535,412 796,884,279 799,234,167
Total Liabilities and Equity 884,736,108 845,479,656 840,457,277
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The following are the financial soundness indicators for 2020, 2019 and 2018.

i 2020 7 2019 7 2018
() Current/liquidity ratios:
Current assets 2,939 360 = 3.89:] M_: 12.65:1 Mz 1.56:1
Current liabilities 768,864 " 239583 o 2,273,251
(ii) DPebt-to-equity ratios:
Total habilities 55,200,696 _ 0.07-1 48,595,377 - 0.06:1 41,223,110 =  0.05:1
Equity 829,535,412 - 796,884,279 o 799.234,167
(i) Solvency ratios:
Total Liabilities 55,200,696 = 0.06:1 _48,_59_5_,_3_’_77_= 0.06:1 ____4%1_0_= 0.05:1
Total assets 384,736,108 T 845,479,656 T 840,457,277
(iv) Asset-to-equity ratios:
Total assets 384,736,108 = 1.07:1 845,479,656 - 1.06:1 840457277 =  1.05:1
Equity 829,535,412 T 796,884,279 T 799,234,167
(v) Interest rate to coverage ratios (Earnings before interest and taxes/Tnterest expense):
This ratio is not applicable since the Company has no interest expense.
(vi) Profitability ratios (Net profit after taxes/Revenues before cost of services) :
Net profit after taxes 32,861,529 - 0.83:1 52,498,917!=(0 45):1 227,799.518 = 0.97:1
Revenues 39,503,098 o 5,509,770 T 235,140,356

A separate schedule showing the financial soundness indicators is also presented in the
attachments to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in compliance with SRC Rule

68, as amended.

By comparing the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position and Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years 2020 and 2019, the following are the

material (5% or more) changes and their causes:

Statements of Financial Position;

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of Cash on Hand and in Banks including short~term (35-day)
placements. In 2020 the cash inflow of P6.618 million came from advances from
stockholders in the amount of P6.571 million, interest income eamed at P3 Thousand, and
collection of receivables in the amount of P7 Thousand. The cash outflow includes total
administrative expenses incurred amounting to P5.68 million, and payment of retirement
payables amounting to P1.006 million. In 2019 the cash advances from stockholders
amounted to P9.264 million, interest income earned at P10 thousand and collection of
receivables of P22 thousand or total of P9.296 million. The total cash outflow includes
P7.75 million representing administrative expenses and payment of payables amount to
P2.036 million,

. Trade and Other Receivables - Net

In 2020 this amount decreased by about 52.2% or P7.5 thousand due to collection
of salary loans extended to its employees. In 2019 there was a decrease of about 61% or
P22 Thousand for the same reason as in 2020,
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Property and Equipment — Net
The decrease in this amount in 2020 by about 99% or P3 Thousand represents the

depreciation for the year. The decrease in 2019 by about 71% or P7.7 Thousand represents
the depreciation for 2019.

Accruals and Other Payables

In 2020 this amount increased by about 224% or P532 Thousand because of the accrual
of 2020 realty tax due on the Company’s investment property. In 2019 the decrease of
about 90% or P2.04 million was due primarily to the payment of the accrued realty tax due
on the Company’s investment property.

Income Tax Payable

In 2020 there is no income tax payable unlike in 2019 where there was a P2.5
Thousand income tax payable arising from unrealized gain in 2018 amounting to P126
thousand realized in 2019.

Advances from Sharcholders
In 2020 a stockholder advanced a P6.6 Million, hence, an increase by about 15%.
In 2019 a stockholder advanced P9.26 Million or a 26.8% increase over 2018 figure.

Investment property

The appraisal value of this property in 2020 increased by 5% or P39.5 Million. The
increase in the appraisal valoe in 2019 over 2018 figure was not material.

Statements of Comprehensive Income:

1.

Revenue

The other income account consists of gain from investment revaluation, interest
income and unrealized gain on foreign exchange. In 2020 the appraisal value of the
investment property was P830 Million, while in 2019 it was P790.5 Million or an increase
of P39.5 Million which is about 5%. In 2019 there was an increase of 0.7% or P5.5
Million from the appraised value of P785 Million in 2018. In 2020 interest income
decreased by 68.3% or P7 Thousand compared to 2018 figure.

Administrative Expenses

2.1.  Salaries and Wages

This account decreased by about 16% or P436 thousand because of the two-month
lockdown due to COVID-19 Pandemic and the retirement of one (1) employee compared
to the figure in 2019. The decrease of about 12.2% or P387 Thousand in 2019 was caused
by the resignation of two employees.

2.2.  S8SS, Philhealth and HDMF Contribution

This account decreased by about 129% or P65 thousand due to the retirement of
one (1) employee. There was a 28% decrease in this account in 2019 or about P20
Thousand due to the resignation of two (2) employees during the year.

2.3 Utilities

This account decreased by about 9% or P48 Thousand because of the two-months
lock-down due to the COVID-19 Pandemic. The decrease in the use of mobile phones in
2019 resulted to a decrease by about 8.2% or P49 Thousand over 2018 figure.
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2.4 Director’s Fee

The increase of about 9% or P20 Thousand in 2020 was due to the fact that there
were no recorded absences by board members unlike in 2019 where there were two
recorded absences by board members. The recorded absences in 2018 was three (3),
hence, the increase of about 15% or P30 Thousand.

2.5. Retirement Benefit Expense

In 2020 one (1) employee retired resulting to the decrease of about 41% or P145
thousand over the figure in 2019. The increase by about 6% or P21 thousand in 2019
compared to the 2018 figure was brought about by the increase in the service cost and
interest expense on defined benefit obligation.

2.6. Taxes and Licenses

This account decreased by about 16% or P436 thousand in 2020 because in 2019
the Company took advantage of the amnesty program implemented by the Quezon City
government wherein it paid all realty taxes due on its investment property. This also

caused the increase of this account by about 199% or P987 thousand compared to the
figure in 2018.

2.7. Depreciation

In 2020 there were office equipment that were fully depreciated causing the
decrease by about 59% or P4.6 thousand. The same is true in 2019 causing the decrease of
about 62% or P12.8 thousand compared to 2018 figure.

2.8. Insurance

Some of the vehicles being used by the Company are already old. In 2020 the
insurance premium for two (2) vehicles went down resulting to decrease of about 5% or
P2.1 Thousand. In 2019 because of the age of the vehicles the former insurance agency
declined to insure these vehicles so management got another insurance agency willing to

insure them although at a higher rate. This gave rise to the 33% increase or P11 Thousand
in 2019.

2.9 . Repair & Maintenance

This account includes repair and maintenance of the building owned by subsidiary
(PCCC), vehicles being used by the Company officers and employees, computers, printers,
xerox machine and other office equipment In 2020 this account decreased by about 48%
or P91 Thousand compared to the 2019 figure unlike in 2019 where there was no repair
done on the PCC building in Baguio City. During 2019, the vehicles were in much better
running condition, hence, the decrease. However, this decrease was offset by the cost of
repairs and repainting of PCCC’s building resulting to a net increase in the amount of P22
Thousand or 13% compared to the 2018 figure.

2.10. Supplies and other expenses

This account includes computer and office supplies, advertising and printing
expenses. Because of the two-month lock-down in 2020 the consumption of various
supplies decreased by about 32% or P23 Thousand compared to the 2019 figure. In 2019
this account decreased by about 32.5% or P34 Thousand due to lesser consumption of
computer supplies and lesser advertisement for job opening.
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2.11 Representation and entertainment

This account increased by 100% in 2020. There was no amount disbursed for this
account in 2019 and 2018.

2.12 Penalties and surcharges
In 2020 the company did not incur any penalty or surcharges unlike in 2019 where it

incutred P54 Thousand penalty expenses on realty tax for years 2014 to 2019. There was
none in 2018.

2.13 Miscellaneous expenses
In 2020 the decrease by about 9% or P27 Thousand compared to 2019 figure was

due to the miscellaneous expenses incurred in renovating the building in Baguio City in
2019. There was none of this nature in 2018.

Material Event/s and Uncertainties

Other than the disclosures made in this report including those contained in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements and its Subsidiary which includes some material events after balance
sheet date, the Group has nothing to report on the following:

)

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)
)

(vi)

(vii)

Any known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will result in or that
are reasonably likely to result in the Group’s liquidity increasing or decreasing in any material
way, except for the impact of COVID-19 Pandemic which is discussed in page 25.

Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the Group,
including any default or acceleration of obligation. The Group is not in default or in breach of
any note, loan, lease or other indebtedness or financing arrangements requiring it to make
payments. Except for the advances made by a major stockholder the Group has no trade
payables and there is no significant amount in its other payables that has not been paid within
the stated terms. There is no identifiable material deficiency since the major stockholders are
committed to fund the Group’s operations.

Material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent
obligations) and other relationships of the Group with unconsolidated entities or other persons
created during the reporting period.

Any other material commitments for capital expenditures.

Any known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to
have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/revenues, income from
continuing operations, except for the effect of COVID-19 Pandemic which is discussed on
pages 4-35.

Any significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the issuer’s continuing
operations.

Any seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of
operations except for the effect of COVID-19 Pandemic.
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Company Vision

To become a self-sustaining and profitable Company for a long period of time by providing
energy and energy-related products as its contributions to enhance energy supply in the country.

3. Changes in and Disagreements with the Group’s accountants on Accounting and
Financial Disclosure

There was no disagreement with the Group’s external auditors on matters relating to
accounting principles or practices or financial disclosures or auditing scope or procedures during the last
three (3) fiscal years.

In December, 2010, the Group engaged the services of Villaruz, Villaruz & Co.,CPA’s with office
address at Unit 3, 9" Floor, Galleria Corporate Center, EDSA corner Ortigas Avenue, Quezon City to
audit the financial statements of Imperial Resources Incorporated (Parent Entity) and Philippine Cyber
College Corp. (Subsidiary) as at December 31, 2010. The said auditing firm audited the financial
statements of the Parent Entity and its Subsidiary for the succeeding years. The Professional fees as
agreed upon for the years 2020, 2019 and 2018 are presented below:

PROFESSIONAL 1220 VALUE OUT OFPOCKET TOTAL

FEE ADDED TAX EXPENSES
IMPERIAL RESOURCES, INC.
2020 200,000.00 24,000.00 20,000.00 244,000.00
2019 200,000.00 24,000.00 20,000.00  244,000.00
20138 200,000.00 24,000.00 20,000.00 244,000.00
600,000.00 72,000.00 60,000.00  732,000.00
PHILIPPINE CYBER COLLEGE CORP.
2020 10,000.00 1,200.00 - 11,200.00
2019 10,600.00 1,200.00 - 11,200.00
2018 10,000.00 1,200.00 - 11,200.00
30,000.00 3,600.00 - 33,600.00
630,000.00 75,600.00 60,000.00 765,600.00

For the Parent Entity an out of pocket expenses equivalent to 10% of the professional fee covering travel,

‘meals, communication, printing, etc. shall be billed separately. For the Subsidiary actual out of pocket expenses

incurred in the course of audit shall be billed separately.

For the years 2010 to 2013, inclusive, the signing partner was Mrs. Normita L. Villaruz and for the years
2014 to 2018, the signing partner is Mr. George V. Villaruz. For the year 2019 and 2020, the signing partner is
Mrs. Normita L. Villaruz. The Group will rotate the signing partner of its external auditors at least every five (5)
years to comply with the requirements of SRC Rule 68 (3) (b} (iv).

EXTERNAL AUDIT FEES

1. The scope of the audit services rendered by Villaruz, Villaruz & Co., CPA’s for the fiscal year
2020 and prior years is as follows:

a. Audit and examination of the statement of financial position as at December 31,
2020 and the related statements of comprehensive income, statements of equity and
of cash flows as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020 of Imperial
Resources Incorporated and its subsidiary, Philippine Cyber College Corp.;

b. Submission of the proposed auditor’s adjusting journal eniries and review of the
draft of the audited financial statements after the posting of the approved audit
adjustments as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020 to come up with the
Company’s audited financial statements which shall be prepared by the Company’s
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accountant and which will be reviewed by Villaruz, Villaruz & Co., CPA’s, in
compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 16 dated December 10, 2009.
¢. Review of the annual income tax return which shall be prepared by the Company

accountant based on the audited financial statements for the year ended December
31,20120

2. Aside from the above-mentioned audit services there were no other professional services
rendered by Villaruz, Villaruz & Co., CPA’s for the fiscal year 2020 and prior years.

(2) Under the caption “Tax Fees”

There is nothing to report under “Tax Fees” caption since the external auditors did not perform any
tax accounting, compliance, advice, planning and any other form of tax services.

(b) Under the caption “All Other Fees”

There is nothing to disclose under this category since no services was rendered other than the audit
services as described earlier and as provided by the external auditors.

(¢) The engagement proposal for the audit of the financial statements of Imperial Resources
Incorporated and its subsidiary, Philippine Cyber College Corp., was reviewed by the members of the audit
committee before the approval by the management.

“~ Financial Statements :

The Company’s audited Financial Statements and its Subsidiary including the Consolidated
Financial Staternents as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, were approved and authorized for issuance by
the Vice - President, Mr. Desiderio L. Laperal during the meeting of the Board of Directors held on April
14, 2021 after these were reviewed and recommended for approval by the Audit Committee on April 14,
2021 The said Financial Statements are submitted with this report and incorporated in the 2020 Annual
Report to security holders to be presented to the stockholders during the annual stockholders’ meeting for
approval.

The Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for three (3) years, Notes to Financial Statements
(Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes), Representations as to the Audit, General Notes to Financial
Statements including applicable supplementary schedules as required under Annex 68-J and 68-E of Rule
68, are also submitted with this report.

~-~IMPACT OF ENHANCED (ECQ) AND MODERATE ENHANCED (MECQ) COMMUNITY
QUARANTINE ON THE OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

Immediately after the Government imposed the Enhanced Community Quarantine (ECQ) on
March 15, 2020, management gave priority to the safety and well-being of its employees by temporarily
stopping the operations of the Company. The quarantine entailed more expenses and difficulties for the
employees to meet their daily needs and health issues. To allay the fears and anxieties of its employees
facing uncertaintjes about their financial as well as health conditions one of the officers of the Company
advanced the employees® 13" month pay and paid leave in full.

After two (2) months of lockdown on May 18, 2020 when the Modified Fnhanced Community
Quarantine (MECQ) was imposed the Company started operating again. The primary concem of the
Company was how to the keep its employees fit to work, protect them from being afflicted with the
COVID-19 virus and implementing the many government-imposed restrictions and guidelines. The
following actions have been taken up by the Company in line with the prescribed procedures by the
government to mitigate the negative effects of the pandemic on its employees® mental well-being and
physical and emotional health:
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a. The Company has been providing its personnel with shuttle service to and from work every
day and for some, sleeping quarters, TV and laundry area within the office premises,

b. Providing facial masks, face shields, isopropyl alcohol, hand sanitizers and or soap. The
employees are obliged to wash/sanitize their hands more often. Alcohol and sanitizers are
provided to visitors upon entering the office.

c. Appropriate social distancing is made a protocol not only inside but outside of the work

place.

. Communications are done mostly through electronic mail or telephone.

Frequent disinfection of the work place.

f.  Company-paid mandatory Rapid test and swab test if necessary. Employees are urged to
be vigilant always and to disclose their health problems or possible exposure of the virus
including their families or other persons they had close contact with. Free medical check-
up and testing when perceived symptoms of COVID-19 are experienced.

g. Providing Multi-vitamins, farm-fresh organic vegetables and fruits to strengthen the
immune system of the employees.

h. Starting from September 2020 the Company has granted a temporary COVID -19 related
cash benefit to all employees at Pesos: Two Thousand (P2,000) per month per employee to
help them cope with the rising cost of living and transportation. This benefit will be
discontinued as soon as the business condition improves and at the discretion of
management,

i. Continuous dissemination of information to the employees on how to protect themselves
and their families and prevent the spread of COVID-19.

J- Management is studying ways and means of helping its employees regarding the
vaccination program against Covid-19 in relation to the policies and programs to be
implemented by the government.

o o

In July, 2020 one employee was tested positive of COVID -19. Management ordered a one-
week lockdown and disinfection of the whole work area. After a month of quarantine, he recovered.
Being a senior citizen, he opted to retire.

_ When Metro Manila shifted from MECQ to GCQ the government relaxed the guidelines for

“..-public transportation to operate, hence, more public transportation became available. However,
management decided to continue providing transportation facilities to its employees to lessen their
exposure to COVID-19.

Management has been using various modes of remote communication such as teleconferencing,
videoconferencing and electronic mail system. The new normal way of conducting staff meetings is
videoconferencing. All the meetings of the Board of Directors including the annual stockholders’
meeting in 2020 were held through videoconferencing. All the members of the Board attended the PSE-
SEC Corporate Governance Forum on July 10, 2020 to keep abreast of the effects of the COVID-19
Pandemic on the national economy and the people, risk management strategies, pursuit of corporate
sustainability based on experiences from the pandemic and SEC regulatory updates. The members of the
Board were enlightened about the importance of the sustainability reporting in mitigating various risks.

After studying, evaluating, and analyzing the Company’s current office and work set-up and the
nature of the work of the employees, management concluded that work-from-home mode of work is
difficult to adopt. Employees lack computer equipment, inadequate internet connections at their homes,
their home conditions are not suited for home-based work are some reasons why work-from- home
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cannot be adopted. The plan of management to adopt skeletal force to minimize cost was shelved
because of limited manpower specially so that one employee retired.

This COVID-19 Pandemic has greatly affected the human and financial resources of the
Company. The Company’s survival has been a pressing and challenging issue. Despite the economic
and health benefits management has been extending its employees they still experience anxiety, lack of
focus and concentration, fear for the health of their families, frequent absences, uncertainty of the future
resulting to a below-par performance in discharging their duties and responsibilities. The administrative
costs for the year 2020 went up due to the transportation and gasoline expenses incurred in transporting
its employees and use of vehicles for messengerial activities. The medical and dental expenses of the
employees also increased due to the mandatory rapid and swab testing and more frequent medical check-
ups. Office and other supplies increased due to the COVID-19 related supplies purchased. Business
opportunities in 2020 have not been actively pursued. Preliminary talks were either postponed or
cancelled. Formal offers to lease the Subsidiary’s property in Baguio were received. One offer was to
lease for educational purposes but did not materialize because of the changing educational policies and
programs by the government. Currently, management is evaluating the latest offer to lease said property.
Management is optimistic that it can lease the property in 2021.

MAP OF THE CONGLOMERATE OR GROUP OF COMPANIES WITHIN WHICH THE
REPORTING ENTITY BELONGS

IMPERIAL RESOURCES INCORPORATED
(IRI)

Philippine Cyber Coliege Corporation
(99% owned by IR))
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PART V - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES
Exhibits and Reports

(a) EXHIBITS

“A” - Management Report

“B” - Cases where Mr. Oliverio L. Laperal, Jr. and Mr. Desiderio L. Laperal represented the
Corporation as parties-litigants

“C” - Resume of Board of Directors and Officers

“D” - 17-Q Quarterly Report as of March 31, 2021

“E” - 2020 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

“F” - Certification of Independent Directors

(b) MATTERS DISCLOSED FOR THE LAST 6 MONTHS
The Corporate Secretary of the Registrant Corporation has disclosed to the Securities and

Exchange Commission and the Philippine Stock Exchange, the following material matters for the last six
(6) months:

" A. September 03, 2020

The regular annual meeting of the stockholders of Imperial Resources Incorporated was held
today, September 03, 2020, conducted through personal appearance/attendance and the mode of
videoconferencing (google zoom platform) at Events Place, Unit 206 2nd Floor, Villa Building, No. 78
Jupiter Street, Bel-Air, Makati City, Metro Manila.

Upon call to order by the Chairman, the Corporate Secretary was made to report on the proof of
notice of the meeting.

The Corporate Secretary then reported that copies of the Definitive Information Statement (SEC

FORM 20-IS) containing the written notice of the Annual Stockholders' Meeting of Imperial Resources

Incorporated set for September 03, 2020, together with the Agenda of the meeting, were sent by remote

communication facility, postal mail and messengerial services under his personal supervision, beginning

\.—-on August 11, 2020, to all stockholders of record of Imperial Resources Incorporated at their respective
postal and electronic mail (e-mail) addresses as shown in the books of the corporation.

The notice of the annual meeting was likewise published in the August 11, 2020 issue of the
Philippine Star and August 12, 2020 issue of the Manila Bulletin.

The Securities and Exchange Commission and the Philippine Stock Exchange were notified of the
meeting and furnished with copies of the notice of the Annual Stockholders' Meeting and Agenda of the
meeting, all contained in SEC FORM 20-IS on August 06, 2020 through electronic mail (e-mail) and
August 10, 2020 stamp received by Securities and Exchange Commission.

The transfer agent of the company Professional Stock Transfer, Inc. was notified of the Anmual
Stockholders' Meeting on August 07, 2020 thru email and the Auditor, Villaruz, Villaruz & Co., CPAs
was potified also of the Annual Stockholders' Meeting on August 10, 2020 through electronic mail (e-
mail).
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The Corporate Secretary concluded that all requirements of the law and the by-laws of the
corporation concerning the giving of notices of the regular annual stockholders' meeting to all
stockholders of record entitled to vote and other agencies of the government have been complied with,

The Chairman then proceeded to the next item on the agenda which was the Declaration of
Quorum.

The Corporate Secretary further reported that the books of Imperial Resources Incorporated show
that as of the record date on July 21, 2020, the total number of shares outstanding and entitled to vote in
the annual stockholders' meeting is Six Hundred Fifty-Two Million Five Hundred Thousand
(652,500,000) Common Shares, with the par value of One Peso (Php1.00) per share. Of said number of
shares Twenty-Six Million Seven Hundred Forty-Eight Thousand Three Hundred Seventy-Five
(26,748,375) shares were present in person and those represented by holders of Special Power of
Attorney and of unsolicited proxies.

Thus the number of shares present in person and by holders of Special Power of Attorney and of
unsolicited proxies in the meeting is Four point Zero Nine Nine Fourth percent (4.0994%) percent of the
. subscribed and outstanding capital stock entitled to vote.

The Corporate Secretary then reported that no quorum was reached in the meeting.
Upon motion and duly seconded, the annual stockholders' meeting was adjourned sine die.

The members of the Board of Directors retain their position/office on hold over basis owing the
declaration of no quorum. The majority and substantial shares of the outstanding capital stock of Imperial
Resources Incorporated, under the name of deceased Mr. Oliverio G. Laperal, Sr., remain pending for
probate proceedings and without an executor/administrator being appointed as yet.

B. List of Top 100 Stockholders (Quarterly Report-PSE/SEC)
C. Public Ownership Report (Quarterly Report-PSE/SEC)
D. Report on Number of Shareholders (Monthly Report-PSE/SEC)
E. Foreign Ownership Report (Monthly Report-PSE/ SEC)

.- F. September 30, 2020 - 2020 General Information Sheet (SEC/PSE)
G. Quarterly Report (17-Q —PSE/SEC)

The principles governing good Corporate Governance shall be adopted as stated in the manual and
circular of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The foregoing matters form part of our disclosure of what may be considered as material
information which may affect the value and trading of securities of Imperial Resources Incorporated.
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UNDERTAKING

Upon the written request of a stockholder, the Company undertakes to furnish said
stockholder a copy of SEC Form 17-A free of charge. Such written request should be directed to
the Office of the Corporate Secretary, Atty. Jesus Vicente B. Capellan with address at Unit 202
Villa Building, No. 78 Jupiter Street, Bel-Air, Makati City, Metro Manila or to 82-J 4t Street,
Mariana, New Manila, Quezon City.
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CASES WHERE MR. OLIVERIO L. LAPE

IMP-SEC Form 20:IS (DIS)

ANNEX “B”
L ITEM

ATTY. JESUS VICENTE B. CAPELLAN ARE NAMED PARTY-LITIGANTS.

Case Title

Spouses Emilio & Cresencia Valdez, et al. vs. Spouses Oliverio
G. Laperal
and Emma L. Laperal, et al.
Docketed as Civil Case No. 5236-R
Regional Trial Court, Branch 61
Baguio City

Date Filed

May 10, 2002

Nature
of the Action

This a case was filed by the Valdez’ against the Laperals, et al. for
annulment of documents and recovery of possession with damages

Status

Said case was dismissed against Spouses Oliverio G. Laperal and
Emma L. Laperal and Philippine Cyber College Corp., in a
resolution dated April 8, 2011. But the plamtiffs appealed to the
Court of Appeals which reversed the order of dismissal by the RTC
and directed that the case be tried on the merits. From the adverse
order, defendants filed a petition for review on certiorari before the
Supreme Court. Said Court, however, affirmed the findings of the
Court of Appeals. Hence, the case is pending trial on the merits
before the Regional Trial Court.

By the death of Oliverio G. Laperal, Sr. on August 26, 2018 and
Emma I.. Laperal on December 1, 2003, they are now substituted by
their legitimate children, namely: Victorina I. Laperal, Oliverio L.
Laperal, Jr., Rosamaria L. Laperal, Regina Laperal-Concepcion,
Desiderio L. Laperal, and Alexandra Laperal-Aquino.

Case Title

Victorina L. Laperal, et al., vs. Filipinas Golf & Country Club,
Inc., et al.
Docketed as Civil Case No. Q-09-221
Regional Trial Court, Branch 93
Quezon City, Metro Manila

Status

This is a civil case filed by Victorina L. Laperal, Rosamaria L.
Laperal, Regina L. Concepcion and Alexandra L. Laperal (the
“plaintiffs”) against the Company on July 15, 2009, asking the court
to order the Company to issue their respective  proprietary
membership certificates.

On September 7, 2009, Oliverio G. Laperal, Sr. (“Laperal Sr.”) filed
a motion for leave to admit his complaint-in-intervention with the
attached complaint-in-intervention against the plaintiffs. He asserted
his real and beneficial ownership over the proprietary membership
certificates claimed by the plaintiffs and thus, prayed that the court
must dismiss the case for lack of cause of action. On September 7,
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2009, the Company filed its verified answer to the complaint. The
plaintiffs then filed their reply to the answer on October 08, 2009,

On January 11, 2010 the parties filed a joint motion to suspend the
proceedings for a period of one hundred twenty (120) days to give
them ample opportunity to discuss the possibility of an amicable
settlement. Thereafter, the scheduled hearings of the case have been
reset given the parties’ joint manifestations that they are still
finalizing the terms of the settlement.

From May 28, 2013 until July 18, 2013, the parties underwent
mediation proceedings.

On November 26, 2013, the court issued an order directing the
parties to submit their Pre-Trial Briefs and the judicial affidavits of
their witnesses. The Pre-Trial Brief was due on January 29, 2014.

On January 27, 2014, the parties filed a Joint Motion to Suspend
Submission of Pre-Trial Briefs and Judicial Affidavits for the reason
that they are very close to concluding an amicable settlement of the

case. The request for suspension was granted in open court on
January 29, 2014.

Since then, the case has been set for Judicial Dispute Resolution
(“JDR™) several times, but these JDR sessions have been cancelled
and reset to provide the parties the opportunity for an amicable
settlement.

However, on September 23, 2020, the court issued an order
remanding the case for appropriate action in view of the amendments
introduced by A.M. No. 19-10-20-SC, particularly the Rules on Pre-
Trial vis-a-vis JDR Conference.

Thus, on October 5, 2020, the court issued an order setting the case
for Pre-Trial Conference on December 1, 2020, and requiring the
parties to appear before the Branch Clerk of Court for Preliminary
Conference on November 19, 2020.

On November 18, 2020 the parties filed an Urgent Joint
Manifestation and Motion to Suspend the Proceedings (“Motion to
Suspend”). The parties manifested that intervenor Laperal Sr. passed
away on August 26, 2018, and that the Regional Trial Court of
Makati, before which the intervenor’s Last Will and Testament is
being probated, has yet to issue letters testamentary in favor of
defendant Desiderio L. Laperal (“defendant Laperal”) as executor of
the Last Will and Testament of intervenor Laperal Sr. Thus,
defendant Laperal is not yet authorized to act on behalf of the estate
of the deceased intervenor and to file the requisite pleadings on
behalf of the intervenor for the preliminary conference. The parties
also asked the court to cancel the preliminary conference, cancel the
pre-trial conference, and to suspend the proceedings for a period of
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ninety (90) days as they are actively involved in negotiations for an
amicable resolution of this and several other cases pending between
them and the courts, and are earnestly seeking a global settlement.

The parties attended the Preliminary Conference on November 19,
2020, and manifested that they filed the Motion to Suspend. The
preliminary conference did not push through because of the
pendency of the Motion to Suspend. The Branch Clerk instead
directed the parties to attend the scheduled pre-~trial conference on
December 1, 2020, where the Motion to Suspend will be heard.

The parties went to court on December 1, 2020, but the bearing that
day was cancelled because the judge was unavailable. The parties
were told by the court that the hearing would be reset to a later date.
The court has yet to issue any order identifying the new hearing date.
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ANNEX “C”

RESUME OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

1. Directors and Officers

HORACIO M. PASCUAL, 88

IMPERIAL RESOURCES INCORPORATED
EDUCATIONAL ATTAINMENT:

1950

1952

1964
1979

OTHER BUSINESS EXPERIENCE:

Filipinas Golf & Country Club, Inc.

H.M. Pascual Law Office

Acsay Pascual And Associates Law Office

Legal and Policy Research Department &
Enterprises Operations Department

Export Processing Zone Authority

Chief Policy Research Officer

Program Implementation Agency

Xavierville Homeowner’ Association

AFFILIATIONS AND MEMBERSHIPS:
‘.. integrated Bar of the Philippines, Isabela
American Society of International Law, U.S.A

Chairman of the Board (July 19, 2018 to present)

St. Williams College- Association in Arts (Pre-Law)
National University — Bachelor of Science in
Education

Manuel L. Quezon University — Bachelor of Law
NDCP ~ Master of National Security Administration
(MNSA)

PUP - Doctor of Public Administration (earned 21
units)

Director
Partner
Partner

Director

Director

Presidential Economic Staff
Administrative Assistant
President

Director

International Society for the Study of Comparative Public Law, U.S.A.
Philippine Association of Technical Assistance Participants, Manila

ELM Association of the Philippines, Inc., Maniia

DESIDERIO L. LAPERAL, 66

IMPERIAL RESOURCES INCORPORATED

President/CEO (July 14, 2016 to July 13, 2017)
(July 19, 2018 to July 11, 2019)
Vice-President/Chief Financial Officer (July 13,
2017 to July 11, 2019) Vice-President (1996 to July
2016)(July 13,2017 — July 18, 2018)

Treasurer (1996 to July, 2016)

Director (1977-1981;1996 to present)
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EDUCATIONAL ATTAINMENT:

1965 - 1971 - Elementary — La Salle, Mandaluyong City
1971 - 1973 - Institute Le Rosey, Switzerland — High School
1973 - 1978 - B. S. Finance -University of Santa Clara, USA

OTHER BUSINESS EXPERIENCE:
Pacifica, Inc. - Vice-President/Treasurer (1996 to July 1997)
- Vice-President (1976 to 1981)
- Director (1978 to August 2010)
Filipinas Golf & Country Club, Inc. - Senior Vice-President (1991 to 2000)
- Vice-President (1990 to 2000)
- Director (1979 to present)
- President (2001 to 2014}

Philippine Cyber College Corp. - Vice-President/Treasurer (2000 to present)
\___LMI Holdings Corporation - Vice-President/Treasurer (1997 to present)

Laperal Realty Corporation - Vice-President/Treasurer (1985 to present)

Rockway Real Estate Corporation - Vice-President (1982 to present)

LTC Real Estate Corporation - Vice-President /Treasurer (1982 to present)

Keystone Agricultural Ventures, Inc. - President (1982 to present)

Imperial Development Corporation - Vice-President /Treasurer (1985 to present)

Phil. Hybrid Seeds, Inc. - Vice-President (1980 to present)

Phil. Agro-Research Corporation - President (1980 to present)

AFFILIATIONS AND MEMBERSHIPS:
Rotary Club of Makati-Ayala - Charter Member (1983 to present)

OLIVERIO L. LAPERAL, JR. 71

“~IMPERIAL RESOURCES INCORPORATED - President/Chief Executive Officer (July 13,2017 to
July 18,2018, July 11, 2019)
- Vice — President /Chief Financial Officer/ Treasurer
(July 14, 2016 to July 13,2017,
July 19, 2018 to July 19, 2018)
- Director (March 28, 2016 to present)

EDUCATIONAL ATTAINMENT:

1968 - 1969 - De La Salle University (Mla.) School of
Engineering

1969 - 1973 - Cornell University (NY, USA) BS. Honors

1973 - 1975 - Comell University (NY, USA) MBA

OTHER BUSINESS EXPERIENCE:

Statler Hotel, New York, USA - Front Desk Manager. 1974-1975
Chemical Bank of New York, Wall St, USA Assistant Manager. 1975
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Holiday Inn. Vancouver BC, Canada - Assistant Manager. 1975

Pioneer Savings & Loan. Manila - Director & VP for Marketing. 1975-1980

Pacific Shores Capital Dev Corp. - Exec VP. 1975-1980

R. S Video & Film Productions - President & Managing Dir. 1980- present

Filipinas Golf & Country Club, Inc. - Co-President/Managing Dir. 1975-1980. 2016- presen

AFFILIATIONS AND MEMBERSHIPS:

Society of Motion Picture and Television Engineers (SMPTE), New York, USA
National Association of Broadcasters. Washington, DC, USA

Adverting Suppliers Association of the Phils.

Commercial Production House Group

Rotary Club of Makati West

Phil. Practical Shooting Asso. Phil National Team.

Waterski Asso. of the Philippines. Phil National Team. Southeast Asian record holder.
Manila Polo Club.

Alabang Country Club
Subic Bay Yacht Club
Tagaytay Highlands & Midlands.
“—Licensed Pilot. Instrument Rated. Philippines & USA. Licensed drone commercial pilot.

VILMA B. VILLANUEVA, 78
IMPERIAL RESOURCES INCORPORATED

Comptroller (2001 to present)

- Chief Accounting Officer (2001 to present)
- Assistant Treasurer (1974 to present)

- Director (1994 to present)

EDUCATIONAL ATTAINMENT:

1948 - 1954 - Mangatarem Elementary School
1954 - 1958 - Mangatarem High School
N 1958 - 1962 - University of the East - BBA (Accounting) CPA
1969 - 1971 - Letran College — MBA (Undergraduate)
OTHER BUSINESS EXPERIENCE:
Pacifica, Inc. - Director (1994 to July 1997)
- Treasurer (1977 to July 1997)
Liberty Mines, Inc. - Director (1990 to 1996)
- Asst. Corporate Secretary & Asst. Treasurer (1979
t01996)
Filipinas Golf & Country Club, Inc. - Comptroller/Chief Accounting Officer  (May
2008 to present)

- Director (1989 to present)

- Assistant Secretary (1990 to 1994)

- Treasurer (1995 to April 2008)
Imperial Development Corporation - Assistant Treasurer (1986 to present)
Keystone Agricultural Ventures, Inc. - Director (2000 to present)
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GENELITA G. MANANDIC, 58

IMPERIAL RESOURCES INCORPORATED

EDUCATIONAL ATTAINMENT:
1970 - 1976
1976 - 1980
1981 - 1986

OTHER BUSINESS EXPERIENCE:
Filipinas Golf and Country Club, Inc.
COCOLIFE

Everlasting Memorial Park

Subic Bay Waterfront Development Corporation
. Thocaris One Inc.

——Matthews Cremation Division

Fruit and Veggie Friends Club, Inc.

ANTHONY NELSON G. MENDQZA, 78
IMPERIAL RESOURCES INCORPORATED

EDUCATIONAL ATTAINMENT:
1971 - 1973
1965 - 1968
1961 - 1965

1959 - 1961

1955 - 1959
1949 — 1955

OTHER BUSINESS EXPERIENCE:
Blessed Entrepreneurial Agribusiness
Dev’t. Corp.

Bless Tahanan Corporation

Bless Microfinance Corporation

San Miguel Corporation

Brunei Shell Petroleum

Economic Development Foundation
Rotary Club of Kuala Belait Brunei
Kiwanis Club of Metropolis Quezon City

IMP-SEC Form 20-IS {DIS)
Dec, 21, 2020

Independent Director (June 10, 2010 to present)

Balanga Elementary School
Tomas Del Rosario Academy
Civil Engineering - University of the East

Director (April 2010 to present)
Life Underwriter (1991 to 1992)
Agency Manager (1992 to 1995)
Marketing Manager (1995 to 1996)
Group Manager (1996 to 1999)
Partners (1990 to date)

Phil. Representative (1990 to date)
Founder, Lecturer (1994 to date)

Independent Director (April 21, 2010 to present)

De La Salle University - MBA

Loyola House, Ateneo Manila — Theology
San Jose Seminary, Atenco Manila

AB Philosphy, Cum Laude

San Jose Seminary, CDO — AA Humanities,
Valedictorian

High School — Honor Class — ICC, Ozamis
Elementary

President / CEO (2007 to present})

President / CEO (2006 to present)
President / CEO (1998 to present)

Sales Service Manager (1987 to 1996)
Senior Staff Logistics (1985 to 1987)
Planning Manager (B-Meg) (1983 to 1985)
OD Consultant (1979 to 1981)

OD Adviser (1981)

Management Consultant (1973 to 1978)
Member (1981)

President (1989 to 1990)
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Fraternitas
Rotary Club of Palanyag Paranaque
Rotary Club of Alabang

JESUS VICENTE B. CAPELLAN, 54

IMPERIAL RESOURCES INCORPORATED

EDUCATIONAL ATTAINMENT:
1973 - 1980
1980 - 1984
1984 - 1985

1985 - 1988

1988 - 1993

OTHER BUSINESS EXPERIENCE:
Filipinas Golf & Country Club, Inc.

LTC Real Estate Corporation
Philippine Cyber College Corp.
Imperial Development Corporation

Keystone Agricultural Ventures, Inc.
Laperal Realty Corporation

1.MI Holdings Corporation
San Beda College Alabang, School of Law

] _.The Firm of Sarmiento Delson & Resurreccion

Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR)
Manila Bulletin Corporation

Ateneo De Manila University (Loyola)
De La Salle (Greenhills)

National Center for Mediation
Philippine Institute of Arbitrators, Inc.

AFFILIATIONS AND MEMBERSHIPS:

IMP-SEC Form 20-1S {DIS)
Dec. 31, 2020

President (1994 to 1999)
President (2004 to 2006)
President Elect / VP (2008 to 2009)

Corporate Secretary/Director (Feb. 28,2014 to
present)

Elementary — Saint Ferdinand College

High School — San Jacinto Seminary

San Pablo Seminary - Bachelor of Arts in
Philosophy

University of Santo Tomas — Bachelor of Arts in
Philosophy

Post Graduate - University of Santo Tomas —
Bachelors of Laws

Corporate Secretary/Director (Feb. 28, 2014 to
present)

Corporate Secretary
Corporate Secretary
Corporate Secretary
Corporate Secretary
Trial Lawyer

Corporate Secretary
Corporate Secretary
Trial Lawyer

Corporate Secretary
Faculty/Consultant

Of Counsel

Apprentice

Trial Lawyer/Consultant
Trial Lawyer

Trial Lawyer

Asst. Vice-President
Member

~ President, UST AB Pax Romana (Social Action Center) (1986-1988)

Treasurer, UST AB Philosophy Council (1986-1988)

Member, UST AB Legion of Mary (1986-1988)

Member, Knights of Columbus, Council No. 7884

(UST College Council) (1987-Present)
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMS:
SEC FORM 17-Q

1. For the quarterly period ended: March 31, 2021
2 Comrmssmn identification number; 39243 3. BIR Tax Identification No.: 000-463-670

IMPERIAL RESOURCES, INC.

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

4. Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter

Metro Mamla, Philippines

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

' 6. Indlistry' Classiﬁcation Code: (SEC Use Only)

© Unit 202 Villa Building, No. 78 anlter Street corner Makati Avenue, Barangay Bel- Air,
Makati City 1200 ‘

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

7 Addressoflssuer's prmmpa.l office ~ Postal Code
(632) 724-2986

8. Issuer's telephone number, including area code:

82-J 4% Street, New Manila, Quezon City

9. Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report
."1'0. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code, or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA
Title of each Class - Number of shares of common
stock outstanding and amount
of debt outstanding

* Common Voting Shares — P1.00 par valie
- 652,500,000 Million Voting Shares 652,500,000 Million Voting Shares

There are no debt securities

Amount of Debt Qutstanding — 56,302,109

IRI-SEC Form 170
March 31, 2021



One Hundred Fifty Million (150,000,000) Common voting shates are e;:empt'ed from registration

11, Are any or all of the securities listed on a Stock Exchange?-
Yes [x] Nof]

If yes, state the name of such Stock Exchange and the class/es of securities listed therein:
Philippine Stock Exchange ~ Common Voting shares

There are,One Hundred Million (100,000,000) Common Voting shares listed in the Philippine Stock
Exchange, One Hundred Fifty Million (150,000,000) Common Voting shares are being readied for
listing application. : . :
12. Indicate by check mark whether the registrant:
(@) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the Code and SRC Rule 17
thereunder or Sections 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26 and

-».141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines, during the preceding twelve (12) months (or for
such shorter period the registrant was required to file such reports)

Yes [x] No[] .
(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days. ~
Yes [x] No[]

PART I-FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. The Financial Statements are as follows:

- a) Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as of March 31, 2021 (Unaudited) and December
31,2020 (Audited).

| 'b) Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity for the Quarters Ended March 31,

© 2021 and 2020. _
~ ©) Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the Quarters Ended March.
31,2021 and 2020.

o d) Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Quarters Ended March 31, 2021 and

2020.

- €)  Aging of Accounts Receivable as of March 31, 2021.

Ttem 2. ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

. .Dun'ng the first quarter of 2021, per data provided by the Philippine Stock Exchange, Parent
Entity (IMP) shares traded at a high of P2.50, low at-'P1.45 and closed at P1.70. The total volume of

‘shares traded during the quarter was 8,310,000 shares. On the other band during the first quarter of

2020 the shares of stocks traded at a high of P1.53, low of P1.00 and closed at P1.00 with a volume of

- 332,400 shares.

IRL.SEC Form 17Q
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The Company received cash advances during the quarter covered by this report from a
stockholder amounting to P1.29 million which funded the administrative expenses during the said
period amounting to P1.43 million.

During this quarter the income earned came from interest income earned by the Parent Entity
was very minimal,

The Group durmg the first quarter of 2021 did not dispose any asset of material amount nor
does it plan to do it in the near future. It has not budgeted nor committed any substantial amount for
material or capital expenditures for the coming quarters.

_ Because of the uncertamhes, difficulties, challenges, changing government economic pohmes,
and environmental and mining laws posed by the COVID-19 paridemic, on-going projects discussions
and negotiations regarding business prospects have been suspended. The Laperal family and LTC Real

Estate Corporation are committed to support and fund the operations of the Company.

On May 18, 2020 when the Modified Enhanced Community Quarantine (MECQ) was imposed
the Campany started operating again. The primary concern of the Company was how to the keep its
employees fit to work, protect them from being afflicted with the COVID-19 virus and implementing
the many government-imposed restrictions and guidelines.

The follovﬁﬁg actions were taken up by the Company in line with the prescribed procedures bjav

a.

b.

oo

“the government to mitigate the negative effects of the pandemic on its employees’ mental well-being
-and physical and emotional health and continues to do up to the date of this report.

The Company has been providing its personnel with shuttle service to and from work every
day and for some, sleeping quarters, TV and laundry area within the office premises..
Providing facial masks, face shields, isopropyl alcohol, hand sanitizers and or soap. The
employees are obliged to wash/sanitize their hands more often. Aicohol and sanitizers are
provided to visitors upon entering the office.

Appropriate social distancing is made a protocol not only inside but outside of the work
place.

. Communications are done mostly through electronic mail or telephone.

Frequent disinfection of the work place.

Company-paid mandatory Rapid test and swab test if necessary, Employees are urged to be
vigilant always and to disclose their health problems or possible exposure of the virus
including their families of other persons they had close contact with. Free medical check-up--
and testing when perceived symptoms of COVID-19 are experienced.

Providing Multi-vitamins, farm-fresh organic vegetables and fruits to strengthen the
immune system of the employees.

" Starting in September 2020 the Company has granted a temporary COVID-19 related cash

benefit to all employees at Pesos: Two Thousand (P2,000) per month. per employee to help
the cope with the rising cost of living and transportation. This benefit will be discontinued
as soon as the business condition improves and at the discretion of management.
Continuous dissemination of information to the employees on how to protect themselves
and their families and prevent the spread of COVID-19.

‘Management is studying ways and means of helping its employees regarding the vaccination

program against Covid-19 in relation to the policies and programs to be implemented by the

.government,

IRI-SEC Form 17Q
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After studying, evaluating, and analyzing the Company’s current-office and work set-up and the
nature of the work of the employees, management concluded that work-from-home mode of work is
difficult to adopt. Employees lack computer equipment; inadequate internet connections at their
homes, their home conditions are not suited for home-based work are some reasons why work-from-
home cannot be adopted. The plan of management to adopt skeletal force to minimize cost was shelved
because of limited manpower specially so that one employee retired. '

This COVID-19 pandemic has greatly affected the human and financial resources of the
Company. The Company’s survival has been a pressing and challenging issue. Despite the economic
and health benefits management has been extending its employees they still experience anxiety, lack of
focus and concentration, fear for the health of their families, frequent absences, uncertainty of the future
resulting to a below-par performance in discharging their duties and responsibilities.

Formal offers to lease the Subsidiary’s property in Baguio were received. One offer was to lease
for educational purposes but did not materialize because of the changing educational policies and
programs by the government, Currently, management is evaluating the latest offer to lease property it
received in January, 2021. Management is optimistic that it can lease the property in 2021.

‘Material changes (five percent (5%) or more) in the accounts under the unaudited consolidated
statements of financial position as at March 31, 2021 compared with the figures appearing in the
audited consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2020 including the reasons for
such changes are presented below: R

1. Cash and Cash Equivalent
This account decreased by about 10.4% or P302 thousand during this first quarter of
2021 because as shown in the cash flow statement the total cash advance received from a
stockholder was P1.29 million while the net cash used in operation was P1.592.

2. Other Receivables _
. There was a decrease by 100% because of the collection of receivables in full during the
first quarter of 2021.

3. Prepayments | .
There was a decrease of about 53% or P13 thousand because some of accounts were
expensed during the first quarter of 2021.

‘4. Accruals and other payables — - N
The decrease of about 24% or P185 thousand was the result of the payment of accrued
- expenses during the first quarter of 2021,

; Discussed below are the material changes (five per cent (5%) or more) in the accounts under the
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the first quarter of 2021 in comparison with
the same period in 2020 including the causes of such changes:

A. Income Account
1.' Interest Income

This account decreased during the first quarter of 2021 by about 82% or P982 because
of lower interest rates compared with the rates during the first quarter of 2020.

IRI-SEC Form 17Q
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B. Administrative Expenses Accounts JR—

1. .Salaries & Wages -

The lockdown due to Covid-19 pandemic sta.rted on March 15, 2020: The Company
adopted the “No work, No pay” policy. During the same period in 2021 the Company was
operational. This is the reason why during the first quarter of 2021 the figure for this account

increased by 12% or P63 thousand over the figure in 2020.

2. Utilities - :
There was an increase of about 24% or P21 thousand in the first quarter of 2021
compared to the figure for the same period in 2020 because of the temporary shut-down of
the Company operations due to COVID-19 pandemic on March 15-31, 2020.

3. Rental -

' There was an increase by about 52% or P72 thousand during the first quarter of 2021
because rental fees were paid on time unlike in the same period in 2020, because of the

~ temporary suspension of the operations of the Company. The office rentals for the month
of March 2020 were paid in the next quarter.

4, Repairs and Maintenance -
A decrease in this account by about 40% or P8 thousand compared with the figure for

the first quarter of 2020 was due to the fact that the vehicles being used by the company -
were in a better running condition than in 2020.

5. Travel and Transportation-

This account includes gasoline and oil expense for company vehicle and motorcycle for
the messengers. This account decreased during the first quarter of 2021 compared to the
figure during the same period in 2020 by about 53% or P34 thousand because there were
more messengerial activities in January and February 2020 than during the same period in

‘ 2021

6. SSS, PHIC and HDMF contributions
The increase of about 93% or P5 thousand during the first quarter of 2021 compared
with the figure in the first quarter of 2020 was due to the “No work, No pay” policy of the
company during the lockdown period starting March 15, 2020.

7. Supplies and Other Office Expenses—

: This account includes office supplies, advertising, printing and reproduction expenses.
The usage of office supplies during the first quarter of 2021 increased by about 60% or P35
thousand because during the first part of March 2020 the Company suspended its operations
due to lockdown, hence, incurred lesser expenses.

8. Security services —
There was an increase of about 50% or P17 thousand during the first quarter of 2021
- because the Company paid the security agency fees for March, 2021 on time unlike in 2020 due
to the suspension of its operations.

9. Miscellaneous— )

This account decreased by about 46% or P18 thousand in 2021. During the same period
in 2020 the subsidiary (PCCC) incurred an expense for building signage. There was no expense
of this nature incurred in 2021.
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10. Insurance —
There was an increase of about 30% or P14 thousand

dm-ihng the first quarter of 2021

compared with figure for the same period in 2020. The Company paid the insurance premiums
during the first quarter of 2021 on time while it paid the insurance premiums due during the

second quarter of 2020 because of the COVID-19 pandemic.

11. Dues & Subscription—

This amount decreased by 7% or P23 thousand because

the fee of the new Company’s

website provider was lower than the figure in the first quarter of 2020. Also, there was no
security tokens paid to PSE on top of the annual listing fee in 2021.

12. Professional fee —

The increase of about 14% or P6

. in the fees paid to the transfer agency for SEC reports.

13. Taxes and Licenses —
This account increased by 6% or P2 thousand during the first quarter of 2021 because of
_the increase in the cost of business permit paid compared to the figure in the same period in

2020

Q;./ THE GROUPS ANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS
' Presented below are the Financial Soundness Indicators used by the Group for the March 30—

2021, December 31, 2020 and March 31, 2020

thousand in first quarter of 2021 was due to the increase

March 31, 2021

December 31, 2020

March 31, 2020

(i) Current/liquidity ratios:
Smmaes _ 2em. g A au MBS s
: (i) Debt-to-equity ratios: .
Tmliie | __S3600 gy S o SO oo
I\5—~(111) Solveﬁcy ratios: ‘ \
ol SO0 gy SIS grpy B osst
E (iv) Asset-to-equity ratios:
Tolses e 1011 —potieaty” MO im0
" (v)Interest rate coverage ratios (Earnings before interest and taxes/Interest expense):
This ratio is not applicable since the Company has no interest expense.
f (vi) Profitability ratios (Net profit after taxes/Revenues before cost of services):
Net P;‘Zi;“‘f:: taxes (1’427’2?—? = (6763.33):1 2 z’gg;g zz = 0.83:1 (1’30'::?2:) = (1,093.37):1
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2. Notes to Interim Financial Statements and Other Required Disclosures: -

a.

The Group's unaudited interim financial statements as of March 31, 2021 presented in this
report have been prepared in conformity with getierally accepted accounting principles. The
same have been prepared in accordance with the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
(PFRS) and Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS). The same accounting policies and
methods of computation were followed in the unaudited interim financial statements as
compared with the Company's audited financial statements as of December 31, 2020.

There were no items affecting assets, labilities, equity, net income, or cash flows considered
unusual because of their nature, size, or incidents aside from what is disclosed in the “Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operation” portion.

The Group did not use estimates of amounts in its interim period reports covering the 1¥ quarter
of the year 2021 and end of the year 2020, hence, no changes that have material effect in the
current interim period can be reported.

The Group has no issuances, repurchases and repayments of debt and equity securities. It has

.m0 shortterm or long-term promissory notes. Therefore, it has no interest expense nor

amortization of debt discount and expense or premivm.

There has been no changes in the composition of the Group during the interim period covere
by this report, including business combinations, acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and long="
term investments, and restructurings.

The Group has no contingent liabilities or contingent assets since December 31, 2020,

There are no material contingencies and any other events or transactions that are material to an
understanding of the current interim period.

There were no material segment revenue and segment business results during the period covered
by this report.

There has been no cash or stock dividends paid by the Group since their incorporation.

Certain accounts have been reclassified and comparative figures have been adjusted to conform
with the presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2020. The
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements as of ~
December 31, 2020 and interim financial statements as of March 31, 2021 are consistent with

- those of the previous financial year except for the adoption of the following new and amended

"Enti

‘standards and interpretations, which became effective beginning January 1, 2020. The adoption

of these new and amended standards and interpretations did not have significant impact on the
Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s financial statements.

-New standards, amendments to existing standards and interpretation effective in the 2019 t0 the Paren;

and Subsidiary’s operations which may or may not be relevant are as follows

PFRS 16 Leases - This new standard replaces the following standards and interpretations: (2) PAS
17, Leases; (b) IFRIC 4, Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, (C) SIC-15 Operating
Leases — Incentives, and. (d) SIC-27, Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of
a Lease. The biggest change is that Lessees do not need to classify the lease at its inception and
~ determine whether it's finance or operating lease. The standard introduces new accounting model
for all leases. A lessee shall recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for leases with
a lease term of 12 months or less and containing no purchase options and leases where the
underlying asset has a low value when new (such as personal computers or small items of office
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furniture). Early application is permitted but the Parent Entity and -Subsidiary opted not to early
adopt the standard.

The Parent Entity and Subsidiary adopted this standard using the modified retrospective
method with initial application on January 1, 2019. The adoption of this standard did not have
significant impact on the Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s financial statements since the existing
lease agreements have a lease term of twelve (12) months or less.

Amendments to PAS 19 (Revised), Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement — The amendments
specify that when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during the annual reporting
period, an entity is required to (a) determine current service cost for the remainder of the period
after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement, using the actuarial assumptions used to
measure the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the
plan assets after that event; and (b) determine net interest for the remainder of the period after then
amendment, curtailment or settlement using: the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the

benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that event; and the discount rate used to

‘remeasure that net defined benefit liability (asset).

The amendments also clarify that an entity first determines any past setrvice cost, or a gain or
loss on settlement, without considering the effect of the asset ceiling. This amount is recognized
in profit or loss, An entity then determines the effect of the asset ceiling after the plan
amendment -curtailment or settlement. Any change in that effect, excluding amounts included -
in the net interest, is recognized in other comprehensive income.

“The adoption of this amendment had no significant impact on the Parent Entity and
Subsidiary’s financial statements.

~ Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments — This interpretation
provides requirements on how to reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting for income taxes.

The adoption of this amendment had no significant impact on the Parent Entity and
Subsidiary’s financial statements.

‘New standards, amendments to existing standards that are were effective in the xeaj: 2020 which are
relevant to the Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s operations are follows:

Amendments to PFRS 3, Definition of a Business — The amendments narrowed and clarified the
definition of a business. They also permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is a group of assets rather than a business.

Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, and PAS 8, Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors — these amendments which use a consistent definition
of materiality throughout PFRSs and the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting, clarify
when information is material and incorporate some of the guidance in PAS 1 about immaterial
information. In particular, the amendments clarify:

» that the reference to obscuring information addresses situations in which the effects
is similar to omitting or misstating that information, and that an entity assesses
materiality in the context of the financial statements as a whole, and
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o the meaning of “primary users of general-purpose financial statements” to whom
those financial statements are directed, by defining them as “existing and potential
investors, lenders and other creditors” that-must rely on general puzpose.

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

The International Accouting Standars Board (IASB) has issued a revised Conceptual
Framework which will be used in standard-setting decisions with immediate effect. Key changes
include: '

e increasing the prominence of stewardship in the objective of financial reporting,
‘e - reinstating prudence as a component of neutrality

e defining a reporting entity, which may be a legal entity, or a portion of an entity,

e revising the definitions of an asset and a liability,

e removing the probability threshold for recognition and adding guidance on

o derecognition,

» adding guidance on different measurement basis, and

o stating that profit or loss is the primary performance indicator and that, in principle,
incomtie and expenses in other comprehensive income should be recycled where this -
enhances the relevance or faithful tepresentation of the financial statements.

No changes will be made to any of the current accounting standards. However, entities that rely on

the Framework in determining their accounting policies for transactions, events of conditions that

“are not otherwise dealt with under the accounting standards will need to apply the revised

" Framework from January 1, 2020. These entities will need to consider whether their accounting
- policies are still appropriate under the revised Framework.

k. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group's activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk, market

- risk and fair value estimates. The Group's overall risk management program seeks to minimize

potential adverse effects on its financial performance and to make an optimal contribution to its .

revenues by managing these risks. The Parent Entity's risk management, vested thiru the Board

- of Directors, focuses on actively securing its short to medium-term cash flows by minimizing

the exposure to financial risks. Long-term financial investments are managed to generate lasting
returns.

"Management is aware of the following risks that the Company will face in the future as
regards its mining project:

‘1. Mining metals and non-metals is essentially risky and expensive and faced with
multiple problems.

2. The prices of commodities are always subject to fluctuations.

3. All governments change its heads and regulations are subject to unpredictable changes
and government laws and regulatory policies and corporate governance poses hazards
to plan, execute and deliver on long-term projects.

4. The global weather is unpredictable, _

5. Many governments are demanding larger and larger share of the profits, Higher taxes
and rents are seen as management problems,

6. Terms of contracts may be subjected to unpredictable changes.
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Management's Responses and Outlook S

1. The Company's main goal is to explore for less risky exploration a:nd exploitation
minerals.

2. Shorten exploration period and look for the most economical ways to explore and
conduct the latest geological and geophysical techniques to minimize risks of
exploration.

3. Management will engage experts to utilize proven hedge and financial initiatives to
mitigate and minimize the inherent nisks of the volatility of commodities. ‘

4. The Group is aware of the importance of community welfare and community
relationship.

5. Strict observance of Covid-19 pandemic protocols to safeguard the health and well-being
of its employees and adopt measure to sustain business operation.

Financial risk factors

The Group's financial assets and liabilities, comprising mainly of cash and cash equivalents,
_.trade and other receivables, available-for-sale investments and refundable deposits are exposed
to a variety of financial risks. The management ensures that it has sound policies and strategies
in place to minimize potential adverse effects of these risks in the Group's financial performance.
The Group does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes
nor does it write options.

1. Credit Risk Management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterpart will default on its obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of dealing with
creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from
defaults. Generally, the maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is the catrying
amount of the financial assets.

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalent is assessed by Management as low risk since
these are deposited with reputable banks which have low probability of insolvency. The
amount of the Group's trade and other receivables account is not material. The Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk from the available-for-sale investments is equivalent
to the fair value of the shares in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). The Group has
no investments in foreign securities. The total carrying amount of the financial assets
composed of cash and cash equivalents, other receivables, and deposit as presented in
the financial statements as of March 31, 2021 is P2,606,160. These financial assets are
not impaired and none are used for collateral or other credit enhancements.

2. Liguidity Risk Management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate highly liquid assets in the form of cash and cash equivalents. A call of
subscription receivable by the Board of Directors of the Parent Entity is an alternative
to raise cash. The major stockholders have committed to make advances to the Parent
Entity to sustain its operations. A stockholder made a cash advance amounting to P1.29
million during the first quarter of 2021, The current ratio as of March 31, 2021 is 4.48:1.
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3 Market Risk Management o ) a...... :

Market risk is the risk of Ioss to future earnings, to fair value or to future cash that may
result from changes in the price of a financial instrument, The value of a financial

- instrument may change as a result of changes i interest rates, foreign currency exchange -

rates, commodity prices, equity prices and other market changes.
3.1 Interest vate and _fb}'éz:gn crirvency risk : .

The Group's exposure to the tisk of changes in interest rates is minimal since its cash
and cash equivalents have fixed interest rates not affected by interest rates in the market.

The Group does not have any interest bearing notes payable and is therefore not affected |

by changes in interest rates. The Parent Entity is exposed to foreign currency risk
primarily with respect to its monetary assets denominated in US Dollar which are used

to cover the exploration and development costs of its mining project in Indonesia, The

Parent Entity's financial position and financial performance are affected by the

movements in the Philippine Peso to US Dollar exchange rates. Foreign cutrency risk

arises when recognized assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not
-the entity's functional currency. |

The balance of the US Dollar denominated cash and cash equivalents was US$ 45,413

on December 31, 2020 and US$ 45,418 on March 31, 2021. Any unrealized gain/loss

from foreign exchange rate is taken up at the end of the year.
3.2 Other Price Risk Sensitivity

The Parent Entity's market price tisk arises from available-for-sale financial asset which
is carried at fair value. It manages its risk from changes in market price by monitoring
the changes in the market price of the investments. ‘

Since there has been no available market value in the PSE since 2010 of Pﬁﬂcomsat
_ Holdings, Corp. due to its suspension from trading the Company recognized
‘impairment loss of P720,000 as of December 31, 2020.

"L Operating Segment

An operating segment is a component of an entity that (a) engages in business activities from which -

it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses relating to transactions
. with'other components of the same entity; (b) whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the
- entity's chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the
- “"-segment and assess its performance; and (c) for which discrete financial information is available.

A In '2009, with the interest of the Parent Entity in mining, this business segment can be reported as

i ~an operating segment even though it is still in its exploratory stage. The business segment is

. -organized and managed separately according to the nature of the services provided. A segment asset
- includes all operating assets used by a segment and consists of supplies, deposits, explorationi and
evaluation assets, property and equipment (net of accumulated depreciation),

With the-granting of rights of exploration, development and operation of the mining concessions in
' Indonesia, as of March 31, 2021, there is nothing to report on mining business segment while the
~ total segment assets under exploration and evaluation asset account amounts to P50,472,348 as of
-March 31, 2021 broken down into acquisition of rights to explore amounting to P11,795,500 and
geophysical studies amounting to P38,676,848. :
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As:de from the effect of Cov1d-19 pandenuc wh1ch 1s d:lscussed on.pages 3-4 Management has
no knowledge of any other trends, demands, commitments, events; or uncertainties that would have

‘material impact on the Group’s hqmchty The Group look 4t its current assets as source of liquidity. -

The Group still expects to collect some subscription receivables from its by way of a formal call by the
board of directors. ' Management has no knowledge of any-other trénds, events or uncertainties that
have had or that are reasonably expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on the
Group 's operations. Management is not aware of any significant elements of income or loss that did
not atige from the'Group’s Operations nor were there any seasonal aspects that had material effect on
the financial condition of the Group during the penod covered by this report.

;o Except for the current financial ob11gat10n, there are no events that will trigger direct or

contmgent financial obligation that is material to the Group, including any default or acceleration of
an obligation. There are no material offbalance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations
~ (including contingent obligations), and other relationships of the company thh unconsolidated entities
or other persons created during the teporting period.

As:at the end of the 1% quarter of year 2021, the Group was not in default in any of its
indebtedness. It has enough resources or can raise resources if necessary, in order to meet any of its
obllgatlons and implement its planned activities, It does not foresee any liquidity problem in the

' coming quarters,

. PART IIT - OTHER INFORMATION
All material events and / or matters during the period covered by this report were disclosed

ﬁrider SECForm 17-C. There are no other material matters/events during the period covered by this
* report which are required by SEC to be disclosed that are not disclosed with SEC.
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-IMPERIAL RESOURCES lNCORPORATED AND SUBS!DIARY
——

Consolidated Statements of Financial Posmon
March 31, 2021 and December 31,2020

—

Amounts in thppme Peso ‘
March31l December j'3-1 ok
: < 2021 2020
 ASSETS
Current assets _ o
.Cash and cash equivalents 2,606,160 2,908,003
Other receivables - 6,862
Prepayments 11,515 24,495 -
Total current assets 2,617,675 2,939,360
N on current-assets ' _ _
Investment in stocks 80,000 80,000
Property and Equipment - net 2 ‘ .2
‘. Investment property 830,000,000 830,000,000 -
,Explorat_lon and evaluation assets 50,472,348 50,472,348
~ Refundable Deposit 45,000 45,000
Deferred Tax Assét 1,199,398 . 1,199,398
i Total non-current assets 881,796,748 881,796,748
TOTAL ASSETS 884,414,423 884,736,108
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Cm'rent liabilities
Accruals and other payables 584,241 768,864
: - Income Tax Payable - 0
*Total current liabilities 584,241 768,864
" Non:current liabilities
* - Retirement benefits payable 3,997,992 3,997,992
-Advances from stockholders 51,723,840 50,433,840
R Total non-current liabilities 55,721,832 54,431,832
_ TOTAL LIABILITIES 56,306,073 55,200,696
. N Total E_qluty Attributable to the Owners
- of the Parent
.- Share Capital : 636,563,546 636,563,546
. Remeasurement of retirement benefits payable (64,056) (64,056)
“Retained earnings / (Deficit) 193,277,050 193,277,050
Net loss for the period (1,426,371) -
- 828,350,169 829,776,540
Nosi-controlling Interest (241,818) (241,128)
T()'-I‘AL EQUITY _ 828,108,350 829,535,412
‘TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY P 884,414,423 P 884,736,108

* Unaudited
** - Aundited
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IMPERIAL RESOURCES, INCORPORATED ANB-SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements "of(-'.‘ompréhenSive Income

~ Loss per share amounts are computed by dividing the net loss attributable to the owners
of the Parent for the petiod over the number of shares issued and outstanding at the
end of the period which is 652,500,000 shares for 2021 and 2020.

. IRI-SEC Form 17Q
" March 31, 2021

| (Unandited) L
For the Quarters ended March 31,2021 and2020 . .
' Amounts iri Phitippine Peso
Match 31 - March 31
| L 2021 2020
" INCOME ° -
' Tnterest Income P 211 ' P 1,193
EXPENSES
Salaries and Wages 570,863 508,281
~ Professional Fees 48,461 . 42487
" Utilities 108,778 87,753
| " Rental - 210,529 138,715
%@ - Repairs and Maintenance 11,986 20,015
' - Transportation and Travel 29,669 63,204 -
Dues and Subscription - 294,521 317,720
Miscellaneous 21,575 40,009
Security Services . 51,000 34,000
- Supplics and other office expenses 13,939 8,729
' 8§88, PHIC and HDMF contributions 9,720 5,040
Taxes and Licenses 36,959 34,829
Tnsurance 19,271 4,805
S N P 1427272 1,305,587
. . LOSSFROM OPERATIONS (1,427,062) (1,304,394)
 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) - :
| ..,;""%_;ES"TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (1,427,062) = . (1,304,394) .
./ LOSSFORTHE QUARTER
s © . ATTRIBUTABLETO:
" Owners of the Parent (1,426,371) (1,303,859)
Non-Controlling Interest (690) (535)
P (1,427,062) P (1,304,394)
LOSS PER SHARE (0.002) _ ~(0.002)
Note:




. IMPERIAL, RESOURCES lNCORPORATED AND SUBS!D!ARY

Consolidated Statements of Cl Chaongesin quuty

(Unandited)
~ March 31, 2021 and 2020

EQUITY

Capital stock - par value - P1.00 for 2021 and 2020

Authorized - 1,300,000,000 shares for 2021 and 2020

Amounts in Pthppme Peso

‘March 31 " March 3t
2021 2020

* Common Stock - 1,8000,000,000 shares for 2021 and 2020

-j_co'mmon Stock - Issued and outstanding - 230,643,195

for'2021 and 2020, |
 Balance at beginning of year

K&g Issued -

. Balance at end of penod

- Common Stock - subscribed capital stock - 421,856,805

. shares for 2021 and 2020,
. Balance at beginning of year
-Addition (Deduction) - net
~ Balance at end of period
Less: subscription receivable
Balance at beginning of year
Addition (Deduction) - net
é&w, Balance at end of period

Total Sharc capital

*  'Remeasurement of retirement benefits payable

Retained Earnings
. Balance at the beginning of year
- Corhprehensive loss for the period
Balarice at the end of the period
" Non-Controlling interest
'TOTAL EQUITY

IRI-SEC Form 17Q
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P 230,643,195 230,643,195
230,643,195 230,643,195
421,856,805 421,856,805
421,856,805 - 421,856,805
15,936,454 15,936,454
15,936,454 15,936,454
405,920,351 405,920,351
636,563,546 636,563,546

(64,056) 146,340
193,277,050 160,413,126
(1,426,371) (1,303,859)
191,850,679 159,109,267

) (241,818) (239,268)

P 828,108,350 P 795,579,885




IMPERIAL RESOURCES, lNCORPORATED AND SUBSID]ARY

Consohdated Statements’ of Cash Flows

(Unaudltcd)

For the Quazters Ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

" Amounts in Philippine Peso
"March 31 March 31
2021 2020
* Cash Flows from Operating Activities | |
~ Net loss from Operations P (1,427,062) P (1,304,394
Adjustments for Interest Income - (211) (1,193)
Decréase (Increase) in :
R_ecewables 6,862 513
‘Prepayments - 12,980 -
_'ijnérca'se'('Decrease) in:
: ‘Accruals and other Payables (184,623) (164,260)
- Cash Used in Operating Activities (1.,592,054) (1,469,334)
- Interest Income Received 211 1,193
 Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (1,591;843)  (1,468,141)
35 : "Cﬂéh’l"lowsfmm Investing Activities - -
Cash Flows from Financial Activities
' Addltonal Paid up Capital . -
'sIna'ease in advances from stockholders 1,290,000 1,240,000
: 'Net Cash Provided from Financial Activities 1,240,000 1,240,000
S N Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Eqmvalentg (301,843) (228,141)
. B Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Begmning of the Period 2,908,003 2,979,4'46
" Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Period P 2,606,160 P 2,751,305
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Aging of Accounts Hﬂnnﬂﬁaa
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(Unaudited)
As of March 31, 2021
| Trade and other Receivables - 0
. Loans to Employees and other companies 0 ‘
1) Aging of accounts receivable
Past due
, . 7 Mos To | 5 Years- | accounts & Items
|Type. 0m accounts Hnnaimgm ._H_om; 1 Month | 2-3 Mos. | 4-6 Mos. 1 Year | 1-2 Years | 3-5 Years| above in Litigation
1a) Hnwnn nananEom .
D
*Trade nonoimc_nm - - - - - . - -
E Zou.ﬁman receivables
1) Loanto employees - - - )
- 2) Others. =~ - - . -
On._oum.>aﬂmon Interest - - “ -
Non-trade receivable - - - - - . - .
Total accounts _nnnm?mgn (net)
2) Accounts receivable description
Type of receivable Nature/Description Collection Period
1) Loansto nB@_ownam H..om.am to company employees one (1) year
B Oﬁma Advances to other companies -
3) ZonB& Oﬁmﬁgm Q&o OEQ&H ﬁoﬁ (12 Bou&& R E
‘ .ZS% No additional aliowance for bad debts was set up during the quarter Q&ahgmﬂm .w~ NQNN _
. No reversal 0\. allowance for doubtfil accounts. x L
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- Pursuant to the requlrements of the Secutities Regulatlon Code; the issuer has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly auﬂ:lonzed

Issuer

:; ‘Signature and Title

2 Date

- .-'Sig;'latl-lre and Title VILMA B. VILLANUEVA

Comptroller / Assistant Treasurer

 Date . - May 10, 2021
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MAKATI CITY, METRO MANILA

Note 1: In case of death, kesngrianon or cessation of office of the officer desLtjnated as confact person, such incident shall be reporied to the
Commission within thirty (30) ealendar days from the occumence thereof with information’and complete contact details of the new contact person
deslgnated,

Note 2: Al boxes must be properly and completely ﬁlled-up Failure fo do so shall cause the delay in updating the corporatien’s records with the
Commission and/or non-receipt of Notice of Deficiencies. Further, non-racelpt of Notice of Deficiencies shall not excuse the corporation from liability
for its deficiencles.
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IMPER[XL RESOURCES INC AND édBSlDlARY
. 82] 4" Street, New Manila, Quezon City . -

Joarn

' 'I'elephone No. 724-2986*Fax No. 7214648
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
F OR 'FINAN CIAL STATEMENTS

- The management of IMPERIAL RESOURCES, INCORPORATEB AND

SUBSIDIARY (the Parent Entlty and Subsidiary) is: responsible for the preparation

~.and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements, for the years ended

" December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, including the schedules attached therein, in

" accordance Wlﬂ:l Pthppme Fmanmal Reporhng ‘Standards (PFRS), and for such

" internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of

S consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
" “due to fraud or error.

" :In preparing the consoﬁdated financial statements, managerent is responsible for
‘assessing the Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s ability to continue as a going concern,

disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and using the going
concern _basis of accounting unless managerﬂent either intends to liquidate the
Parent Entity and Subsidiary or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative

but to do so.

The Board of Directors is tesponsible for overseeing the Parent Entity and

" Subsidiary’s financial reporting process.

" The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements, including the
-schedules attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders.

- VILLARUZ, VILLARUZ & CO., CPAs, thé independent auditors, appointed by

-+ the stockholders, has audited the financial statements of the Parent Entity and

" .Subsidiary in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its reports

" to the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon
. ..completion of such audit.

&IO%&BCUAL

k Chazrman of the Board

Vieg/ esident / Chief Financial Officer

Signed this_14th dayof__April _ 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT -

' Tlije Board of D'ircctor.s aﬁd'Sharéﬁc;ldérs of _ :

'IMPERIAL RESOURCES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARY -

.- 82-J 4th Street, Barangay Mariana, New Manila' i

. Quezon City

' "._-Iieport on the Audits of the Consolidated Financial Statementsy

' bpinion

“"We have audit.ed the accompanying consolidated financial statements of IN.[PERIAL RESOURCE_S,

[

- INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARY (the Parent Entity and Subsidiary) which comprise the
. -consolidated statements’ of financial position as at December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, and

“consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in equity zid

" consolidated statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

" statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

in our -opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material

respects, the consolidated financial position of IMPERIAL RESQURCES, INCORPORATED AND
SUBSIDIARY as at Deember 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, and its financial performance and its

g . “consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting

Standards (PFRS).

" Basis for Opinion

;.7 We conducted our audit in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
- responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
© 7 Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent -of the
.. Parent Entity and Subsidiary in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in
;- the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
.. of the consolidated financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical .-
"/ responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We believe that the

- °". audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

" Key Audit Matters
- Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in

-our audit of the consolidated financial statements as-at and for the year endéd December 31, 2020.
' These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a

" whole and, in forming our opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

- -Unit 3,9" Floor, Galleria Corporate Canter, EDSA cor. Ortigas Avs., Quezon City, Philippines
. Telnos. +632 86871329 / +632 86873324 / +632 86388014 / +632 86383000 / +632 86876749 Morison KSi

Fax no, +632 36874787 Independernt member

- Websita: www.villaruz.com.ph
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Valration of Investment property - o
Refer to Note 13 in the consolidated financxal statements

c :Management has estimated the fair value of the Parent Entlty and Subs1d1ary s mvestment property to
. ',_'be P830,000,000 as at Deccmber 31, 2020 with a revaluation gain for the year ended December 31,
2020 recorded in the statements of” comprehensive income of P39,500,000. Independent external
" valuation was obtained in order to support managemeént’s estimates. The valuation is dependent on
' certain key assumptions that require s:gmﬁcant ‘management judgment including selection of fair

. value technique to determine’ the carrying value of the investment property. Such fair value. was

o detenmned based on recent prices of similar propetties, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
“economic conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices.

: . Qur procedures in relation to management’s valuation of investment property included:

e Evaluation of the independent external valuers’ competence, capabilities and objectivity;

* Assessing the methodologies used and the appropriateness of the key assumptions based on
our knowledge of the property industry; and

o . Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of the input data used.

- 'We found the key assumptions were supported by the available evidence. The fair market value of the

_property was supported by comparative approach to value that considers the sale of similar or

- substitute properties and telated market data and establishes a value estimate by processes involving

. comparison which was in line with our expectations. We found the disclosures in Note 13 to be
- "appropriate.

Recoverability of EXploratibn‘ and evaluation assets
Refer to Note 14 in the financial statements.

;' -The ability of the Parent. Entity and Subsidiary to recover its exploration and evaluation assets ; i
. “depenids on the commercial viability of the mineral resources. The carrying value of exploration and :
. evaluation assets as at December 31, 2020 amounted to P50,472,348 which is considered material to
:- -+ 'thé consolidated financial statements. This matter is important to our audit because of the substantial
7 “-amount of exploration and evaluation assets and the significant management judgment involved in
-~ performing a recoverability review.

. Our procedures in relation fo management’s assessment on the recoverability of exploration and
" evaluation assets mcludcd the following:

L We obtained management’s assessment on the recoverability of the exploration and evaluation assets, : \
_'and inquired into the status of these projects and their future plan of operation. We obtained the status ‘ .
of the Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s exploration project in Indonesia as of December 31, 2019 from |
" " the latest available reports of its Indonesian partner’s technical group. We reviewed the-terms of :
“‘contracts and agreements, and budgets as well as the remittances made to the Indonesian partner to ‘ i
.- cover the exploration costs. We inspected reports covering licenses and permits of the exploration N
_ “project.to determine the right of the Parent Entity and Subsidiary to explore in specific areas. We also
~ inquired of management about the project areas that are expected to be abandoned or any exploration
* activities that are planned to be discontinued in those areas. We found the disclosures in Note 14 to
" be appropriate.

"Unit 3, 9" Floor, Galleria Corporate Center, EDSA cor. Ortlgas Ave., Quezon City, Philippines

" Tel nos. +632 86871329 / +632 86873324 / +632 86388014 / +632 86383099 / +632 86876749 Morison KSi
‘Fax no. +632 86874787 Independent member
Webslte: www.villaruz.com.ph ‘
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" Responsibilitles of Management and Those ".Ch'izr-'ged ‘with Governance for thé‘Céﬁsolidated

Financial Statements

| .Management' is responsible for the 'prepéfation and fair 'presen'tatioﬂ'of these ¢onsolidated financial

- . statements in accordance ‘with PFRS and for such internal control as management determines - is

" hecessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

 ‘misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. F

- . In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
" ‘Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s ability to continue as a going concern,
" ‘matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management

disclosing, as applicable,

" --either intends to liquidate the Parenit Entity and Subsidiary or to cease operations, or has no realistic
- alternative but to do so. -

“Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Parent Entity and ‘Subsidiary’s

: '_ “fifiancial reporting process.

‘.i:‘ * Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audits of the Consolidated Financial Statements

T Our objectives:arc to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud of error, and to issue an

" auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is

not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will -always detect a material

© U misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered mater_ial

if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasondbly be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

" As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
* professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Tdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

"¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

- procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

‘opinion on the effectiveness of the Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis- of
“accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may ‘cast significant doubt on the Parent Entity and
Subsidiary’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s rcport to the related disclosures in

the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our:

Unit 3, 8" Floor, Galleria Corporata Center, EDSA cor. Ortigas Ave., Quazon City, Phlilpplnas
Tel nos. +632 86871329 / +532 BE873324 / +632 86388014 / +632 86383009 / +632 BEBTE749 Morison K5Si
Fax no. +632 86874787 tndependent member

.. Webslte: www.villaruz.com.ph
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opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our

auditor’s report. However, future: events ot conditions may cause the’ Parent Entity and
Subsidiary to cease to continue as a going concern. . :
._- Evaluate the overall presentatibn, structuré and content of the consoliddted ‘financial
* statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
‘represent the underlyirig transactions and events in a manner that achieves faig presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the pland=d

- -"’scb'p'e and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
" internal control that we identify during our audit.

. VILLARUZ, VILLARUZ & CO., CPAs

000-889-941

NORMITA L. VILLARUZ
CPA Centificate No. 36181 - .
PRC ID No. 0036181 valid untit September 20, 2021
PTR No. 0697499 issued on January 6, 2021 at Quezon City
.. * BIR Accreditation No, (Individual} 07-100207-001-2020 issued on November 25, 2020 valid until November 24, 2023
= .. BIR Adreditation No. (Firm) 07-000438-005-2020 {ssued on October 28, 2020 valid until October 27, 2023
oot -SEC Accreditition No. (Individual) 0600-AR-3 {Group A) issued on October 8, 2019 valid until October 7, 2022
-~ REC Accredilatioh-ﬂc. (Firm) 0128-FR~4 (Group A) issued on October 8, 2019 valid until October 7, 2022

IR “T.1N-107-825-674~

g BOA/PRC Registratioh No, 0058 issued on October 4, 2018 valid until June 26, 2021
e R -
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Gniezon City, Philipp_ﬁxt?s_f

April1d,2021.- . -

Unit 3, 9" Floor, Gallaria Corporate Conter, EDSA cor. Ortigas Ave., Quezon City, Philippines

. Tel nos. +632 86871329 / +632 BGB73324 / +632 86358014 / +632 86383099 / +632 86876749 Morison KSi
Fax no, +632 86874787 independent member
Wabsite: www.villaruz.com.ph
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- x . ) IMPERIAL RESOURCES INCORPORATED m SUBSD)MRY
: CONSOL’IDATED STATEMENTS OF FINAN C[AL POSITION - . . :
‘December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 © . ' . |
{All amounts in Philippine Peso) ' : - . : |

: ASSETS"
Notes. 020 2019 2018
. o J
' CURRENT ASSETS - ‘ .
: _Cash and cash equivalents - . 38 _ : 2,908,_003 2,679,446 3,468,9.4.§ -
N Other receivables 3,9 o 6,862 14,354 36,800
. - Prepayments ' . 310 . . 24495 37,487 . 33,030 :
Total Current Assets o . 2,939,360 . 3,031,287 3,543,776
h ‘ i
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ) ; a
Tnvestment in stocks _ ~o31 30,000 80,000 80,000 }
Property and equipment, net 12 : 2 3,134 10,346
) ‘Imrcptmcnt property 3,13 830,000,000 790,500,000 785,000,000 i ;
* 'Exploration and evaluation assets 3,14 50,472,348 50,472,348 50,472,348 . |
. ‘Refundable deposit _ 3,15 45,000 45,000 45,000 |
. Deferred tax asset . 3,16 1,199,308 1,347,387 1,305,307 :
Total Non-current Assets ‘881,796,748 842,448,369 836,913,501 o
}  TOTAL ASSETS - L 884,736,108 845,479,656 . . 840457277 |
7 _ LIABILITIES AND EQUITY L
. _ i
"“CURRENT LIABILITIES . . |
“ . "Actruals and other payables 3,17 768,864 237,070 2,273,065 ' 1
Income tax payable . 3,16 - 1:&13 186 :
Tota! Current Linbilities . 768,864 ' 239,583 2,273,251
" NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ’
" Advances from sharcholders 3,19 50,433,840 - 43,962,840 34,598,840
- Retirement benefits payable . 3,18 3,997,992 4,492,954 . 4,351,019
" Total Non-current Liabilities . 54,431,832 48,355,794 38,949,859 i
c N !
" TOTAL LIABILITIES 55,200,696 48,595,377 41,223,110 :
B TDTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS |
' OF THE FPARENT .
" Share capital 3,20 636,563,546 . 636,563,546 636,563,546 |
- Remeasurement on retirement benefits payable 3,18 (64,056) 146,340 (2,639) |
- Retained earnings . 3 193,277,050 160,413,126 162,908,520
o 829,776,540 797,123,012 799,469,377
NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST : 3,26 (241,128) (238,733) (235,210)
TOTALEQUITY . 829,535,412 796,884279 799,234,167
. TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 3 . 884,736,108 845,479,656 840,457,277

'cur—lflng TN

(See Notes to Financigl Statements) @ '. g o gl MR
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. IMPERIAL RESOURCES, lNCORPORATEﬁ“AND SUBSIDIARY ) :
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME n
For the years ended December 31,2020, 2019 and 2018~
“(All amounts in Phlllpplne Pero)

Notes. . 2020 . - 2019 2018
OTHER INCOME . . :
Gain frurn investment propcrty revaluation unrealized 13 . 39,500,000 5,500,000 .235,0_00,000
_ Interest income o 8,9 . 3,008 Co 9,770 14,725
* Unrealized gain on foreign exchange, et - 8,23 - - 125,631
Total Other Income S . : » 39503098 - . 5,509,770 235,140,356
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES - 28 6,402,911 8,112,624 7,440,754
PRom (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS : : 33,100,187 (2,602,854) 237,699,602
_ TAX BENEFITS DEFERRED - : 15 (238,658) 103,937 99,916
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 32,861,529 - {(2,498,917) - 227,799,518
' OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Ttem that will not be reclussifled to profitor lIoas:
Remieasurements on retirement benefits payable, netoftax . 18 (210,396) 149,029 98,581
.. - "TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) A'I'I'RIBUI‘ABLE TO: : 32,651,133 . (2,34932;) . 227,868,009
. “PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
. Owners of the parent - 32,863,924  {2,495,392) 227,801,712
" Non-controlling interest 3,26 (2,395) (3,525) (2,194)
A . 32,861,529 (2,498,917 227,799,518
_'."_ToTAL-coMPREH ENSIVE PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO: . .
7" Owners of the parent 32,653,528 (2.346,363) 227,900,293
Non-contralling interest 3,26 (2,395) -.(3,525) (2,194)
- 32,651,133 _ {2,345,388) 227,895,000
" EARNINGS PER SHARE: : ,
. Basic. ' 3,27 0.05 (0.00) 0.36
. Diluted - . 3,27 0.05 . (0.00) 0.35

(See Notes to Financial Statements)
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IMPERIAL RESOURCES; INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY -

' For the yeard snded December 31.2010. 2019 and 2018 .
(A1l arsounts in Phillppie Peso) -
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of Pareit Entity
o . Equity Atiributable to
Remeasnrements en- ) Equity Holders of the Now-
retirement benefits  Retilned Earnlngs controlling Interest .
R I Note. . Share Capital’ - payable o (Defielt) Piote26) - Tots] Equity
SHARE CAFITAL
Anthorized 1,800,000.000 sheres af ) -
par value per share |1.800.000,000 20
Tagu=d and Subseribed 652,500,000 .
. shares at F1 par value per share £52500,000 20
Subscription Rocelvable 15936454 20
: Pald-up £36,563,546
L ,:'hng‘a.t‘l’l parvalue per share 636.563.546
Hatince 4t Japoary 1, 2018 636,413,846 (101,270) - {64,893,192) (223,016} 571,186,068
Transacton with owaers:
. Colleetion of subscription receivable 150,000 . - - - 150,000
Total comprehensive Income: :
Profit (Low) for the year .. . - 227,801,712 1549 227,799,518
.. Other comprehensive income Tar the year 18 - 98,581 . - 08,581
gz Total eomprehengive Income (1033) for flie year - 98,581 227.801,712 (2,194) 227.858,09%
. Bak at December 31, 2018 §16,463,546 (2,689 162,908,520 [235.210) 799,234,167
_ Total tomprehensive incomet .
Loss for the year . . .. (2,495,392) (3,525) (2,498,817)
- Other comprehensive income for the vear 18 - 149,029 - - 145,029
Taota) comprehiensive income (aa} for the year. .. 149,029 {2,495,392) (3,525) (2.349.888)
1t at December 31, 2019 : 636,563,546 146,340 16_2&3.!28 (238,735) 796,884,279
Total comprehensive incoma: .
~ Profit for the year ' - - 32,863,924 2,395} 32,351,529
X Othacum'gmhensiva loxs for the year 18 - (2£0,396) : - - (210,396)
Tatal comprehensive Income (lows) for the year - {210,356) . 32,863,924 (2,395) 32,651,133
“Balince st December 31, 2020 616,563,846 (64,055) 193,277,052 241,130) 229835412

(See Notes o P'Inn'ncm. Statementz)
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IMPERIAL RESOURCES lNCORPORATED B\ND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018

 (All'amounts in: Philippine Feso)

2020

- Notes 2019 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES _ 3
Profit (loss) before provision for incomme tax 33,100,187 (2,602,854) 227,699,602
) Adjustments for:
Ghin from investment property revaluation unrealized 13 (39,500,000) (5,500,000) (235,000,000}
Aomal of retirement benefits expense 18 210,155 354,833 333,991
Depreciation 12,22,25 3,132 7,712 . 20,547
“Accrual of taxes 495,000 - . 396,964
. Unrealized gain (loks) on forelgn exchange, net 8,23 122,961 _ 89,603 (125,631}
" - Interest incomne 8 3,098) . (9,770) (14,725)
Operating loss before working capxtal changes (5,571,663) (7,660,476) (6,68?,252)
i Decrease (lncrea_:_e) in:
**V Other receivables 7,492 22,446 73,140
Prepaymcnts 12,992 543 (1,304}
Increase (Decrease) in:
Accrusls and other payables 36,795 (2,035,994} (94,101)
.Cash used in operations - (5,514,384) (9,673,481) (6,711,517)
% Retirement benefits paid (1,005,683) - -
o Income tax paid (2,513) (186) (2,660)
Interest received § 3,098 9,770 14,725
Net cash used in operating activities (6,519,482) (9,663,897) (6,699,452)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Collection of subscription 20 - - -150,000
- Tcrease in advances from shareholders 19 6,571,000 9,264,000 7,279,000
Net cash provided by financing activities 6,571,000 9,264,000 7,429,000
. EFFECI' OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON-CASH 8,23 - (122,961) ~ {89,603) 125,631
) NET INCREASE {DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (71,443) (489,500) 855,179
- -CASH AND CASH ]:QUIVALENTS Jannary 1 8 2,979,446 3,468,946 2,613,767
. CAsH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, December 31 8 2,908,003 2,079,446 3,468,946

(See Notes 1o Financial Statements)
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IMPERIAL RESOURCES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .

~ As at and for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018
(All amounts in Philippine Péso unless otherwise stated)

' NOTE 1 - GENERAL INFORMATION

o Imperial Resources, Incorporated (Parent Entity) was incorporated a:id'régistered if the Phﬂippincs

- ‘and registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) per Registration No. 39243 on
September 5, 1969. The primary purpose of the Parent Entity is to carry on the business of operating

 coal mines, and of prospetting, ‘exploration and -of mining, milling, concentrating, converting,
“smelting, treating, refining, preparing for market, manufacturing, buying, selling, exchanging, and

producing, and dealing in all kinds of ores, metals and minerals, asphalt-bithumen, hydrocarbons,

" acids and chemicals, and in the products and by-products of every kind and description and by

‘ whatever process, can be of may be produced; to purchase, lease, option, locate or acquire, own,

“exchange, sell, or dispose of, pledge, mortgage, deed in trust, hypothecate, and deal in mines, mining

- claims, mineral lands, coal lands, timber lands, water and water rights, other property, both real and
- personal. '

" ‘The Parerit Entity holds 99% interest in Philippine Cyber College Corporation (PCC), its ‘Only

" subsidiary, with principal place of business at 82-J 4 Street, Barangay Mariana, New Manila, Quezon
_ City. PCC was registered with the SEC on May 30, 2000 per Registration No. A20007650 to own,
" operate, manage and maintain a school of learning, offering, kindergarten or pre-school training, as
. “well as primary, secondary and tertiary levels of school instructions and to develop and educate

‘students in accordance with approved curriculum prescribed by the government, and in connection

therewith, to obtain the required permits and government recognition for the operation of said

~ " educational institution and the authority to confer certificates of completion/graduation and/or

. - diploma; further, to own, lease and acquire the use and possession of land for school campus, school

+ . 'buildings and properties for school facilities, PCC had management and technical agreement with two

. -(2) LT. learning centers located in Baguio and Malolos, Bulacan, However, in June 2008 the two (2)

... learning centers temporarily suspended their operations. Management ‘decided to shift from LT.

" education project to technical vocational education, training and assessment project. Since the laiter
- part of 2009, PCC’s operations have remained suspended.

.7 'During the special meeting of the Board of Directors held on March 29, 2011, it resolved, approved

. " and ratified the change of par value of the shares of stock of the Parent Entity from Five Pesos (P5.00)

':.* " to One Peso (P1.00) per share, was approved and ratified. Consequently, on July 14, 2011 the same
" “Wwas confirmed and ratified in the regular annual stockholders' meeting. -

~'On October 2, 2013, a special meeting of the Board of Directors was called to consider, among other

" matters, the amendment of the Articles of Incorporation, specifically the articles pertaining to the
. change of name of the Parent Entity to Century Sun Services, Inc. which was already approved by the

Board of Directors and reserved with the SEC. Also, a proposal was raised for the amendment of the

 purpose of the Parent Entity. It was also proposed that the corporate term be extended for another fifty

(50) years. Finally, another proposal was submitted to increase the authorized capital stock from One

. Billion Eight Hundred Million Pesos (P1,800,000,000) up to Six Billion Pesos (P6,000,000,000).
- Upon motions made and duly seconded, the proposed amendments were unanimously approved by the
- ‘Board of Directors. On July 10, 2014, on the reguldr annual stockholders’ meeting, the same had been
" confirmed and ratified. As of December 31, 2018, the Company’s management has not implemented
* this.
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:Durlng the speclal meeting of the Board of Du'ectors ‘held ion March 28, 2016 thc declassﬁicat:lon of
the shares of stock of Parent entity from common Class “A” and Class “B” shares tq common stock
voting shares was approved. This was subsequently confirmed and ratified by the stockholders durmg
the regular annual stockholders® meeting held on July 14, 2016.

The change of par value and the declassification of shares were approved by SEC on February 10
© 2018 and implemented by Phlhppme Stock Exchange (PSE) on February 22, 2018.

" The Parent Entity and its Subsidiary have seven (7), eight (8), and eight (8) employees as at December
- 31, 2020 2019 and 2018, respectlvely ‘

L Thc Parent Entity and its Subs1d1ary s principal place of business is Unit 202 Villa Buﬂdmg, No. 78
.- Jupiter Street corner Makati Avenue, Barangay Bel-Air, Makati City, Metro Manila, the business
< address is 82-J 4% Street, Barangay Mariana, New Manila, Quezon City and the registered office is
. 3762-C Cuenca corner Emilia Streets, Barangay Palanan, Makati City, Metro Manila.

“-‘-':Thes_e financial statements have been approved and authorized for issuance by Mr. Desiderio L.
t?aperal, Vice President/Chief Financial Officer, on behalf of the Board of Directors on April 14,

2021,

.. NOTE 2 - STATUS OF OPERATIONS

*1 - Parent Entity

" ‘Since 2005, the Parent Entity has been evaluating mining projects and has narrowed down the
. ‘prospective mining properties to gold mining, asphalt mining and energy. In September 2008, the

‘Parent Entity made a deposit amounting to P7,090,500 (US$150,000) to acquire mining nghts in
: Indones1a

- : .In January 2009, the Parent Entity signed a Memorandum of Agreement with P.T. Asphal Buton

"‘Nasional, an entity organized and existing under the laws of Indonesia which was granted mining

i rights covering 1,940 hectares of Mining Exploration Concession located at Buton Island, South East

-+ ‘Sulawesi Province, Indonesia. With the deposit amounting to P7,090,500 made by the Company to the

" ... said Indonesian entity in 2008, the Parent Entity was granted the exclusive rights of exploration,

© . exploitation, development and operation of the above-described mining concessions during its lifetime

.. and over such additional future mining concessions that P.T. Asphal Buton Nasional may acquire or
© "be awarded.

" ':D_u'rin'g 2009, the Parent Entity conducted geologic and geophysical (Electric Resistivity) surveys on

. the approximately two hundred (200) hectares and one thousand seven hundred (1,700) hectares, all

h  located in Buton Island, Southwest of Sulawesi Province, Indonesia,

" " "The two (2) asphalt concessions expired during the second half of 2011. However, because of the

significant geophysical electric resistivity survey conducted and arranged by the business associate,
-, Aspal Buton Nasional, and funded by the former, the latter was able to obtain approval for extension

'- _-of the exploration concession for additional period of two (2) years. In 2014-2016, approval for

- extension of the exploration concession were obtained.

. In December 2009, the Parent Entity made a deposit ©of P4,705 ,000 (US$100,000) to PT. Indominas to
acquire other mining rights in Indonesia which was subsequently charged to exploration and
evaluation assets during the year as a signature bonus.
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On J’anuary 17, 2010, the Parent Entlty s1gned a Memorandum of Agreement w1th PT Indommas, an
“Indonesian Company duly orgamzed and existing under: the-laws of the Republic of JIndonesia, with

_principal office address at JL, K_lamp1s Anom I1/29, Surabaya, Indonesia (referred to as ClaJmowners) :
.- After January 17, 2010, the Claimowners expect to be granted Mining Rights by the governmcnt state
corporation Perusahaan Daerah (Petusda) Pd. Utama Sultra of South East Sulawesi of the Repubhc of

Indonesia, covering an approximate 4,779 hectares mining-exploration concession at South East

- -Sulawesi Province of the Republic of Indonesia. The Claimowners granted the Parent Entity tac
- ‘excluswe rights to do preliminary studies before choosing the area to be developed. If the results of -

the studies are favorable, the Parent Entity shall pay another US$170,000 upon sapproval of the

" _conversion of the selected. areas into exploration concession. Within: thirty (30) days:after the
- . Claimowners shall have obtained and delivered to the Parent Entity all government approvals,
", permits, extensions and 11censcs, the Parcnt Entity at the sole expense shall start geological and

" 'geophysical surveys on the mining concessions for the purpose of detenmmng the potentlals for

.~ commercial operations, development and exploitation of the above-mentioned mining concessions. At
. the end of 2010, prehmmary studies on the said area have not been completed.

'fThe preliminary geologic survey on the proposed subject area indicated possible deposits. Outside and

~“a"bit far from the subject area, there are many gold panners. The Parent Entity is also evaluating the

. 'peace and order situation in the area. After evaluating several factors, the Parent Entity will have a
- “better total picture on the business prospects of the gold mining project. '

- "'In August 2010, the Parent Entity furnished the samples of rocks gathered from the survey made in
. Indonesia to Toyo - Union Co., Ltd. (TUCL) and expressed an intention to have a business association
.. with them, subject to some terms and conditions, including confidentiality and exclusivity rights
" “reserved for the Parent Entity. TUCL recognized and respect the exclusive rights of the Parent Entity

and have entered into a fnemorandum of agreement with the Parent Entity on September 13, 2010.

... During 2011, the engineers and geologist of TUCL together with the engineers from Asphal Buton
..~ 'Nasional were able to go to the asphalt concession areas and collected about sixty (60) kilos of
. samples ‘and TUCL was able to bring samples to Tokyo. As of date, the Parent Entity has no

" .-agreement with TUCL.

.~ On March 16, 2017, in the special meeting of the Board of Directors, it was resclved that while the
° Parent Entity is proceeding with caution and at the same time re-evaluating its Indonesian mining

- "project owing to the precipitous fall in the world price of crude, the Parent Entity is at present inclined

- to pursue the said project for that reason the Indonesian partners have been continuously looking for
- foreign partners to invest capital needed after they have secured formal approval of the exploitation

- " coneession because of its viability. Furthermore, the Parent Entity has been studymg and evaluating a
7 project cost study submitted by a project proponent pertaining to silica sand quarrying and processing

- .. operation. The Parent Entity is aware of the increasing demand for flat glass and glass bottles by local
.~ glass’ manufacturing companies. Management has been evaluatmg the impact of the Ilatest

© " environmental policies, regulations and pronouncements made by various government-agencies on the
N '_'."feasxblhty and sustainability of the project. Another 1mportant factor being considéered by management

" .is the peace and order situation in the prospective silica mining sites. Towards this end, the Laperal

- family and LTC Real Estate Corporation committed to support and fund the said projects.

" In 2018 the President, Desiderio L. Laperal travelled to Europe for preliminary discussions and
- observation of IT-based business applications related to remote sensing of marine and land resources,
. land-use, and community development. President Laperal observed driver-less autofomous farm
machinery, robotic steel fabrication and remote-coptrolled fisheries management systems. He was

‘ 1mpressed with the Green Energy initiatives mandated by the European Union, which is meant to
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. encourage more reliance on renewable power sich as’ air. tui‘biﬂés,fhydfo "and"SOIQr;" All of these
“applications and the downstream business opportunities are klevant to Imperial Resougces.

fI‘he'r'e are some business opportunities which M'r..bés'ideﬁo_' L. Laperal, the Vice President and Chief
Finaticial Officer, has been looking into during his business trip to Europe in 2019. He had

. preliminary discussions and observations of IT-based business applications related to remote sensing

- of marine and land resources, land use and community development. In June 2019 he travelled to

.- Europe to meet with potential partners and continue discussions on investment opportunities in the

" Philippines. On that trip, he ‘accompanied two Italian businessmen to the Philippine €onsul in Milan,
~+ Ttaly to-confer with Consul General Irene Susan Natividad arid Consul Mersole Mellejor, Mr. Laperal
* “invited the two Italian businessmen to visit Manila in 2019 but the date was subsequently reset to

A .- ~March, 2020. The COVID-19 pandemic has caused the visit to be cancelled. The recent reopening of
" regional economies from COVID-19 gives management hope that before the end of 2020 the visit will

j'.'-m'at_erialize resulting to fruitful discussions. Meantime, the Laperal family will continue to support
- " financially the operations of the Parent Entity.

" The dévelopment of vaccine by various pharmacentical companies against COVID-19 during the

- “lafter part of 2020 boosted the hopes for global economic recovery. Management plans to re-establish

. communications with the Italian businessmen when travel to Europe becomes safer and less stringent

. and pursue further discussions on the business opportunities initially discussed. Meantime, the Laperal
- family will continue to support financially the operations of the Parent Entity.

5 *Immediately after the Government imposed the Enhanced Community Quarantine: (ECQ) on March
- 15, 2020, management gave priority to the safety and well-being of its employees by temporarily
- 'stopping the operations of the Company. The quarantine entailed more expenses and difficulties for

"the employees to meet their daily needs and health issues. To allay the fears and anxieties of ‘ifs

employees facing uncertainties about their financial as well as health conditions one of the officers of

' “the Company advanced the employees’ 13% month pay and paid leave in full.

After two (2) months of lockdown on May 18, 2020 when the Modified Enhanced Community
7+ Quarantine (MECQ) was imposed the Company started operating again. The primary concern of the
' Company was how to the keep its employees fit to work, protect them from being afflicted with the

. COVID-19 virus and implementing the many government-imposed restrictions and guidelines. The
. following actions have been taken up by the Company in line with the prescribed procedures by the
" government to mitigate the negative effects of the pandemic on its employees’ mental well-being and

- ' physical and emotional health:

a. The Company has been providing its personne] with shuttle service'to and from work
every day and for some, sleeping quarters, TV, and laundry area within the office
premises.

b. Providing facial masks, face shields, isopropyl alcohol, hand sanitizers and or soap.

* The employees are obliged to wash/ sanitize their hands more often. Alcohol and
‘sanitizers are provided to visitors upon entering the office. -

c. Appropriate social distancing is made a protocol not only inside but outside of the

workplace. ‘

Communications are done mostly through electronic mail or telephone.

Frequent disinfection of the workplace. ‘ :

f. Company-paid mandatory Rapid test and swab test if necessary. Employees are urged
to be vigilant always and to disclose their health problems or possible exposure of the
virus including their families or other persons they had close contact with. Free

o A



medical check-up and ‘testing when percelved symptoms of COVID- 19 ‘are
experienced.

g. Providing Multl-wtamms, farm-fresh organic vegctables and fruits’ to strengthen the

‘immune system of the employees. :

h.. Starting from Septcmber 2020 the- Company has granted a temporary COVID -19
‘related cash benefit to all employees at Pesos' Two Thousand (P2, 000) per month per
employee to help them cope with the nsmg cost of living and transportation. This
benefit will be discontinued as soon as the business condition i mp;oves and at the

. discretion of managément.

i.- Continuous -dissemination of information to the employees on how to protect
themselves and their families and prevent the spread of COVID-19.

- j.  Management is' studying ways and means of helping its employees regardmg the
vaccination program against COVID-19 in relation to the policies and programs to be
Jmplemented by the government. ‘

; '-'In July 2020 one employee was tested positive of COVID -19. Management ordered a one-week
L 'lb'ekdown and disinfection of the whole work area. After a month of qua:antme the employee who
" was a senior citizen opted to retire. .

B Managcment has been using various modes of remote communication such as teleconferencing,
©-videoconferencing ard electronic mail system. The new normal way of conducting staff meetings is
< '"video::onferencing All the meetings of the Board of Directors including the annual stockholders’
 “meeting in 2020 were held through wdeoconferencmg All the members of the Board attended the
- PSE-SEC Corporate Governance Forum on July 10, 2020 to keep abreast of the effects of the COVID-
o 19 pandemic on the national economy and the people, risk management strategies, pursuit of corporate
.. . sustainability based on experiences from the pandemic and SEC regulatory updates. The members of
... . the Board were enlightened about the importance of the sustainability reporting in mitigating various
" s -risks.

. After-studying, evaluating, and analyzing the Parent Entity’s current office and work set-up and the

- . nature of the work of the employees, management concluded that work-from-home mode of work is
. - difficult to adopt. Employees lack computer equipment, inadequate internet conmections at their
.. homes, their home conditions are not suited for home-based work are some reasons why work-from-

" "home cannot be adopted. The plan of management to adopt skeletal force to minimize cost was

~."shelved because of limited manpower specially so that one employee retired.

... ’This COVID-19 pandemic has greatly affected the human and financial resources of the Parent Entity.
- -~The Parent Entity’s survival has been a pressing and challenging issue. Despite the economic and
.+ health benefits management has been extending its employees they still experience anxiety, lack of
" focus and concentration, fear for the health of their families, frequent absences, uncertainty of the
.. future Tesulting to a below-par performance in discharging their duties and responsibilities. The
" administrative costs for the year 2020 went up due to the transportation and gasoline expenses

- incurred in transporting its employees and use of vehicles for messengerial activities. The medical

- 'and dental expenses of the employees also increased due to the mandatory rapid and swab testing and
" more frequent medical check-ups, Office and other supplies increased due to the COVID-19 related
-+ supplies purchased. Business opportunities in 2020 have not been actively pursued. Preliminary talks

were either postponed or cancelled.
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- Subsidiary Ly

Until the middle of 2008, the Subsidiary was engaged in the bﬁsiﬁes’_s of Information "i"eéhnoldgy (1
'T.) - Education. Educational facilities are located in Baguio .and Malolos, Bulacan, each with an
enrollment of 40-60 students and class-sizes lithited to- about 15 students. All potential- students

* undergo rigorous online entrance exams to ensure high quality students. The school’s objective is to
- produce-a small number of extremely high quality -graduates each year. The educational facility
- located in Malolos had a “Joint Livelihood Project” with the Provincial Government of Bulacan which

" was formally terminated in May 2007. The school transferred to another location in Malolos, Bulacan

- in time for June 2007 school enrollment. However, in  June 2008 the two (2) learning centers

. temporarily suspended theif operations and remain as-such up to the present.

" Management has decided to shift from LT. education project to technical-vocational 'edu'cation,

. training and assessment ‘project. Management believes in the value of education, hence, this new
. project is the Subsidiary’s answer to government’s call to help stimulate economic growth through
- productive employment. The  Subsidiary is aware of the global need and the lack of highly skilled

. welders, pipe filters and other allied skills in the construction business. With this new venture, the

Subsidiary hopes to provide a relevant training system that can fully prepare the manpower with the

' correct skills needed in the rapidly modemizing economies.

SR ”'It{has secured a-property lease in Pasay City, as the site of the education and training facility, for five

" (5) years commencing on April 1, 2008. The monthly rental is ten percent (10%) of the gross tuition,

: matriculation, and students’ miscellaneous fees from July 1, 2009 up to July 31, 2013. The
.- preparation, construction and renovation works on the education and training facility started in March
.- 2008. For the techno vocational project, the Subsidiary engaged the services of its administrator in

* March 2008, Two (2) employees were hired in June 2008 to assist the administrator,

: . The training center, in cooperation with the PGMA Scholarship of Technical Education and Skills
- Development Authority (TESDA), conducted its operations from February to July 2009. In August,

B . TESDA temporarily cut its PGMA Scholarship Program which is the mainstay of welding schools in

‘.. sustaining their operations. Because the Subsidiary failed to obtain marketing agreements to provide
- welding training for maritime placement companies’ recruits, the management of the Parent Entity has
" .-been milling over the idea of phasing off this techno-vocational project to concentrate on its more
- * financially promising mining project. -

o ‘For the years 2008 and 2007 (and prior years), there were no material sources of revenite. It was only

" +in"2009 that it generated revenue from tuition fees for its techno-vocational project. However, as

-~ discussed above, operations have been hampered due to temporary cessation of the PGMA
" .‘Scholarship Program of TESDA. The Subsidiary incurred net losses of P0.24, P0.35, and P0.21
.. million for the years 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Due to the losses incurred, the Subsidiary has

- capital deficiency amounting to P29.11 million, P23.87 million, and P23.52 million as at December

-~ 31,2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

| _ " For the past years, the Parent Entity has rendered continuous support to the Subsidiary by providing
- the necessary funds when the need arises.

On March 20, 2013, at the meeting of the Management Committee, wherein, all members who were
~ also directors were present and representing majority of the members of the Board of Directors

- unanimously resolved and approved the dormancy status of Philippine Cyber College Corporation

. (PCC) due to its non-operation since 2010 and because of the significant losses incurred by the




 /Subsidiary. As at Deceniber 31, 2013 2012 and 2011, thé Capxtal Deﬁcxency amounted to P20 90
“million, P20. 03 million, and P18 76 million. _ S ..

In 2015, the Subsidiary has entertamed inquiries or propoéals to lea§e 1ts building m:Bagum Cﬂy
Consequently, the Subsidiary has changed its basis ‘of accounting from hqmdatlon ‘basis to going-

‘concern basis;

- 'In 2016, an interested party p'ropo'sed to rent the bmlding to be used as its markefing office for Thirty
‘Five Thousand Pesos (P35,000.00) per month. On March 16, 2017, at the speclal meeting of the Board

o of Directors, it was resolved that the Vice-Chairman and Vice-Presiderit, is authorized and empowered
- to negotiate, transact, conclude, execute and sign, for dnd-in behalf of the Subsidiary, agreements or

- contracts for the lease of the property in Baguio ‘as well as to deliver such necessary records,

R ‘documents or papers pertinent to or in its implementation. It was resolved further that the same person

.are authorized and empowered to agree on the terms, conditions and stipulations, and the price of the

. lease, for the best interest of the Company, However, 'due to the change of marketing plans of the
" . -prospective lessee the lease agreement was not finalized. Early in 2018 an interested party made an
.. :offer to lease the building to be used as a primary school for Forty Thousand Pesos (P40,000) per
s month However, the negotiation bogged down.

_ Despite the presence of the caretaker to prevent informal settlers to enter and use the property as their

‘: . dwelling place,.in 2013, management decided to allow Philippine National Internal Affairs Services
" (PNP-IAS) to use portion of the ground floors as its office for free, During the latter part of 2018, the

. "PNP-IAS moved out of the property. In 2019, the management repaired and repainted the building in
- ‘order to better attract potentml lessees considering its good location. Accordingly, the Subs1d1ary
~. -continued its reporting ona going-concern basis of accounting.

S In June 2020, management received a proposal from an educational institution to. lease the Baguio
- “." property to set up a school for its mainstream learning and distant learning programs at seventy-five

*-""thousand pesos (P75,000) per month. The prospective lessee wanted a minimum of five-year lease
) contract. The negotiation did not prosper.

- 'In January 2021, another interested party submitted a proposal to lease the said property for its
" . planned bed and breakfast business at Seventy-Five Thousand (P75,000) per month for two (2) years.
*' -~ Management is evaluating the proposal including some conditions proposed by the lessee in line with
* - ‘the short and long-term effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on the business of the Subsidiary and the
. lessee. With the vaccine against COVID-19 slowly becoming available in the country, it is expected
... that the number of COVID-19 cases will be reduced, thus, accelerating the growth of the economy
" Management is confident that it can find a lessee during 2021, thus, making the building an incomeg-

o generatmg assct

o Commztment of support of shareliolders

- "In the previous years, Mr. Oliverio G. Laperal Sr., the Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s former
- President, and other major shareholders have committed to support and to fund the ongoing and new

.. projects, and assured the continuous operations of the Parent and Subsidiary’s.

-~ In 2007, as a sign of support-and commitment, the President paid in full his subscription of P400
. million to increase the capital stock of the Parent Entity and Subsidiary (from P700 million to P1.8

. .billion) by executing a deed of assignment of a real estate property in favor of the Parent Entity and

Subsidiary. The transfer certificate of title of the said property was issued in the name of Imperial

" Resources, Incorporated on September 3, 2007 per TCT N-307207 issued by the Register of Deeds:of

b T AR ot ox . e e
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. Quezon City. Aside from the subscnphon of P400 mﬂhon pa1d for in real cstate property, cash
“ advances amounting to P8.89 million, P4.5 million and P915-thousand were received from the former
" President for the years 2015;-2014. and 2013, respectively. The sharcholders have pau'i their unpaid

subscnptlon amounting to P150,000 and P100,436 for the years 2018 and 2016, respectively.

' :As discussed.in Note 2, thc Laperal family and LTC Real Estate Corporation committed to support
“and fund the said projects. LTC Real Estatc Corporatmn, a sharcholder, had provided cash advances

- amounting to P6,521,000, P9,264,000, and P7,279,000 (Note, 20) for the years-ended Decembe;'_ 31,

- 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Given the financial condition of the Parent Entity and Subsidiary,

- . the shareholders do not demiand ‘immediate repayment of their advances to the Parent Entity and

" Subsidiary.

. 'NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

. The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
- . statements are set out below to facilitate understanding of the data presented in the consolidated
' _ﬁnanCIaI statements. These policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.

.".l.

© - 3.1Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

= The accompanying consolidated - financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
* Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). The term PFRS in general includes all applicable

= - PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and interpretations of the Philippine Interpretations

‘-‘. [ Committee (PIC), Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) and International Financial Reporting
" Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) which have been approved by the Financial Reporting Standards
.Council (FRSC) and adofted by the SEC. A

. "These consolidated financial-statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
7 -except for certain assets measured at fair value. The consolidated financial statements are presented in
" Philippine Peso, the Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s functional currency.

. 'The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires the use of

. certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgment in the process

"¢ . of applying the Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
".:degree of judgment, complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
© "7 consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 5.

-l:"--'Basis-of Consolidation

L “These consolidated financial statements consist of the financial statements of Parent Entity and its
' ‘Subsidiary as at and for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018. The financial statements

: "":”.'of the Subsidiary are prepared for the same reporting period as the Parent Entity using consistent
"7 accounting policies.

o S’ubsidiary

'_ Subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by another entity. Control is when the latter is exposed or has
“'rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those

returns through its power over the Subsidiary.
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~ The Parent Entity has the power to govern the financial r rting policies’ géhéraﬂy _ACcomi}anying a
shareholding of more than ore-half of the voting rights o?f‘;:

: : _ e Subsidiary. The Parent Entity obtains
and exercises control through voting rights, The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are

- ‘currently exercisable and convertible are considered ‘when assessing whether the:Parent Entity

controls another company. Consolidation begins from the date the Parent Entity obtains control of the

- Subsidiary and ceases when it loses control,

- All intragroup  balances, income and expenses and unrealized gains and losses from intragroup

+ - transactions are eliminated in full. s

(A

- ' Non-controlling Interest

"":-Non-controllihg interest represents the pértion of profit or loss and other coniprehensive" income and

- . the net assets not held by the Parent Entity and are presented separately in the consolidated statements
;" of comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position,
-, separately from the equity holders of the Parent Entity. Transactions with non-controlling interest are

.;accounted for using the entity concept method, whereby the difference between the consideration and

' the'book value of the share of the net assets acquired is recognized as an equity transaction.

32 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

" The acc'ountin'g: policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
-consistent with those of the previous financial year except for the adoption of the following new and
- amended standards and interpretations, which became effective beginning January 1, 2020. The

x ~adoption of these new and amended standards and interpretations did not have significant impact on’

the Parent Entity and Sulsidiary’s financial statements.

©:3.2.1 New standard s, amendments to existing standards and interpretation effective in the current year
- and are relevant to the Conipany’s operations :

_'--;f:‘?.;‘:u-‘Amendmcnts to PFRS 3, Definition of a Business — The amendments narrowed and clarified the
“i.- -definition of a business. They also permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired sét of
;. activities and assets is a group of assets rather than a business.

- Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, and PAS 8, Accounting Policies,
" 'Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - these amendments which use a consistent definition of
7 materfality throughout PFRSs and the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting, clatify when
 “information is material and incorporate some of the guidance in PAS 1 about immaterial information.

* In particular, the amendments clarify;: :

o . that the reference to obscuring information addresses sifuations in which the effect is similar
to omitting or misstating that information, and that an entity assesses materiality in the
context of the financial statements as a whole, and

» the meaning of ‘primary users of general-purpose financial statements’ to whom those
- financial statements are directed, by defining them as ‘existing and potential investors,
lenders and other creditors’ that must rely on general purpose.



Revzsed Conceptual meework for Financial Reportmg b
S

The International Accountmg Standards Board (IASB) has issued a revised Concept\:tal Framework
whmh will be used in standard-setung decisions with immediate effect. Key changes include:

mcrcasmg the prommence of stewardshlp i the objectzve of financial reporting,
reinstating prudence as a component of neutrality,
. defining a reporting entity, which may be a legal entity, or a portion of an entlty,
revising the definitions of an asset and a liability,
removing the probability threshold for recognition and adding guidance on derecognition,
adding guidance on different measurement basis, and :
stating that proﬁt or loss is the prunary performance indicator and that, in principle, income
+and expenses.in other comprehensive income should be recycled where ﬂns enhances thc
. relevance or faithful representation of the financial statements.

‘No changes will be made to any of the current accounting standards. However, entities that rely on the
L ‘._'-Framework in determining their accounting policies for transactions, events or conditions that are not
- otherwise dealt with under the accounting standards will need to apply the revised Framework from
I .January 1, 2020, These entities will need to consider ‘whether their accounting policies are stﬂl
' appropriate under the revised Framework,

i -‘3.3 Financial instruments

*.. A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
S hablhty or equity instrument of another entity.

| The Parent Entity and Subsidiary classify financial assets and Liabilities according to the categories
.-~ described below. Management determines the classification of the financial assets and 11ab111t1es at
. initial recognition,

i 3.3;1.1 Financial assets
* “The classification of financial assets depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow

- PR
¥ e e

“Entity and Subsidiary classify financial assets in the following categories:

characteristics and the Parent Entity and Subs1d1ary s business model for managing them. The Parent

- " a. Financial assets at amortized cost

- Financial assets at amortized cost are debt instruments where contractual terms give rise on

. specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the pnnc1pa1
+ amount outstanding and held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows,

- The Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s financial assets classified under this category consist of cash
and cash equivalents, othér receivables and refundable deposit.
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_‘b.. 'Financicﬂ’ assels at fair Valué-thfaugh other cathréﬁén&iié income (FVOCI) -
Financial assets at fair value through OCI comprise: o

o  Debt instruments where contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
" “solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and are held : |
within a business model with the objective to hold' financial assets in order to collect S
-~ éontractual cash flows and selling f'mancxal instraments. .
;.
.o ' Equity instruments wluch are ot held for tradmg and which the Parent and Subs1d1ary has
.. -irrevocably elected at initial recognition to recogmze in th15 category, This election is made on
‘an instriment-by-instrument basis. :

- "The Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s financial ‘aséet.'l..nider 'thi's' category consists of inve's_ﬁnent in | i
- stocks quoted in active market. The Parent Entity and Subsidiary elected to measure it at fair vaiue ) |
through other comprehensive income. : |

o ananczal assets at fair value through profit or loss (FT/PL)

g Fmancml assets at fair’ value through proﬁt or loss include financial assets held for trading, T
. .7 financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial o
.. assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value, Financial assets are classified as held for ’ :
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,

including separated embedded. derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are

~ designated-as effective hedging instruments. Financijal assets with cash flows that are not solely

" payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,

" irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be

classified at amortized cost or at fair value through OCI, as described above, debt instruments may

~ -be designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates; or

. signi‘ﬁcantly reduces, an accounting mismatch. ‘ |

, ‘ 'I”he Parent Entlty and Sub51d1ary ‘has no financial assets under this category. f |

o 3 3 1 2 Financial L1ab111t1es

; f g RS The Parent Entity and Subsidiary classify financial liabilities in the following categories:
D -;‘-_"_aﬁr. Fiﬁancfal Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

* . Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
. and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
" Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading. if they are incurred for the purpose of
_repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Parent Entity and Subsidiary that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they

are designated as effective hedging instruments.

o The.Parent Entity and Subsidiary has no financial liabilities under this category.
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b Fmanczal l jabilities at amort:zed cost : ok

'Fmancml liabilities that are'not classu'ied as at fan- value through proﬁt or loss fall into this category
and are subsequently measured at amortizedcost. They contain contract obligations to-deliver cash
or another financial asset to the holder or to seftle the obligation other than exchange of a fixed
‘amount of cash. They are included in current liabilities, except for maturities greater than twelve (12)
“months after the reporting period which are classified in non-current liabilitics.

~ The Parent Entlty and Subsidiary’s financial liabilities classified under this catggory consist of
" accruals and other payables (except ‘payable to government agencies) ‘and -advances from

- “shareholders.
-~73.3.2 Recognition and measurement -

-*’a. Initial recognition and measurement

Except for trade receivables that do not contain a siganificant financing component which are

i+ measured at the transaction price, the Parent Entity and Subsidiary initially measures a financial

_asset or financial liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial

i liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are ‘directly attributable té the

acquisition. or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

If the fair value of the financial asset or financial Hability at initial recognition differs from the
- transaction price, the Parent Entity and Subsidiary shall recognize the difference as a gain or loss.

Repular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade-date, e.g., the date

" on which the Parent Entity and Subsidiary commits to purchase or sell the asset.

b Subsequent measurement

Financial asscts at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method

-~ and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is

* derecognized, modified, or impaired.

. " For debt instruments at fair value throu gh OCI], interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and

impairment losses or reversals are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and computed in
~ “the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortized cost. The remaining fair value

" 'changes are recognized in OCI. Upon derecognition, the curnulative fair value change recognized

" in OCI is recycled to profit or loss.

S For equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI, gains and losses are never recycled to

- - profit or loss. Dividends are recognized as income when the right of payment has been established,
except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the
financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments deSIgnated at

- fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

' Financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of
financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognized in the profit or loss,

Other financial liabilities are measured at amortizéd cost using the effective interest method.

12



Amortlzed cost is calculated by takmg into-account an: scount or premlum ‘on acqmsxtton and

~fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The eﬁ'ecuve interest rate
amort1zat1on is mcluded as ﬁnance costs in the statement of comprehenswe income.

3.3.3 Derecogx_ntzo

3 3 3 L Fmanglal assets
- The Parent Ent:ty and Sub51d1ary shall dcrecogmze a ﬁnanc:al asset only when: '

(a) the contractual rights’ to the cash flows from the financial assets have explred, or
(b) the Parent Entity and Subsidiary transfers to another party substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial assets, or
(c) the Parent Entity and Subsidiary, despite havmg retained some significant nsks and
rewards of ownership, has transferred cortrol of the asset to another party and the other
 party has the practmal ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and
is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose additional
restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the Parent Entity and Subsidiary shall:
6] derecognize the asset, and
(i) recognize separately any rights and obhgatlons retained or created in the
- transfer,

‘.
-y

R 'M:?ah‘ﬁl‘ N ."‘ - o ‘- . - e A .- . B ) .A . . )
. - - e - . - - - s

e -'.The catrying amount of the transferred asset shall be allocated between the rights or obligations
- retained and those transferred on the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly
. “.created rights and obligations ‘shall be measured at their fair values at that date. Any difference
... ~between the consideratioh received and the amounts recognized and derecognized in accordance with
""" 'this paragraph shall be recognized in profit or loss in the period of the transfer. :

: 713‘.}-'_ __'_"I‘he Parent Entity and Subsidiary shall derecognize a ﬁnanc1a1 liability (or a part of a financial
o+ liability) only when it is extinguished, i.e., when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
~ " cancelled, or has expired.

Lo 3.3.4 Impaimment of financial assets

" . The Parent Entity and Subsidiary recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all
" debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on. the difference
i ‘between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the: cash flows that the
D -‘._..".'-:Parent Entity and Subsidiary expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
. effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
© o7 or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

UBCLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant

.- - inerease in credit risk sirice initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from

- default events that are possible within the next 12-months (12-month ECL). For those credit exposures

- for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance

' is required for credit losses expected over the remammg life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing
- of the default (lifetime ECL).
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 For financial assets at amortized costs being individually assessed for ECLs, the Parent Enitity and
Subsidiary applied lifetime ECL calculation. This involves ‘determination of probability of default and
loss-given default based on available data, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
- 'and the economic environment. :

' The Parent Entity and Subsidiary considers a financial asset to be in default when a counterparty fails
. to pay its contractual obligations, or thetre is a breach of other contractual terms, ‘such as covenants. In
. certain cases, the Parent Entity and Subsidiary may also consider a financial asset to be in default
" 'when internal or external information indicates that the' Parent Entity and Subsidiary is unlikely to
" receive the outstanding contractial amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements

" teld by the Parent Entity and Subsidiary. A financial asset i§ written off when there is 10 reasonable

expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

- 13.3.5 Offsetting financial instruments

' Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the consolidated

* . statements of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized
‘arbunts and there is an’ intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability

_ simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master petting agreements, wherein the related
- agsets and liabilities are presented at gross in the consolidated statements of financial position.

©'3.3.6 Fair value of financial instruments

* “Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly

o transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

= _The‘ fair value of a non-financial asset is measured based on its highest and best use. The asset’s current
.. use is presumed to be its highest and best use,

““The fair value of financial and non-financial Habilities takes into account non-performance risk, which
is the tisk that the entity will not fulfill an obligation.
a "The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets at each reporting date is
* - ‘determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long
- positions and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.

" For financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate
-+ svaluation techniques. Such techniques may include: '

» Using recent arm’s length market transactions,
s Reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, and

» A discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation models.

-3.3.7 Fair value hierarchy

- The Parent Entity and Subsidiary classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that

| _reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has

- . the following levels:
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' Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active ma:kets for‘ldenncal assets or habl]mes

| Level 2: other techmques for which all inputs whlch have a significant effect on the recordea fa1r‘

" value are observable, either dmectly or mdlrectly, and -

- chel 3: techniques whlch use inpiits wlnch have & s1gmﬁcant effect on the recorded fair value
that are not based on observable market data,

-.'-The fan- value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted tharket prices at the

- .-:-'; ‘reporting date. A market is regarded as active if quoted pnces are readily and regularly available from
. ah exchange, dealer, broker, mdustry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices

) " represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

" The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-

:' .. counter derivatives) is determined by using valuition techniques. These valuation techniques
- maximize the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity

Specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
" ingtrument is included in Level 2.

:-*If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the ms'crumen‘r is
- included in Level 3. Specific valuation technique used to value these financial instruments is

R "discounted cash flow analysis.

... 3.4 Cash and cash equivalents

- . Cash, which includes cash on hand and deposits held at call with banks and carried in the consolidated
" -statement of financial position at face value, are unrestricted and immediately available-for-use in the

" current operations.

-'j‘Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid debt instruments that are readily convertible to known

~-.amounts of cash with original maturities of three (3) months or less from date of placement and are
. « ‘subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

- 3.5 Other receivables

“"_Other receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
- using the effective interest method, less allowance and provision for impairment.

- At the end of each reporting petiod, the carrying amounts of other receivables are reviewed to

. determine whether there is any objective evidence that the amounts are not recoverable.

3.6 Prepayments

- Prepayments include advance payment for insurance, membership dues and subscription. These

" ‘represent expenses not yet incurred but already paid in cash. Prepayments are initially recorded as

~ assets and measured at the arhount of cash paid. Subsequently, these are charged to income as these
“are consumned in operations or expire with the passage of time.

15



" .3 7Investmegt instocks . : .- ' SRS :

o )

S

o Upon initial recognmon the Parent Ent1ty and Subs1d1ary can elect to classﬂ-'y m'evocably its. equity

investents as equity instruments designated at FV OCT when they meet the definition of equlty under

“PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation and ‘are not held for trading. The classification s
“determined on an instrumenit-by-instriment basis.

Gams and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the statement of income: Dmdends are

.-Tecognized as other income in the statement of income when the right of payment has been estabhshed

. except when the Parent Entlty and Subsidiary benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of-the

© = cost of the financial asset, i which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruinents designated
at FVOCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

“The Parent Ent1ty and Subskha’ry elected to classify u'i'evot:ably its quoted equity sectirities under this

" category which are presented ‘as: Investment in stocks in the statements of financial” position as at
_-December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 (Note 11). Prior to adoption of PFRS 9, this financial asset was
,"_qlasmﬁed as AFS financial assets.

" AFS financial assets

- Available- for-sale ﬁnancml assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
. . available-for-sale or aré not classified as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or
: . financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Certain shares held by the Parent Entity and
' Subsidiary are being classified as available-for-sale and are stated at fair value. Gains and losses
. arising from changes in fair value are recognized directly in other comprehensive income, until the
.. investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
-+ previously recognized in other comprehensive income is included in profit or loss for the period.

" Available-for-sale financial assets are ‘initially measured at transaction price and subsequently
. measured at fair value,

RE -3.8 Property and eguipment,. net
e i"’Property and -equipment, excépt land, are carried at cost less accumulated depi*eciétion and any
* " impairment in value. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs

‘ of bringing the assets to working condition for its intended use. Cost also includes the cost of
" replacing part of such property and equipment when the recognition criteria are met.

. “"Subsequent expenditures relating to an item of property and equipment that have already been
...+ recognized are added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that the future economic
- benefits, in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset, will flow to

" the Parent Entity and Subsidiary. All subsequent expenditures are recognized as expense in the period

.. in which those are incurred.
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" Deprociation is computed using the straight-line method gver estimated useful Tivés (EUL) of the
~ related assets-as follows: : | ~ -

L

EUL

Building e S 15

. Transportation equipment - 5

* Welding equipment . 5
 Office-equipment 3 *

- Office furniture and fixture - 3

B ‘TI-IC useful lives and depreciatitjn method are reviewed at each reporting period to ensure that these are
_ consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property and equipment,

* Depreciation of an item of property and equipment begins when it becomes available for use, ie.,
* whe it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner

" intended by management. Depreciation ceases at the eatlier of the date that the item is classified as

.. held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale) in accordance with
.. PFRS 3, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, and the date the asset is
- “:derecognized.

5 Anitem of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits.

- - are expected from its use. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost, related.

. accumulated depreciation and aceumulated impairment losses are removed from the accounts and the

. resulting gain or loss, which is determined by comparing the proceeds with carrying amount, is

. "recognized to the statements of comprehensive income. Fully depreciated assets are retained in the
. accounts until they are no longer in use.

: - 3.9 Tnyestment property
“This account represents parcel of land which is initially carried at cost. Cost 'inclﬁd_eS'the acquisition
- cost of the land plus incidental costs incurred in effecting the transfer of title of the property and other
- -necessary expenses incurred in the acquisition. :

i '; " Investment property is property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or botli, rather than for:

(a) use in the produbtion or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes, or

o ... (b) sale in the ordinary course of business.

#"Investment property is recognized as an asset when and only when: (a) it is probable that the future
. economic benefits that are associated with the investment property will flow to the entity, and (b) the
- cost of the investment property can be measured reliably. :

- - After initial recognition, investment property is measured either by the fair value model or by the cost
“model and shall apply that policy to all of its investment property. Investment property is
" derecognized upon disposal or when permanently withdrawn from use and no fiture économic benefit
+'is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss on the retirement or disposal of an investment property

is recognized in the statements of comprehensive income in the year of retirement or disposal.
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;The fair value of invésjtmeﬁt'propéﬂyi_sh'aﬂ reﬂe_cf market _CDI_ldiﬁdﬁs: at.'the _repbrting;date; A gain or
loss arising from the change in the fair value of investment propérty shall be recognjzed in profit or
loss for the period in which it arises. K ] n

Fair value o_f"-' investment. property is the price at which the property could be exchanged bef%éieéﬁ '
- knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. , 3

_"The Patent Entity and Subsidiary shall continue to messure the property at fair value until disposal (or

: -.'_'.untﬂ"thg property becomes owner-occupied property or the Company begins to develop the property

 -- . for subsequent sale in the ordinary course of business) even if comparable market transactions become
 less frequent or market prices become less readily available.

'3.10'E>&p]oratid11 and evaluation assets

- Exploration and evaluation asséts are measured at cost. The following are expenditures that are
included in the initial measurement of exploration and evaluation assets (a) acquisition of rights to
"':"'.qxpilbre, (b) topographical, geological, geochemical and geophysical studies, (c) exploratory drilling,
~ (& trenching, () sampling, and (f) activities in relation to evaluating the technical feasibility and
- -commercial viability of extracting a mineral resource. After initial recognition, the Parent Entity and
- Subsidiary shall either use the cost model or the revaluation model. If the revaluation mode] is

... applied, it shall be consistent with the classification of assets. The exploration and evaluation assets

. are classified &s tangible or intangible. When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
- extracting a mineral resource are demonstrable, exploration and evaluation assets are reclassified to
- property and equipment account. : ‘

The Parent Entity and Siibsidiary uses cost model as its subsequent measurement of exploration and

L _evaluation assets - assets are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. .

“.-.. . Exploration and evaluation assets are measured for impairment when facts or circumstances suggest
- =+ that the carrying amount of an exploration and evaluation asset may exceed its recoverable amount.
. ‘When facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount, the
. - Parent Entity and Subsidiary measures, presents and discloses any resulting impairment loss. The
*; - Parent Entity and Subsidiary is still in the exploration stages and evaluation of mineral resources,

o '3'.1'1?'Impainnent of non-financial assets

- Assets that have an indefinite useful life - for example, goodwill o intangible assets not ready for use
- .- are pot subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
¢ amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
' the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying

- amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset or cash-generating unit is written down

- '"'to its recoverable amount, The estimated recoverable amount is the higher between the assets’ net

- ‘selling price and value in use. The net selling price is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset
'in an arm’s Jength transaction less the estimated cost of disposal while value in use is the present value

- - of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its
. disposal at the end of its useful life. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash

- inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.
-~ An impairment loss is charged to expense immediately, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount,
- Any impairment lass of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent of previously
recognized revaluation surplus for the same asset,
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_}\Iq;igfmanéial assets include prepayments (Note 10), propertyand “equipment; net- (Note 12),
. +1nvestment property (Note 13), and exploration and-evaluation assets (Note 14).

L

"There were rio impairmient losses on non-financial assets as at Decémber 31, -2020,:"2019 and 2018,

' 3.12Refundable deposit

. Tlns account pertains to refundable deposit for welding é’qﬁipméni which is stated at amortized cost”

- less any impairment in value. o

 :3.13 Related party transactions and relationships

Related party relationships exist when one party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly
." ' through one or more intermediaries, the other party .or exercise significant influence over the other
- party in making financial and operating decisions. Such relationships also exist between and/or
- among’ entities, which are under common control with the reporting enterprise or between and/or
e among the reporting enterprises and their key management personnel, directors or their shareholders.
. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the
- relationship and not merely the legal form. :

- :'Adv'an'ces fromh';hareholders' are initially recorded at transaction price and are subsequently measured
;- at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Dunng the consolidation process, due from subsidiary/due to parent company amounting to

N ~ P24,175,934 is eliminated.

314 Operating sepment

-An operating segment is a coniponent of an entity (a) that engages in business activities from which it

! may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to the transactions
7. 'with other components of the same entity), (b) whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the
" entity’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources t6 be ‘allocated to the

.- segment and assess the performance, and (c) for which discrete financial information is available,

5 <315 Taxation

" Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

- ' ' "':C':érrent tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit differs from profit as
. "reported in the statements of comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense
- that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable nor

- deductible. The Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that

" have been enacted or substantively enacted as at the reporting date.
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. Dféf'érred tax - B o .

N ' N '
Deferred tax is recogmzed on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and'heibmtles in the

“financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computatmn of taxable profit, and are
accounted for using the balance sheet hab111ty method. :

."The balance sheet 11ab111ty method focuses on. tempora.ry d1fferences, wlnch are the dxﬁ'erences
between the amount attributed to an asset. or liability for tax purposes (tax base) and the carrying
'amount of that asset or liability in the statements of financial position. ' s

"y Deferred income tax 11ab111t1es are recognized for all taxable temporary dJﬂ'erences Deferred incoie

. tax assets are reco gmzed for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits

- ‘from excess of the minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax and
' ‘unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
.~ be available against which'the deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused MCIT

o and unused NOLCO can be-utilized.

"I'-'he'c'arrying amount of deferred incomc tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
~ the extent that is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
- of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized.

‘ ‘ :f:'Def'erre'd inconie tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates applicable to the period when
.+ - the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
 enacted at the reporting date. ,

" Defetred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current

- " tax assets against current tax labilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
- . " taxation authority and the Parent Entity and Subsidiary intends to settle the current tax assets and
- liabilities on a net basis.

- Cutrent tax and deferred tax shall be recognized outside iaroﬁt or loss if the tax relates to items that are

R recognized, in the same or a different penod outside profit or loss. Therefore, current tax and deferred
.""" tax that relates to items that are recognized, in the same or a different period: '

() in other comprehensive income, shall be recognized in other comprehensive income,
(b) directly in equity, shall be recognized directly in equity.

B 8 .:Ai-'3.-16 Accruals and other payables

"+ Accruals and other payables are recognized in the period in which the money or services are received,
- or when a legally enforceable claim against the Parent Entity and Subsidiary is established, or when

""" the corresponding assets and expenses are recognized/incurred.

- Accruals and other payables are measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost
* - and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Accruals and otaer
- payables are derecognized when extinguished.
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3.17 Provisions i

Fs

.

Provisions are recognized when the Parent Entity and Subsidiary have a préseﬂt legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recogmzed for

future operating losses,

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognized

. even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of
, ‘-_.‘obI_igations may be small,

- Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the

.- obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
. the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recogmzed
- as mtercst expense,

There were no provisions recognized for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018.

~ 3.18 Continpencies

o Contingent liabilities are mot recognized in the financial statements. These are disclosed unless the

possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets.are

" not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when

an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

There were no contingent liabilities/assets for disclosures as at December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018.

- " 3.19 Equity

Share capital is determined using the nominal value of shares that have been issued and fully paid.

" Other comprehensive income (loss) pertains to remeasurement on retirement benefits payable.

_' "'_-'Retained earnings (deficit) include current and prior period results of operations as disclosed in the
statement of changes in equity.

. 3.20 Revenue and expense recognition

" - Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable in exchangé for the

. gervice in the ordinary course of the Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s activities. The Parent Entity and

- ... Subsidiary recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue is collectible, and it has met the
. ‘requirements of the 5-step approach of PFRS 15,

Revenue from contract with customers is recognized when the performance obligation in the contract

" has been satisfied, either at a point in time or over time. Revenue is recognized over time if one of the

following criteria is met: (a) the customer simultanecusly receives and consumes the benefits as the

Parent Entity and Subsidiary performs its obligations; (b) the Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s
performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or

~ enhanced; or (c) the Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s performance does not create an asset with an
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_alternative use to it and the Parent Entity and Subsidiary ;has an enforceable right to payment for

" performance completed to date. Otherwise, revenue is recoghized at a point in time.

The Parent Entity and Subsidiary is in the business of mining. This account comprises the revenue
from sales of asphalt, gold and other precious metal produced, sold and payment received from the
mining concessions and services rendered when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in

exchange for those goods or services.

5

*"To date, the Parent Entity has no product to sell and services to render since it is still in the pre-

. development and pre-exploration stage of the mining project and the Subsidiary being in the status of

- dormancy but has entertained inquiries or proposals to lease its building in Baguio City thus,
management is locking at a possible rental income.

(8} Interest income

" Interest income on bank deposits is presented when earned, net of final tax. Interest income on salary
- loan is recognized when earned.

.. (i) Cost and expenses

- Direct costs and expenses are recorded when incurred.

- 3.21 Emplovees costs

. Short-term employee bentfits

~‘Short-term employee benefits are employees® benefits (other than termination benefits) which fall due

wholly within twelve (12) months after the end of the period in which the employees render the

-+ related service, It includes salaries, wages, social security contributions, paid annual leaves and paid
- sick leave profit-sharing and bonuses (if payable within twelve months of the end of the period) and
. mon-monetary benefits for current employees. Currently, the Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s employees

are entitled to all the above-mentioned short-term benefits except profit sharing,

" Retirement benefits

.- Retirement benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) which are payable after
. the completion of employment, '

" "..The Parent Entity and Subsidiary has unfunded defined benefit retirement plan for qualified
.- employees. For purposes of determining its costs and obligation, the Company considers the minimum

" . requirement of Republic Act 7641 (the Retirement Law) of the Philippines. Under Republic Act 7641
' (known as the Retirement Pay Law), in the absence of a retirement plan or agreement providing for

' retirement benefits of employees in the private sector, an employee upon reaching the age of 60 years

or more, but not beyonid 65 years, who has served at least 5 years in a Company, may retire and shall
be entitled to retirement pay equivalent to at least % month salary for every year of service, a fraction
of at least 6 months being considered as one (1) whole year, The term “One-half month salary”

- includes the following:

a. Fifteen days salary based on the latest salary'fate;
b.. Cash equivalent of five days or service incentive leave (or vacation leave); and
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¢. One-twelfth of the 13% month pay (where the 13% month pay is the total basic salary for the
last twelve months of the service divided by twelve) ™ . .o

The Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s net obligation in respect of the defined benefit retirement plan is
calculated by estimating the amount of future benefits that employees have earned in return for their
service in the current year and-prior year periods. The benefit is discounted to determine the present

~ value, and the fair value of any plan asscts is deducted. The discount rate is the yield at financial

. Teporting date on high quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the

~ . Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s obligation, The current calculation is performed by a qualified actuary
~ © using the projected unit credit method.

. "Retiremeitt benefits expense comptises the following:

a. Service cost, :

o . b, Net interest on the net defined benefit liability,

.c. Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability.

. Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-routine

settlements are recognized as expense in profit or loss. Past service costs are recognized when plan

* . 'amendment or curtailment occurs, These amounts are calculated periodically by independent qualified
- actuaries. -

~~Net interest on the net defined benefit liability is the change during the period in the net defined

" benefit liability that arises from the passage of time which is determined by applying the discount rate

' based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability. Net interest on the net defined benefit
- liability is recognized as an expense in the profit or loss. ' .

. Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and Iosses, return on plan assets and any change in the
- effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized
- - 'immediately in the consolidated statements of financial position with a corresponding debit or credit

-~ to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in' which they occur,

- ‘Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

| 'l'~3.22 Leases

~'The Parent Entity and Subsidiary assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a

" lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in

" exchange for consideration, S
" Company as a Lessee

:.'."I‘hé Parent Entity and Subsidiary applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all
. leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease
© liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying

assets.

- Right-of-use assets

" . The Parent Entity and Subsidiary recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the

lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use).
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Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,

“and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities, Thecost of right-of-use assets includes the

amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives received, and the estimated costs to be incurred in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring it to the condition required by the
contract, '

. If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Parent Entity and Subsidiary at the end of the lease
~ tetm or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is- calculated using 'the
- estimated useful life of the asset. : :

- Lease liahilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Parent Entity and Subsidiary recognizes lease liabilities

measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments

" include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,

- 'variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under
-residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option

- . reasonably certain to be exercised by the Parent Entity and Subsidiary and payments of penalties for
_terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Parent Entity and Subsidiary exercising the option

to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as

" “expenses in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

L In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Parent Entity and Subsidiary uses its

incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is

- increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the

. carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,

-~ achange in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index

. orrate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase
~ . the underlying asset.

- Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

- The Parent Entity and Subsidiary applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term

. lease of office space. It has no other lease which will be classified as low value asset. Lease payments

. :.on short-term leases and leases of low value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis
_ -over the lease term. :

" 3.23 Foreign currency transactions

. In preparing the Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s consolidated financial statements, transactions in
- foreign currencies other than its functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at
‘the dates of the transactions. At each reporting date, monetary items denominated in foreign currency

are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value

' _ that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the

fair values are determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign

- currency are not retranslated.
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-Foreign currency gain or loss resulting from the scttlement lof such transaction at year-end excﬁ‘é‘nge

rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in fﬁreign currencies are regognized in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income. ,

3.24 Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share

.Basic earnings (loss) per share is calculated by dividing the income (loss) for the year atiributable to

* the common shareholders of the Parent Entity by the weighted average number of common shares

.. outstanding during the year, after considering the retroactive effect of stock dividend declaration, if

- any. The Corporation Code of the Philippines under Section 137 defines outstanding capital stock as

. " the total shares of stock issued under binding subscription agreements to subscribers or stockholders,
: whether or not fully or partially paid except treasury shares.

" Forthe purpose of calculating diluted earnings (loss) per share, profit (loss) for the year attributable to
~ ordinary equity holders of the Parent Entity and the weighted average number of shares outstandirig
| are adj_usted for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

1 3.9% Subsequent events

. The Parent Entity and Subsidiary identify subsequent events as events that occur after the reporting
~ - 'date but before.the date when the consolidated financial statements are authorized for issue. Any
. . subsequent events that provide additional information about the Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s
- consolidated financial position at the reporting date are reflected in the consolidated financial

- statements,

. '.Non-adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when material.

.Details of the subsequent events are disclosed in Note 29,
" NOTE 4 - CAPITAL MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

- The primary objective of the Parent Entity and Subsidiary on capital management is to ensure their

' ability to continue as a going concern and to provide adequate returns and benefits to shareholders and
" other stakeholders by operating with guidance of high technical services and pursue the long-term
- outlook of management to deliver long term growth and profits. D

_ "‘:-—'rThe Parent Entity and Subsidiary manages the following capital as shown in the statements of changes
'+ in equity: '

o Note 2020 2019 2018

* "Authorized capital 1,800,000,000 20 _

" Subscribed capital 652,500,000 20

. Paid-up capital 20 636,563,546 636,563,546 636,563,546

- ‘The Parent Entity and Subsidiary monitor capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity as
presented on the face of the statements of financial position.
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" .Measurement of the Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s financial {'Ieverage is summarized as follows:

L I

: 2020 2019 2018
Total liabilities 55,200,696 48,595,377 41,223,110°
Total equity ‘ 820,535,412 706,884,279 799,234,167
Debt-to-eguity ratio: : 0.0665:1 0.0610:1 0.0515:1

" “The Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for nionitoring capital
" .-in proportion to risk. Profiles or capital ratios are set in the light of changes in its extemal environment

~ and the risks underlying its business, operations, and industry.

“The Parent Entity and Subsidiary define capital as paid-up share capital and retained earnings, both
~ -appropriated and unappropriated. Other components of equity such as treasury stock are excluded
* -~ from capital for purposes of capital management.

" The Parent Entity and Subsidiary set the amount of capital in proportion to its overall financing

structure, i.e., equity and financial liabilities. Parent Entity and Subsidiary manage the capital structure

."and make adjustment in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
* underlying asset, ‘ '

" The Parent Entity and Subsidiary is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

| 'NOTE 5 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

~ These consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with PFRS require management to
- make judgments and estimates that affect amounts reported in the financial statements and related
- notes. Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
- other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under

circlimstances. Actual results may ultimately differ from these estimates.

~ 5.1 Critical management judgments in applying accounting policies

*In the process of applying the Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s accounting policies, management has
.. ~made the following judgments, apart from those involving estimation, which have the most significant
* “effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

a. Functional currency

The Philippine Peso is the currency of the prima;:y. economic environment in which the
Company operates. It is the currency in which the Parent Entity and Subsidiary measures
the performance and reports the results of the operations.

b. ‘Lease agreements (prior to January 1, 2019)

The Parent Entity and Subsidiary has entered into several lease agreements, Critical
judgment was exercised to distinguish each lease agreement as either operating or finance
lease by looking at the transfer or retention of significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the properties covered by the agreement. Failure to make the right judgment will result
in either overstatement or understatement of assets and liabilities.
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. the lease; ‘together with: any: periods covere

2020;2019 and 2018 Note24).

¢ léase territ as the non-cancelldble tefm of
by-an-option to extend the lease ifitis
4ity ‘periods ‘covered by an option to terminate the

. "Iiié-Parent‘?Eﬁt‘ify‘-aﬁti*f'

reasonably certain 1o be
lease, if it is'réasonably

T

: lease contracts’ that ificladé"extension and
tity and Subsidiary applies judgment'in evaluating
ain whathier -6t hot to-exercise the option to renew -or

whether it -is: reasonabl
terminate the lease. It'¢o
" toexercise: eithi o _

' Entity and Subsidiary reassessés thieé leasé term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstanges that is-within' its cofitrol aid affects its ability to exercise or not to exetcise
the option'to refiew or to'terminate:

The Parent Entity and Sibsid iary ‘tenéwal options for leases under Note 24 are not
intluided as‘part of the léase term because it niceds mutual agreement of both parties prior
to the expiration of the agreements. Furthermore, the periods covered by termination
options are included as part-of the lease term only when they are reasonably certain not to
be exercised.” :

. Provisions: . . .

Provisions for Tiabilities are recognized When the Parént Entity and Siibsidiary have a
 present obligation as a restilt of a past event-and it is probable that an ouitflow of resources
embodying economic benefits- will ‘be tequired to settle the obligation and a reliable
~ estimate of the amounf can'be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reportifig‘date and
~ . adjusted to reflect the curreiit best-estimate. Where the effect of time value of money is
material, the amount of provision-is the present value of the expenditure expected to be
required to settle the obligation.

There were no provisions recognized 4s at December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recoghiZed in the Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s financial °
statements. They are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remiote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the
consolidated financial statements but-are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. o

Contingent “liabilities are discloged int Note 28. There were no contingent assets for
disclosure. - B
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 The managemet estimates
pértodically and are updated if expeciations differ-

inlwhich: thie’ dssets are”expéf
equ pment"_'fNotE".B.S) -are réviewed
- from previous’ estimate “to‘physical “wear and. tear, technical or commercial

it Entity and
4nd expetience -
: s could be
" eStiiviates ‘brotight “about by-changes:. in factors

. of the. usefullives of P
- Subsidiary”
with similat assets. Tt is'p
naterially  affecte

. mertioned abt
- - affédted by chang

‘equipment would increase recorded operatifip expenses and decrease non-current assets.

o ﬁ:éﬁreciafi‘éﬁi;’éﬁﬁéﬁgeﬁiﬁaﬁﬁfed‘-_t&aﬂ?f's,-:l':’;z;'P7‘,712, and P20,547 (Note 12) for the years
ended Decembef 31, 2020;, 2019 and 2018, respectively. '

" Inmipairment of property and-equipment

Thie Parent Entity and Subsidizry perform an impairment review when certain impairment
‘indicators are present. Parchase accounting requires extensive use of accounting estimates
“and judgmient to allocate the purchase price to the fair market values of the assets
‘purchased and liabilities assumied.

Determining the fair value ‘of property and equipment, which require the determination of

future cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use: and ultimate

disposition of such assets, requires the Parent Entity and Subsidiary to make estimates and

assumptions that can materially affect the financial statements. Any- résulting impairment

loss could have a matérial -adverse  impact on the consolidated financial condition and
" results of operations.

The preparation of the estimated: future cash flows involves significant judgnient and
“estirmations. While the Parent. Entity -and Subsidiary believe that their assumptions are
. appropriate and reasonable; significant changes in the assumptions may matérially affect

the assessment of recovefable values and may lead to future additional impairment

charges under PFRS, :

The carrying value of property and equipment amounts to P2, P3,134, and P10,846 (Note
12) as at December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively. .

Based on management’s assessment, some fully depreciated equipmernt ‘amounting to
P4,946,580, P4,876,201, and P4,741,431 (Note 12) for the years ended ‘December 31,
2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively, are already destroyed and unserviceable, hence,
derecognized in the books. '
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s '(Note 13)7 as

C'émli

h _Ga:m from mvestmen

'Exploranon for: and ‘Evaliation of ‘Mifieral - ‘Resources. Capxtélmation of these costs is
based, to a certain extent; on. management 8 Judgment of ‘the degree to which the
expernditure may be associated with finding spécific mining teserve. .

' '-cap1tahzed 1nformat1' :
utilikely, the ariount: capitalized” Wntten offinthe: stitemetit 6f o
ini the peri6d when thenew information becomés available.

ensive income

. The' Parert Entlty and’ Su’bmdmry Teviews: thie cartying - values -of its’ exploratlon and
evaluation assets whenever events of changes in‘circumistatices indicate that their carrymg.
‘valiies may. exceéed their estifated :net-recoverable -amounts. An impairment loss is
recognized when the carrying values bf these assets are not recoverablé and exceeds their
fair ‘valie, Thé factors ‘that- ‘the Parent Entityaiid its Subsidiary’s considers important
Whlch could’ tngger an impdifrient review of exploration and evaluation assets include the

L ; followmg

s " the period for which'tlié Parent Extity and its Subs1dlary has thié right to explore in the
“specific area has expited during: the petiod or will expire in the fiear future and is not
expected to be renewed; -

» ‘substantive: expendlture on further exploration for and evaluation of mitiing resetve in

‘the specific area is neither budgeted nor planned;
e exploration for and-evaluation of mining reserve in the specific aréa’liave not led to
the discovery of commercially viable mining reserve and the Parent Entity and
- Subsidiary decided to discontinue such-activities in the specific area; and
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"”cogmzed for the years ended Decémber 31,;2_[_)20,-

fitity i ':"Su1351d1ary olicy ‘of estjmatmg the 1mpa1rment ‘of non-ﬁnanmal‘ R

_':assets is dxscussed int ote-3'.11 “Though' management believes that the assumptions used
A . ; ties” reflected ‘in the consolidated finaricial statements are
““#ppropriate and" priificast changes in these assumptions may materially
‘affect the assessment of recoverable values and any résulting impairment loss could have
"a material adverse effect on'the: results of operations.

_:' 'I'hcre wefe' no impairment- lossés recognized for the years ended December 31, 2020,
2019 and 2018.

. Estimated fetirement benefits -

‘The deternitation of the Parent Eitity and Subsidiary’s obligation and-cost of pension is
dependent ‘on- the selection of certain assumptions used in calculating such amounts.
“Those assumptions are, and’ intlude, among others, discount rate and salary increase rate.
In accordatice ‘with PAS 19°(Revised), actual results that differ from the assumptions. are
accumulated -and amiottized over future periods and therefore, geénerally affect the
"recogmzed expense and recorded obligation in such future periods. :

. PAS 19 (Rev1sed) also ‘requires retrospective application which mears”that" minimum
'ﬂlSClOSUl‘e requirements shall be madein comparatlve period as well as the current period.

| ",_‘Thc retiretiierit benefit expense, liability and’ Getailedt d1scuss1on of sensitivity analysis are
d1scussed in Note 19.

. 'Income taxes .

A certain’ degree ‘of significant judgment is- reqmred in -determining the provision for
income {axes as:theré are certain transactipns Tor which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain dunng“the. ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
-matters isdifférétit from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences ‘will
‘impact the income. tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determinationis made: :

The incomic tax benéfit deferred recognized for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019
and 2018 amounted to P238,658, (P103,937), and (P99,916) (Note 16), respectively.
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TE € - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND POLICIES

¢ Parent Entity and Subsidiaty dre-exposed o a variety of financial risks: credit risk; liquidity risk,
sarket risk, fair value estimation and faif value hierarchy, The Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s overall
sk tanagement program seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial petformance and
¥ make an optimal contribution to-its revenues by managing these risks. The Parent Entity end
ubsidiary’s risk management, vested thiru the Board-of Directors, focuses on actively securing their
Hott to medium-term cadh flows by minimizing the exposure to financial risks. Long:term financial
“ifivestments are managed togenérate’lasting returms.

“he Patent Entityand Siibsidiary’s respotise fo the risks axd cHallenges they face areasfollows

'+ Toexplore less tisky exploration andexpléititior of minerals,
+. Shorten exploration-period -and look-for the” fiost ‘economical ways to €xp ¢ and to
. conduct the ‘latest-geological -and-geophysical techitiques to minimize the"tisks of.

exploration,” - 7 -

To engage’ éxperts to utilize prove ge-and findncial initiatives to mitigate -and
" ‘minimize inhérent tisks of the volatilityof commodities; and

To place impéitatice in community welfire and community relationship.

The policies of managing specific risks are summarized below:

inancial risk fectors - -

THe Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s financial assefs'and liabilities, comprising mainly of cash and cash

ivalents, otheér receivable, deposit, investmefit®in stocks, ‘accruals and other payables (except
ayable to government agencies) and advances fror shareholders. are exposed to a variety of financial -
isks."The management ensures that it has sound policies:and 'strategiés in place to minimize potential
dversé effects of these risks in the Parent Entity dnd Stibsidiary’s-financial perforrance.
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y, themaximumm eredit risk. Assetsis fhé:-'c'arryingf-i'anmﬁnt’of'the ﬁnaﬁc"iél'
shown on the face -of the~ ol firignicial ‘statéments or in the detailed analysis-
. m the notes to -consolidated” - fimaficial statethents, as summarized -below::

Carrying: - ot itnpaired: . . simpiired -
¥ 2,900 333 ~ . 2900, 333 -
6862 6,862

0;000.. . 80,000 -
45:000. .0 .. 45000
—032,195 e 2 987 195 ‘ 45,000

s Z.:‘;'3

o Neither past due  Past due but not
L 2019— o . Note..-.. - Cartyihgdthount  nor impaired -impaired
as 'nd cash equivalents® 8 2,975,024 2,975,024 -
¢f Teceivables: 9 14,354 14,354
vestment in stocks 1 - 80,000 80,000 -
indable deposit - . 15 ... ... 45000 - ‘ 45,000

3,114,378 ...3,069,378 . 45,000

g ' Neither past due - Past-due but not
.. 2018 . ... . . Note. - Carryingamount  norimpaired .. .-‘ifpaired
_jcash equwalents* 8 3,449,977 3,449,977 -
ceivables o - 36,800 36,800

nt in stocks 11 80,000 . 80,000 -
ble deposit . ...~ 15 . .. . ... 45000 - 45,000
s ..-3,611,777 3,566,777 45,000

el ng ca..s.‘:ﬁ)‘en handand Pet’ty cashﬂmd
the ab‘e\";‘e financial assets are used for collateral or other credit enhancements.

rdmgly, th'e Parent Enfity and ‘SuBsidiary h‘av‘e asséssed the quality of the follewing financial
}'jii'fh:e cred'i't"l risk foi'f cash 'aﬁ'd'scashequivalents-'is e‘ssessed as low risk since cash are depoefted
o m reputable banks 'which have low probability of insolvency.

E ""f"Other receivablés’ pertain to receivable from employees and accrued interest’ from time

-.7--1"}.;deposxt The credit risk is assessed as low risk since it is collected thru salary deduction and
" -déposited in reputable bank which has low prabablhty of msolvency
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fundable deposit is very o
eylinder. T

ity and Stbsidiary’s finstcial libilities have

T o 2019 . 2018 -
ST 3012 -~ Morethan12 = 3to12  Morethan 12 31012  Morethan 12.
L0 L Noté months .- _mictiths .. ... months months months. months
. 15°and other peyables * 17 755,803 - 194,376 - 2,211,163 -
drices: from shareholders 19 - 50433840, - . 43,862,840 - 34,598,840

. 755803 50,433,840 . 194,376 43,862,840  2211,163 34,598,840

“Excliding withholding texves, documentary stamp-tax, SS5, PHIC and HDMF payables

“total ‘current assets- exceeded -the total current liabilities by P2,170,496, P2,791,704, and
P1;270,525 as-at December 31,2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively, computed as follows:

e 2020 2019 2018
"otal curfent assets . 2,939,360 © 3,031,287 3,543,776
‘otalcurfent liabilities - . L 768,864 239,583 ....12,273,251

~ 2,170,496 2.701,704 .. .17270,525 -

nt Entity and Subsidiary manage liquidity risk by maintaining adequate highly liquid assets in

\'of casli'and cash equivalents. Managemient has no knowledge of any other trends, demands,
finents,. events, of “uncertainties that would have material impact on the Parent Entity and
aty’s liquidity. It Tooks at its current assets as source of liquidity. A call on subscription
lé is analteative to raise cash. The major shareholders have committed to pay their
ubsciiption payable to the Parent Entity as the need arises. :

et risk"m'ana,qefr'ient

{5k is‘the risk 6f loss to future earnings, to fair value or to futuré cash-flows that may result
g ‘chafiges in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change
s'a'résult of changes in' interest rates, foreign ‘currency exchange rates, comimodity prices, equity
ces and other market changes. ‘

3.1 Interest rate and foreign currency risk

'Ifli’e‘}-Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s exposure to the risk of changes in interest rates is minimal since
“the cash and cash equivalents have fixed-interest rates not affected by interest rates in the market.
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Parent' Entlty and: Subs1d1ary §

1s-carr1ed at fair valie. Tt nianages its nsk by momtormg the- changes in the market price of the

M_ 00

_ 2019 )
Nofe' .. .-Cost .  FairValue Cost Fair Value Cost . ..

Jeashequivalentss . 8 2900333 2000333 2075024 297504 3449977 3
9 6,362 6,362 14354 14354 36800 . 36800
instocks - S 80000 80,000 $0,000 80,000 30000 80,000
pdsit Lo 1S e 45000 45000 . 45000 45,000 45000 45000 -

. 3032095, 303,195 314378 3114378 361,777 361L7T

§and ofher payables® 17 755,803 755,803 194376 - 194376 2204163 2211163
,ces:from sharcholder 19 50433840 50433840 43962840  43R62,840 34,508,840 34598340,
i SLIB6H3  SL,189,643 44057216 44057216 . . 36810003 36810003
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1273172020

Key inpni(s)

'bbséi'ffé.blc' 1
o inplf@s) |

. 80;000]:.. ..-806:00

vc_stmcnt i stocks has 'no""avaﬂabe ‘market’ ,values.smce_‘-'
prox1mate fair value :

7 stcounted cash

ting segment is a component 6]
s from ‘which it may earn re

. Excludmg cash onhand and petty cash
xaludmg withlolding taxes, documentary siamp tax; SSS, PHIC and HDMF payable

35

ancial Assefs/| - R T i ‘Valuation Significant
. Finaticial  Fair Valuesasat™ ' l;;u Va]: © Technique(s) / -~ unchservable
i ] e T e s e e terarely Key input(s) input(s)
L-12/31/2020 ] . 12/31/2019 -] 12/31/2018 - e :
, ) Discounted cash:
2,000,333 3,975:024 |  -3:449.977] Level3 flows .. ..{ Not applicable
, 1 : Discounted cash |
6:862). . .14354]7 . -.36:800). Level3 .. flows | Notapplicable
] _ Discoutited cash |
80,0004 - . :80,0001- *:80;000° Level 3. . flows . -|:Mot applicable
‘ y Discounted cash
450001 ... 450000 .. -45,000] . Level3 flows | Neét-applicable
L . Discounted'¢ds
7558031 , 1-94;3'7‘6? DL 22116y Level 3. _Ffows t?apphcablc -
. . Discounted cash
" 50, 433 8401, 40 34,508:840]  Leveld. |.  flows . ,_Notapphcablc

ie Paretit Entity and Subsidiary that {(a) engages in business
s-and incur expenses, incliiding-revenues and expenses
atirig ‘to transactions with other components of the same entity, (b) whose operating results are
yrreviewed by the entity’s chief operatmg ‘decision maker to miake decisions abétit resources to
5. _allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and (c) for which discrete financial
otthation is available.

=2009 with the interest of the Parent Entxty and Subsidiary in mining, this biisihéss "egment can be
eportcd as an operating segment even thoughit is still in its exploratory stage. The business-segment
s organized and managed separatély according to the nature of the services provided. A segment dgset
inchides all operating assets used by ‘a ségment and-consists of supplies, deposits, exploration: ‘and -
“'evaluation assets, property and equipfnént (net of accumulated depreciation).




3 504723485 0,472,348 50,472,343

2018

2010

202G

2,044,667 2,156,545 2,231,455

ybanks " - R oo 855,666 818,479 1,218,522
ash on Hand | o B ST 3,670 422 14,969
ettycash fundcin 0 T ol s e e e L4000 4,000 . 4,000
i 2908003 2979446 . 3468946

Cashin banks- generally earn interest at prevailing bank deposit rates. Cash equivalents are placements
good for thirty-five (35) days with one loca] bank depending on the immediate cash requirements and
“interest at the prevailing” short-term - deposit rate of 0.50% per annum. Due to the short-term
ature of such transactions, the cartying: value- approxxmates fair value of the temporary cash
ifivestments.

otal interest 1ncc>me ﬁ'om itk depos1ts for the yéars ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018
amounts to P3, 098, P9,770, and P9,958; respectively.

ized forelgn exchange gam (loss) net recoghized in the statements of : :inpreﬁéhsxve income
i¢ 1o restatement of the cash in bank ahd cash equivalents dollar accounts  amovinted (P122,961),
89;603), and P125,631 (Note 23) for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018,

respectlvely
- OTHER RECEIVABLES

s‘acéount consists of:

2018

2020 - 2019

A intorest on fime deposxt _ 17 662 289
loan receivable : - 13,692 - 36,511
erreceivables . T s 6,845 - L e -
; ‘ 6,862 14,354 .. . 36,800

Salary loan earns an interest rite:of 16% per annum payable on a monthly/semi-monthly installtent.
iz Inferest income recognized for the years ended December 31, 2019, and 2018 amounts to P4,767 and
© i1 P13,633, respectively.
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] expn‘ed amounting to P24,495, P37,487, and P38,030

--2020 L2019 2018

hlicomsat HoIdmgs Corp e e 80,000, 80,000 . . 80,000

éivés no available market value of Pliilcomsat Hiditigs Corporation (PHC) as at December 31,
020,:2019 and 2018 dug to its suspension'by the Philippifie Stock Exchange (PSE) sirice December
1,:2007.

acetnber 3; 2008 the Corporaﬁon Fitiatice Depattment of the SEC issued an order of suspens1on
PHC s Reglstratmn of ‘Seciirities for:vidlation-of SRC Rules 17.1 (1) (A) (D & (u) due to its
ontinting failure to filé its'2006 whd- 2007 annual reports as well as its 1st, 2nd and. 3rd quarterly
ts"for 2007.. As at December:31, 2019, the suspetision has not -been lifted: PHC- is a sibject of
tporate éontroversies. Dueto: unaVallabxhty of a market price; a valuaﬁon“techmque could be
‘establish'its fair valife, Vahistion’ techniques iticlude using arm’s- length market: trarisactions
“knowleédgéable parhes, if available; referénce to the cutrent fair valueg-of another instrument
ubstantially the same; ~discounited cash flow analysis and option pricing models. Héwever, due
rpotate controversies -which PHC hds been involved in for several years now; fitanagetnent
ecided tor take a conSetvative stand and-provide a 90% allowance based -of Gost for the
ient of its investmént, No fair value gain'(loss) was recognizéd in 2020, 2019 and 2018

"spenswn in PSE “thére is 1o aviilable market value of Philcomsat. Holdmgs Corporahon
T ,thus, thereis no net’ accumulated nrealized gain on financial assets at FVOCT-asat: December
- 020 2019 anid 2018.

3o

-5"Company s Gars fHisirance: cover ge;

‘conisists of the ollowitig a8 st Dedersber 31,




it andfixtore:. o Tobl

2,103,697+ 133,554 134770 - 5,009,755
- 109,179 1470 4985380
r : oo (38800)

T 4045580

T BT

NI

i

Deceitlr31, 200

T L

3 N I3

. 2193696 1,130,000 - 1,397,734 107,203 120,779 - 4978,362
L : . - 16,767 3,780 20,541
ORI e n e i e - - 437) - oA
Décersber 31,2018 ., 2,193,6% 1,150,000 1,397,734 99.595 133,509 4974534
f,lkjjieciatioln - ' - . - - - 6451 1261 1712
Disposals: - it L o e m = (38,800} - {38,800}
December 31, 2019 2,193,696 1,150,000 - 1,397,734 67,246 134,770 4043446
Dereciation s C e - 3,132 - 3,132
December 31, 2020 2193606 . ..1150000 1397734 70378 134,770 4946578

aitylng vitue: _

AsatDetember3LA08 oot Lo 0 9584 1261 1036

As at December 31,2019. .
As_atDécemberW. e

;{efﬁfd‘no confractual ¢ommitment for the acquisition of property and equipment as at December
2020,2019 and 2018. - . | ,

i ss carryi'ﬁ'g'_valﬁé '-ﬁf"ﬁilly.rdép:eéi‘eite'd property and equipment still in use by the Parent Entity
ubsidiary amounted to P4,946,580, P4,876,201, ahd P4,741,431, as at December 31, 2020, 2015
2018, respectively.

represents the transfer value or considerafion of the parcel of land which was used as full
‘payiiient of the subscription of the President Oliverio G. Laperal, Sr. on the increase in authorized
‘capital stock of the Parent Entity and Subsidiary amounting to P400 million. The parcel of land is
cated af 1004 EDSA, Quezon City with a land afea-of five thousand (5,000) sq.m. This investment
‘property-is covered by TCT No. N-307207 issued by the Land Registration Authority to Imperial
‘Resotrces, Incorporated on September 3,.2007. An annotation on the title states that “the acquisition
“of the property ‘described in this title/certificate is by, virtue of tax free exchange pursuant to Section
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> "5"50 000,000
235,000,000

785,000,000
s,see 000

rative approach to’ value
data es_tabhshes avalu

subject property,the appramer & report mdwated that the*fau‘ market vilue of the 1and'is P§30,000, 000-
‘at Décember 31, 2020. Appraisal of the property Was dlso” performed by ati mdependent appraiser
d-determined the fair Valué of the: property as at‘Deceniber 31 2019 “and 2018 amounting to
790 500 000; and P785,000,000 sing the' sdme’ dpproach. ‘

& Parent Entity and Stbsidiary asséssed that the investmeént property is conisidered 4s-capital asset
inider-Sec. 39 (A) (1) of the NIRC" subjeet to capital gains tax upon'sale-and the Patent Entity and
"’bs1d1ary does not intenid to sell the property. Thus; the gain from: the- revaluation is considered as
petmanent difference in the income tax computation and fio deferted tax Tiability is recognized (Note
16) -

'e'above investment property has not been used as collateral for aloan.

De a:ls of the Parent Entity’s investrieit propexty and’ mformat:on abbut: the faJr fieritchy as at

ber 31, 2020 are as follows

850000000

-Fait'value as at

. Tevell. . Level2 Level3 . 13/31/20
thent property .. . ... 830,000000 . - .830,000,000.

ﬁ?efe no tansfers between Level 1'and 2 duting the year.
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eophysxcalsmdxes o Total

< 11795500 38“"5%‘8‘48 50,472,348

dd.lthTlS i

Decerpber 31, 2018 — 1785500 33 I T Y XY T
Asat December31 2019 50,472,348
?8;676’,‘1848‘.,.,.,..._

opment and operatlon of f.he sub_]ect mmmg -conibessions: Upon mgmng of the Memorandum of -
greetitent, the amount deposited in September: 2008 -was-recorded as Explaration aid Evaluation
set. In; August 2009, payment for the cost of ‘a -geophysical survey was made" amounting to
100,000. Thie, acquisition of rightsto- explore ‘and geophysical studies are expendlmres which are
inclisded in exploration  and “evaluation’assets. In ‘May . 2011 and August 2011, the amount of
78$120,000 and US$100,000; resPect1ve1y, weré remitted to Mr. Eddy Surohadi for the account of
PT. Aspal Buton Nasional and PT Indominas to find’ the additional :géological works/studies needed
for'tHe preparation of the:project feasibility report-and’ environmentadl imipact report required pending
conversion of PT Aspal Buton Nasional Exploratién penmt to development and exploitation permit.
Tn Fébriiary, 2012 US$60,000"and ‘aristher US$60,000 itx Septémber were both temitted to Mr. Eddy
Surohadi for the sccount of PT. Aspal-Buton Nasional‘and PT Indomitias to covér the’ budget required
for additional geological s Works/studies needed for th preparatlon of the project feasibility teport and
environmental impact report for the fining concession-areéa in Buton Island. In-2013, the Parent
Ent1t‘ Ttemitted another US$100,000 and’ US$20,000 it -April snd November to' sécite’ ‘exiension on
& 1ease: ‘of the mining concession in Buton Island: In 2014, the Pafent Entity treittéd the-amount of
S$10 ;000 to Mr. Eddy Surohadi for obtaining: mformal approval for-exploitation. conicession of the
722 ‘hectares’ Waangu-Angu areas including the cost of the-preparation of the required technical
*post—productmn program to restore most of the mined-over areas to usable condition. During
7015, the Compatiy remitted US$99,250't6"Mr: Eddy Suroliadi-f6r the account of P.T. Asphal -
iton and P, T. Indominas to cover the budget réquired for various téchnical and tax expenses on the
¢an and Clear Certificate) TUP Production Program for the coverage area of 1,722 hectares.
ittances were made for the years erided’ December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018. As discussed in
the Parent Entity is proceeding with caution and at the same time re-evaluating its Indonesian
mining project owing to the precipitous fall in the ‘world price of crude, the Parent Entity is at present
¢lined to pursue the said project for thaf reason the Indonesian partners have been .continuously
ing*for foreign partners‘to invest capital needed:after they have: secured formal approval of the
exploitation concession because of its viability. Further; the Board-of Directors; in its- special meeting
on April 6, 2019; has approved the plan of the’ Company on'the encouraging prospects of its, local and
offshoré;, minirig- exploration in view of its economic import ard despite rigorous government

regulations.

The Parent Entit'j; and Stibsidiary is still ifi the exploration ﬁtagcs and evaluation of mineral resources,
“-thus n1o amortization is recognized as at December 31, 2020.
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2020

33,100,187 ' - (2,602,854) 227,699,'602
shfe in netloss of subisidiary - Parent Enfity - 237,056 348,963 217,167
ate net loss of stibsidiary 2,395 3,525 2,194
Prof t (1055) before ificome tax 33,339,638 (2,250,366) 227,918,963
:_Dedugttble expense:
“Retirement benefits paid (1,005,683) - -
| .deduct)
- Temporary di ﬂerences ‘
Ac_crual of retn'ernent benefit e o 210,155 354,833 . 333,991
firgalized gam (lossy on foreign exchange in the previous - (89,603) 125,63'1"”,:::1-'.- 5294
year, realized i in the cufrent year Dl s
nreahzcd loss (gain) on-foreigh exchange i the cuttent .'122;9 6l £9,603 o 7' (125531)
Pem_aﬁ'ént differences: _ .
ést incomie subject to final tax (3,098) 9,770) (9,958)
deductible penalties and surcharges ‘ Lo 53,556 27,641
‘from ifivestment property revaluation urirealized . (39,500,000) (5,500,000) (235,000,000
‘Opetating Loss Carry-Over (NOLCO) {6,925,630) (7,136,513) (6,845,700
. o 30% 30% 30%
efetred tax asset (DTA) on NOLCO (2,077,689) (2,140954) . (2,053,710)

41




125,631

) .- _ 4, 767
125631 , 14,061
2% 2% - .
2 513 o 281 ‘

Ii éome?t‘ax-._payabl'e 5

: 2513 186

1 'EParent Entity and Subs:dxary s deferred tax asset as at December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 is
computed as follows:

R S '
_Note- Taxbase . DIA __ Taxbase _ DIA __ Taxbase.  DIA

wporary différences:
ement benefit .

18 3997992 ::1,199308 4492954 1347887 4351019 . 1305307

o of future tax benefit related to DTA is-dependent on the Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s
to: generate future taxable incomie durinig the periods in which these are expected to be
. The’ Company has considered these factors in reaching a conclusion as to the amount of
. gmzed as ‘at December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018. Further, the Parent Entity and Subsidiary -
y reviews'the recéverability of the DTA recognized. The DTA related to impairment loss on
m subsidiary, unrealized gain on foreigh exchange, MCIT and NOLCO are not recognized
ce management beliéves that there is absence of virtual certainty that the DTA can be realized

st future tax labilities.
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“i064s0
(63,870)

tited at the statutory
statements of tomprehensive

T N

statutory ificome tax tate of 30%- .-
quity share in et loss of subsidiary - : s ;, e

epatate net loss of subsidiary Lol 30% " 30% - - 30%
\djustments for: IR LT T '
Tniterest income ‘subjectéd to final tax”
Non:deductible penaltiss and surcharg
i from i invéstment ptoperty- revalua

9869 891 1. (807,110)  68,2431689

' -’(9"2‘9) o (2,931) (2i987)
o 16,067 . 8392
(11 £56,000) (1 650,000) - (70 500,000}

182 600 . 132 000 . .132,000

' '(‘3‘4,"901)
9,053,710 -
S 281

i (99,916)

o007 |
2077 689 2,140

238 658




»;lT.-Dcccmbcr 31 e
— a0

6925630

7,136,513

i B BE5 00 T e
L 2BTTL25T e

g Loss Carry-Over (NOLCO) Underf_' AR
(]\URC) A.S'Amended” the net 0peratmg-'. '

ating loss for said taxable ears ‘may be carried over as a-deduction ever after the expiration of
494 provided”

imntediately followmg the year of such loss

ompany zs subject ‘to. tHe: iy ":'corporate .mcomc tax (MCIT), computed at two-perceut
2%)._ f gross income, as "defined under the tax’ ‘fégiilations: However, the Company is not liable to
_ _CIT in'2020 sitce interest-income ' from' bank deposits-isnet of final tax.

NOTE 1 17 - ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

This account cofisists of:

2020 2019 2018

Taxesand licenses ™~ .. . 495,000 : - 1,984,821
rofessional fees S | 183,450 180,680:. - 184,680

et C © 57,649 - .
S , 9,566 8,576 . 18222
& subseription o 1,318 5120 - 4500

rity services o - : 8820 - B

: E 755 803 194,376 ‘2 211 163
Hitig taxes payable B ' 6821 28,461 35781
ilHealth, HDMF contribiitions and loan payab} 6,240 6,125 117,930
! : e 8,108 -8,191

Documentary stamp tax payable

T 237,070 2,273,065.

Management believes that the carrying amounts of ‘dbcruals and- other payables approximate fair
ties because of their short-term nature,

"éc'ru‘als and othér payables are expected to be settledwithin the next twelve (12) months,
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gioss inicome fof the next .ﬁver (5) conisgcutive years. mmedm’tely followmg the: year of such loss: The :

same dre"claimed: within the next five (5) consecutive taxable years




t§ féfrospectively
.(I{emse.d)"lpar 173. These R
‘e periods:-Th g statément of financial position - .
anuary-1,:2011) hias‘been restafed in accordance with

counting Estimiites and Errors. o

E

scount fate methodology  was used: fo estirmate ik present value of the Paréiit Entity and

diary’s’ defined benefit obligation. The: discount rate was determiried in"accordance with the
I Reporting Staridard Council [FRSC] approved Q&A 2008:01(Revised) document, which

that “discount  rates-reflect (4) benefit cash flows and “(b) use of zero. coiipon rates, even

ough theoretically derived. -

aluation results: are ‘baseéd on the employee data-as of the valuation date as provided by the
otiipany. The discount rate assumption is based on the Bankers Association of the Philippines (BAP)
HP Bloomberg BVAL ‘Reference Rates (BVAL) benchmark reference curve for the government
curities market (previously the PDEx (PDST-R2) market yields on benchmark goveiiment bonds as
ie valuationt date and ‘considering the avérage years of remaining working life of the employees as
the estimated tetm of the benefit obligation. :

assumed thf the Cotfipany initially 4pplicd the Atended Philippine Accounting Stasidard (PAS)
0. 19(R) (as dtntended in June 11) on January 1, 2011, The Amended PAS 19(R) simplifies the -

ing. of the defined beriefit cost by inttoducing the Net Interest Approach, which disaggregates.
efiried benéfit cost into the followinig: componerts: Service Cost'(cost of services received), Net
est ‘(financing effect of paying for beénefits in advance or in -arrears), and Rémeasurements
od-to-period fluctuations in the amouts of defined benefit-obligations and plan assets), i

idef the Net Interest Approach, Service Cost and Net Interest o the defined benefit liability-(asset)
recognized in Profit or Loss, while Remeasurements of - e defined benefit liability (asset)
recognized outside profit or loss in Other Comprehensive Incorie (OCT).

fiiither required by Amended PAS 19(R) that remeasurements-if OCF shall not be reclassified to.
“loss iin a subSequent period. Instead, the Company may either accumulate the
asirements in OCI or transfer those amounts recognized in OCI within équity in accordance with
nded PAS 19(R).

olingvin g information are based on the latest actuarial valuation réport with Deceriber 31, 2020,
019 4nd 2018 as:the valuation date by an independent actuarial firm.,
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2018
4 351 019 -4,157, 858

. 52,872 139,819

' ‘(2"12,893) s (140,830)

. 20:1-9 2018
4 492 954 4,351,019 4,157,858
- ,210 155 354,833 333,991
- S 300,566 (212,898) (140,830)
eneﬁts pa1d dn'ectly from Book reserve . (‘1 005,683) - -
e S oo 33,997,992 . 4,492 954 4,351,019

qnts of retirement’ beneﬁts expetise for the: years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018
ecogmzed in the' statements of comprehiensive income are as follows:

I o 2020 2019 2018
tetest cost : , S 153,659 301,961 194,172
Ctitrent service'cost . . 56496 52,872 139,819
e 25 .. 210,155 - 354,833 . 333,991

unt of remeasurements of retifemient benefits payable presented in other comprehensive
icomein the statements of comprehénsive income is computed as follows:

N 2020 2019 2018
(46,333) (162,990) 90,623
. (254,233) 375,888 50,207
(300,566) 212,898 140,330
90,170 (63,369) (42,249)
~ (210,396) 149,029 98,581
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46340 (.6%9)

. {010396) . .. 149029 . 98581 .
— (64.036) 146340, . (3,689)

No.ofemployees —~ ~.° .. . § 6 : 8
érigeage inyéars - o U638 64.5 574
Averageremalmng working. hfe . ) - 1.0 1.0 26
erige yearsof past service " SRS 316 ,' 30.4 251
Annualpovered_payroll e e o 886 652 ‘2,233;752 2,604,460

low is thc quantltanvci: i "fonnatlon abibut the semsitivity of the retirement liability to a reasonably,
ssible change in actuarial ‘assiumptions: '

‘ — == =020 R0 00

aséin discoustrate | 0.70% 070% = 0.90%
in present value of refirenient benéfits 11ab111ty 28,806 29359 - 37,080
‘in‘discotint rate o 0.70% 0.60% - 0.80%

i presenit Value of refirefiiént benefits ability 1525 . (27,881) (33,394)
-m’sa!arymcreasc Tat¢ assumption o 0.70% 0.60% S 0;80%

“in present value of refifément benefits liability (27,189) (27,990) -(35,591)

i lary rease rate assutnption O 070% 060% = - 090%
tease in presentvalue of retirement benefits liability .. . . 27,882 28905 - . . - 38981
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Relahonsh:p

Maj or shareholder
Shareholder

. With common directors

. 'With common dirgctor | .

‘nt Entity obtains’ non-mt rest beating’ advinoes ‘from itstajor sharcholdcr These advancesare
for thc Parcnt Entlty § operauons :

Am'oun't of utstanding .
. transact ons . balance Terms and conditions
dvasices from sharcholders o
"C':Ré'_al ‘Estate A 6,521,000 - . 37,522,625 |a. Payable in cash
Cotporation - AR o b. Have no specific repayment dates,
- - I R ' ' ¢. The Company has ufconditional
right to defer payment-for more than
12 months, .
d. Non-interest bearing, a&nd
e. Can be converted cqu1ty upon
compliance with regulatory
requirements
6 G. Laperal; Sr.- 50,000 12911215 |a. Payable in cash

b. Have no specific repaym: t‘dates,
¢. The Company has uticofiditional ‘
right to defer payment for more than- |
12 months,

d. Non-interest bcarmg, and

e. Can be converted to equity upon
compliance with regulatory
|requirements

6,571,000 | . 50,433,840 |
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A vances ﬁ'om-s 1archolders -

liverio G. 'Laisgeré],. s

LTC Real Bstate Corporatlon 0 IR S

' f"i’éﬁéﬁl‘;zrs

Je. The Compaiy has unconditional right to

‘|e.Cari be conveitedito. -equi R
*| cotipliarice with rcgulatory Tequiremients |

{defer payment for more than 12 months,

{e. Can be converted to equity upon

-ayablcmt:ash B - .
|b- Have no speclﬁc repaymert. dates, .

defér paymient for more than 12 months,
d. Notiriterest: bearing; diid

J :upon

a, Payablc in'cash

b. Have no specific’ repaymcnt datcs
c. The Company hasunconditional right to
d. Non-interest bearing, and

compliance with regulatory requirements

9264000 .

43,862,840 |

Year 2018

Advanices fror shareholders -
LTC Real Estate Corporation’.

vétio G. -Lajﬁéfal, Sr.

4,299,000

13,861,215

21,737,625 |

{compliance with regulatory requirements

72750001 -

a. Payable in cash
b. Have no specific'rep yment dates,
c. The Company has uneonditional right to
defer payment for miofe thati 12 months,

d. Non-interest bearing; and-. .

e. Can be converted to e -
compliance with regulatory regifirements

a. Payablc in cash -
b. Have no specific repayment dates,
¢. The Company has unconditional fight to |-
defer payment for more than 12 months, -
d. Non-interest bearing, and

¢. Can be converted to equity upon

n March 2016, LTC Real Estate Corp., an investor; and thie'Parent Entity entered into a memorandum
agreement for the prospective subscription®ofi-thie- shares of stocks of the Parent Entity at the
revailing par value in the amount of Ten Millioti Pesos: (P10, 000,000) on or before December 31,
'2016. The said amount shall be considered as-a depos1t #ind shall be'subject to disposition, transfer and
‘récovery by the investor.




from

shareholders :

..thc statefrients - of - ﬁnanczal N

R i T T3

Terms

El .
Conditions

1[1p1nas Golf & Country

| essial

191752

61976
- ,'}I‘f (2) Lease for a period of
<" |one (1) year from January 1,

~ 1712020 to December 31, 2020..

ﬁfth (Sth) ‘day of eich
correspondmg ‘month,

_ (3) Rénewable upon mutual
E ".;_ agréement before expiration
.. jof thelease term.

8465
{day of the month.

'1(2) Sub-lease for a period of
lone (1) year from April 1,

(1) Payable every first (1st)

" {2019 to Mareh 31, 2020 and
-+ ‘| April 1, 2020 until March
~ |31, 2021.

[ 70441] .

(1) Th'aise of default |
- |inpayment, the

" “lamount of renital dué -
|shall bear intefest and
Ipenalty at the rate of

6% and 3% per
month, respectively,

(1) In case of failure
to pay, lease shall be
considered terminated
and the Company
shall vacate the
premi§és,
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' Contifons |

Payable incastion'or - J(1)In case of default |

efore:fifth (Sth) day of eachi  |if payment, the ' |
| cottesponding month. amount of renfal due [
1(2)7 I.ease for s penod of : At i :

| 0| 6% and 3%per -
|(3) Reneviable upon miutusl - [ionth; féspectively. -
" lgreement before expiration- of o
*"the lease term.

111p1nas Golf & Country : 196,043 T © 7 .« :{(1) Payable incashevery first §(1) In case of failure
hib, Inc.’ - |(1st) day of the month. to pay, lease shall be
' - .~ |(2)Sub-lease for a period of  |considered terminated
’ ' ' *‘|one (1) year from June 1, 2017 |and the Company
~|to May 31,2019 and from April{shall vacate the
-11, 2019 until March 31, 2020, |premises.

Impenal Development '_‘ 635,712 - {(1) Payable on or béfore fifth {(1) It case of default |
"i‘poratmn A ; (5th) day of each correspondmg i payment, the ‘

C ' month, amount of rental due
. |(2) Lease for a period of shall bear interest at

- Jone (1) year from January 1,  |the rate of 25% per

2018 to December 31, 2018.  lannum.
~ |(3) Renewable upon mutual '
* |agreement before expiration‘of |
the term of the lease.

F111p1nas Goif & Country I _;'?-165;092" . ¢+ [(1) Payable every first (1st} day{(1) Tn'case of failure

' CIub Ine. o o © 7 . |of the month, to pay, lease shall be
S - l(2) Sub-lease for aperiod of  |considered termiinated

lone (1) year from June 1, 2017 [and the Company

‘ . |to May 31, 2019. This was shall vacate the:

L i) e reiewed for another vear, premises. <

800,804 =
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cAmount oftransactions .. ]

1,657,652 - .
'2.522‘;890 , -

ost-cmployment benef ts . .

o temlmatlon ‘other long-term ‘benefits- and share-based payments granted to the key
’ anagemenffpersonnel for the yeats‘ended December 31, 2020, 2019-and 2018, The President/Chief
“Executive Officer, Vice:President/Treasirer (Chief Fmancml Officer) and Company Controller have
‘received salary from the Parent Entity amounting Company Controller have received salary from the
‘Company - amounting ‘to-P757,028,-P773,074, and nil for the years eénded December 31, 2020, 2019
‘and 2018, respectively. The menibers of the Board of Directors receive only per diem per attendance
“in‘the regular and spec1a1 meetmg of the Board 4atid Annual/Special Stockholders Meeting. The total
-améunt of per dient paid in-2020;.:2019and 2018 ambunts to P245,000, P225 000 and P195,000 (Note
' 26) respectlvely

:NOTE 20 ‘SHARE CAPITAL

":The-‘Parent ‘Entity and Suibsidiaty’ s:sliéii"é’ capital consists of:

00 09 W8

ion shares'- P par value per share |

Authorized shares, 1,800,000,000-as:at Décember 31, 2019 1,800,000,000  1,800,000,000 .  1,800,000,000
Subscribed Share Capital 652,500,000 652,500,000 652,500,000
ss¢ Subsctiption Receivable o 15,936,454 15,936,454 15,936,454
didup capital . . .. o 636,563,546 636,563,546 636,563,546

— ";‘c‘.i'hange' of par value from Five Pesos (P5.00) to One Pes'o (P1.00) and the declassification of
es from common:Class “A” and Class “B” shares to common stock voting shares were approved
by SEC on February 10, 2017 and iniplemented by Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) on February 22,
2017.

.Subscnptlon recewable ollected for the years ended December 31, 2018 amounted to P150,000.
There was 16 collection of subscription receivable for the years ended December 31, 2020, and 2019.

Both common class “A” and “B” shares have P5.00 par value with the same nghts and privileges,
“except that Common ‘Class “A” shares shall be issuéd and/or sold only to citizens of the Philippines or
- to Cotporation, at least sixty percent (60%) of the capital stock for/of which is owned by citizens of
. the Philippines, ‘while Common Class “B™ shares-shall be issued and/or sold to any person or
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As at Dcccmbcr31 2020

. Numbe}; 'af
o Cammon Shares

PCD Nomlncc, _Corporatxonl‘ o
Ml Holdmgs Corporanon
Olondriz, Marino Y Cm

“Laperal] Des1dcnoL o © 1,670,000
_La‘pef’élﬁi"ﬁlcxar'{dfa L 1 660,000
- "Ganotisi; ‘Filomens - 71 630,000

' #Total stibscribed sharés of
controllmg.gro_ups/mdmdual

. /546,552,070 .

7 33,008:565 0 -
;;f‘.:z-‘l';go'sf?,‘-ooo Uy
' 241"‘1“095

609,056,730, . 1 .

Percentage to total
Oumandmg Shares
83 76%

5.09% -
336%
037% .
026%
025% - ..

~0.25%

- ..93.34%

100%

. Total Subscribed shares .. o oo oo . 652,500,000

_ Total subscribed shares’ of ‘ - , .
eontr o]lm&gmupslmdmduals.:.l:;-.r-_z._g Sl e 609,056,730

+Total subseribed shares::. ...

652,500,000 .

s L . L AsatDcccmber31 2019

Number of Percentage to total
N o Name ' - Common Shares Outstanding Shares
1" Laperal, 8r, Oliverio G. 546,552,070 83.76%
-2 “PCD Nominee, Corporation - 33,228,565 5.09%
-3 -LMI Holdings Corporation . 21,905,000 3.36%
-4 "Olondriz, Marino Y Cia’ R : 2,411,095 0.37%
" 5§ - Laperal, Desidério L. - ' o 1,670,000 0.26%
"6 Laperal, Alexandral. S0 1,660,000 0.25%
<7 lGal'lDtlSl, Filomeno ' ) : . 1,630,000 0.25%

Lo 93.34%
100%

As at Deccmber 31 2018

Percem‘age to total

Number of

e Name Common Shares Otitstanding Shares
j,-f-‘Laperal Sr. Oliverio G. 546,552,070 83,76%
PCD Nominee, Corpctation o 33,223,565 5.09%
3 "LMI Holdings Corpotation © 21,905,000 3.36%
‘Olondriz, Marino Y Cia ot 2,411,095 0.37%
5 Laperal;, Desiderio L. 1,670,000 0.26%
©*- 6 Laperal, Alexandra L. - 1,660,000 0.25%
" 7 -Ganotisi, Filomeno . - 1,630,000 0.25%

.. ‘Total subscribed shares of
... controlling groups/individuals i 609,051,730 93.34%
. Total subscribed shares_____ 652,500,000 100%
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This account’consists'of:

- 2020

2019 2008 . ..

2.346,444 2,782,906 3,170,328
210,155 354,833 333,991 .
46310 .. . 52.806.. ... .73,135 -

ies and-wages - ,l,
etirement beriefits’ expense
SSS Phllhealth and HDMF cotitri

2,602,009 3.100,545 . 3,577,454

“NOTE 22 “DEPRECIATION

. 'This account ¢onsists of:

e, T ~ Notes . . 2020 2019 2018

- Office equipment - - ‘ 3,132 6,451 16,767

“Office furniture and fixtile .~ ... : - 1261 . 3,780
s 12,25 3,132 e TA12 20,587

OTE 23 - FOREIGN CURRENCY-DENGMINATED ASSETS

6llar denominated assets 4re as follows:

2020 2019 2018

““Cash and cash equivalents S 45413 453% 4,158
ear end exchangerate e 48.036 50744 52724

0:equivalent e 2,181,464 2,300,-‘682;_};.,_ 2,3_80,886

Unrealized gain (loss) on foreign exchange ¢rédited to operations for the years ended December 31,
.2020 2019 and 2018 amounted to(P122,961), (P89,603) and P125,631 (Note 8), respectwely
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1, 2016 to May31 201 |
. water ‘bills; parking and sssociation dues. THe stib-leasé agreement was renewed for ancthier
: year in 2017 from June 1,2017 to May 3172018 with amonthly rental of P6,690.

: o Lease penod B ‘ Amount
j:jI.Tu;nel 2018 0 May 31 2019 . 7,014
“April 1, 2019.to March 31, 2020 © , 8,191
April 1, 2020'to March 31, 2021 . ' 8,465
April 1, 2020 to December 31, 20207 . 8,465

"otal rent expense charged to’ opértions amounts to P8§16,762, P825,228 and PBOO 804 for the years.
:.:ended December 31,2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

":', Thé future mini murny lease payments under non-canc‘ellal‘il*e;"""éj)éi'hﬁﬂg lease are as follows:

. o B 2020, 2019 2018
Jot later than.ons year 22184, 23,344 33317
e e e e —iee e e e

.55

2:D) and 82:] 4™ Stréet,; New Mamla, Quezon o

tin _":of 26: 8‘__Quare mieters for a penod of one (1) year PR

eriod i year Wﬂ:h a monthly rate of P6,434 ﬁ'om January o ;.' '
d'P6; 690 fromine 1, 2016 16 Decémber 31, 2016 which includes -~ -



NOTE 25 - ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

LM» O

This account consists of: *
. Note 2020 2019 2018

- Salaries and wages 21 2,346,444 2,782,906 3,170,328
. Rent : 24 816,762 825,228 800,:304
. Taxes and licenses ) ' - 587,459 1,481,450 494,773
: Utilities 500,658 549,107 ’ 598,432
~ " Professional fees - - 422,782 428,716 416,293
_ '_"Diles and subscription 7 390,007 380,862 - 380,018
. Director's fees 19 245,000 . 225,000 195,000
- Retirement benefit '. 18,21 210,155 354,833 333,991
" Security services 204,000 204,000 204,000
: Transportation and travel ‘ : 167,740 165,158 164,009
" Repairs and maintenance _ 96,815 187,439 165,401
_ *Supplies and other office expenses . 48,450 71,265 105,540
" 888, Philhealth and HDMF contributions - 21 46,310 52,806 . 73,135
- Insurance : 41,974 44,118 33,054
Representationand entertainment 12,420 - -
Depreciation ‘ 12,22 3,132 7,712 20,547
. Bank charges . 575 125 550

Office supplies - 50 . 50 -

" Penalties and surcharges . : ' - . 53,556 -
Miscellanaous - 262,178 289,293 284,879
6,402,911 8,112,624 7,440,754

. -Miscellaneous pertains to attendance fees, bank charges and other miscellaneous expenses incurred by
.- the Company. :

N OTE 26 - NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

- This account consists of:

2020 2019 2018

- ' Non-controlling interest net loss for the year (2,395) {3,525) (2,194)
"+ Non-conrolling interest in net assets (238,734) (235,209) (233,016)

(241,129)  (238,734) - (235,710)

" The non-controlling interest represents one (1%) percent ownership interest of the Subsidiary.
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NOTE 27 - BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
The basic eamings per share is computed as follows:
2020 2019 2018 -
Profit (loss) for the year 32,863,924 (2,495,392) 227,801,712
Divided by: Weighted average number of common shares 636,563,546 636,563,546 636,551,046
Basio carnings per share 0.05_ 0.00 0.36
" The diluted earnings per share is computed as follows:
- 2020 2019 2018
| " Profit (loss) for the year _ 32,863,024 (2,495,392) 227,801,712
" Divided by: Weighted average number of common shares 636,563,546 636,563,546 636,551,046
‘ Number of shares assumed to be purchased 15,936,454 15,936,454 . 15,948,954
L Total 652,500,000 652,500,000 652,500,000
Diluted earnings per share 0.05 0.00 0.35

NOTE 28 - COMMITMENTS AND CONT]N GENCIES

The Parent Entity and Subsidiary have no impending liabilities, direct claims, contingent lisbilities or
matters in which there is a reasonable possibility of an outcome which might materially affect the

~consolidated financial position or results of operations as at December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018.

- - Commitment to Memorandum of Agreement

" "In accordance with the Parent Entity’s Memorandum of Agreement with PT. INDOMINAS for the
- exclusive rights to do preliminary studies before choosing the area to be developed, if the results of

the studies are favorable, the Parent Entity shall pay another US$170,000 upon approval of the

- - conversion of the selected areas into exploration concession (Note 2).
. NOTE 29 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

: ' .OnMarch 26, 2021, the Corporate Recovery and Tax Incentives for Enterprises (CREATE) Act was
: \_\/v " -enacted into law as Republic Act No. 11543 by virtue of the approval of the President of the
. .. * Philippines with nine (9) vetoed provisions. Below are the salient features of the Act:

a. Corporate Income Tax rate is reduced from 30% to 20% for domestic corporations with net
. taxable income not exceeding P5 Million and with total assets not exceeding P100 Million.
All other domestic corporations and resident foreign corporations will be subject to 25%
income tax, Said reductions are effective July 1, 2020, ' ) _
b. Minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) rate reduced from 2% to 1% effective July 1, 2020 to
June 30, 2023, . h

The measure is sct to take effect 15 days after its complete publication in the official Gazette or in a

- newspaper of general circulation (April 11, 2021). After which, the implementing rules and regulation
- (IRR) will be issued by the tax authority (BIR). - . '
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.The Philippine Interpretatlons Committee (PIC) 1ssued‘ PIC Q&A No. 2020-07 which provxdes

guidance on the accounting of the retroactive reductions™on the applicable tax rateg. Based on‘the
Q&A, if the CREATE Bill is enacted prior to the audited financial statements issue date and before
the actual filing of the annual income tax return, the impact of the reduced tax rates will be considered
a non-adjusting event but significant chianges in tax rates on current and deferred tax assets and

liabilities should be disclosed. |
The only impact of CREATE Act is on the calculation of the Parent Entity’s deferred tax on NOLCO

- for the year 2020, as stated below:

' PRéWSION FOR INCOME TAX - DEFERRED

Amount of provision using 30% income tax rate (2,077,689)
Amount of provision using the reduced income tax rate (under CREATE) of 25% (1,731,407)
o ‘Impact on the flnancial statements (346,282)

" “Since the Company’s management believes that there is absence of virtual certainty that the DTA on
. NOLCO for the year ended December 31, 2020 can be realized, then, no recognition was taken vp in
- the Parent Entity’s books, '
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' INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of .
IMPERTAL RESOURCES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARY

' 82-7 4" Street, Barangay Manana, New Manila

“Quezon City

. We have audited the consolidated financial statements of IMPERIAL RESOURCES, INCORPORATED

AND SUBSIDIARY in accordance with the Philippine Standards on Auditing for the year ended

‘December 31, 2020 and have issued our report thereon dated April 14, 2021, Our audits were made for

the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

T

 The supplementary information included in the following accompanying additional components is the

- responsibility of the Parent Entity and Subsidiary’s management.

i’ Tabular schedule of standards and interpretations as of reporting date

i, Schedule of financial soundness indicators
i, Map of conglomerate or group companies within which the reporting entity belongs
iv, Supplementary schedules as required under Annex 68-J

LV Reconciliation ef Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration

: The supplementary information referred to above are presented for purposes of complying with Revised
-.“Securities Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 68 and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
"= statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the

consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all matcnal respects, in relation

'j_ to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole,

VILLARUZ, VILLARUZ & CO., CPAs
000-889-941

NORMITA L. VILLARUZ

* CGPA Certificate No. 36181

© ™ BPRC IN.No.0036181 valid until September 20, 2021
.~" PTR No. 0697499 issued on January 6, 2021 at Quezon City

v e BIR Accrednanon No. (Individual) 07-100207-001-2020 issued on November 25, 2020 valid until November 24, 2023
:‘,::‘- N BIR. Aec:gd:tat:on No..(Firm) 07-000438-005-2020 {ssued on October 28, 2020 valid until October 27, 2023
Do s SEC Accreditation Nor(Individual) 0600-AR-3 (Group A) issued on Oe'tober 8,2019 valid until October‘! 2022
oy “SEC Acereditation NorTFirm) 0128-FR~4 (Group A} issued on October 8, 20[9 valid until October 7, 2022
R, F.IN. 101-825-674 - .
D -BOA PRC Registr a!w‘No 0058 issued on October 4, 2018 vahd until June 26, 2021

Faa i —- o~

o ‘Quezon Clw Philippines

April 14,2021

Unit 3, 9" Floor, Galleria Corporata Center, EDSA cor. Ortigas Ave., Quezon City, Philippines ‘
Tel nos, +632 86871323 / +632 86873324 [ +632 86388014 / +632 B6383099 / +632 86876740 Morison KSi
Fax no. +632 86874787 : Independent member
Webslte: www.villaruz.com.ph
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IMPERTAL RESOURCES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARY
As at and for the year ended December 31, 2020

- s

| Frameworl for the Preparation and Presentation of v
" |Financial Statements

. | characteristics

-+

OTHER DOCUMENTS TO BE FILED WITH THE ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL
‘ STATEMENTS '

Under paragraph 4(J) of SRC Rule 68, as amended, large ‘and/or publicly-accountable entities are
required to submit with their audited financial statements a schedule, in table format, showing in the
first column a list of all the effective standards and interpretations under the PFRS as of year-end, and

~an indication opposite each in the second column on whether it is “Adopted”, “Not adopted” or “Not
- applicable™.

M
s et

Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative

| PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary ' v

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

. .|PFRS1  [First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial . v
(Revised) |Reporting Standards '

Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an v
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate

Amendments to PFRS 1; Additional Exemptions v
for First-time Adopters
Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from v
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation v
and Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans | v
Amendment to PFRS 1: Deletion of short-term Y
S exemptions for first-time adopters '
.~ |PFRS2 Share-based Payment v
| Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and v
Cancellations
Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-seftled v
Share-based Payment Transactions ‘
Amendments to PFRS 2: Classification and ' v
Measurement of Share-based Payment -
_ Transactions
PFRS 3 Business Combinations , v

‘| (Revised)

PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts v




L Lt ot

S

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial

Guarantee Contracts

Amendments to PFRS 4: Applying PFRS 9,
Financial Instruments with PFRS 4, Insurance
Cottracts

PFRS 5

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued |

Operations ‘

 |PFRS 6

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral
Resources

{PFRS 7

Financial Instruments; Disclosures

Amendments to PFRS 7: Transition

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7:
Reclassification of Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7:
Reclassification of Financial Assets - Effective
Date and Transition

AR RN YRS

Amendments to PFRS 7: ﬁnproving Disclosures
about Financial Instruments

\ .|

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

A

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective
Date of PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

AN

. |PFRS 8

Operating Segments

" . |PFRS 9
1(2014)

Financial Instruments

Amendments to PFRS 9: Mandatory Effective
Date of PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

AN IR N AN

- |PFRS 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

N

* PFRS 11

Joint Arrangements

|prRs 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

AN

*-|PFRS 13

Fair Value Measurement

" |PFRS 14

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

| PFRS 15

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Amendments to PFRS 15: Clarifications to PFRS
15 :

|PFRS 16

Leases

Philippine Accounting Standards

PAS 1

Presentation of Financial Statements




NG

oot I R T
Amendment to PAS 1: Capital Disclosures

Amendmexits to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable
Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on
Liquidation

PAS 28

Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of Items of v
Other Comprehensive Income
, ) Amendments to PAS 1: Disclosure Initiative v
" |PAS2 Inventories
|PAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows . v
Amendments to PAS 7: Disclosure Initiative
‘|PAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting v
N A Estimates and Errors
|PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period - v
"|PAS12  |Income Taxes v
: Amendment to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery v
of Underlying Assets
Amendment to PAS 12: Recognition of Deferred v
B Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses
" |PAS16  |Property, Plant and Equipment v
" | PAS 17 Leases v
- |PAS 19 Employee Benefits v
' Amendments to PAS 19: Actuarial Gains and v
i Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures
- |PAS 19 Employece Benefits v
| (Revised)
| PAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure
o of Government Assistance
| “TPAS 21 The Effects of Cha_nges in Foreign Exchange Rates v
I Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign
o Operation
- .|PAS 23 Borrowing Costs
- [(Revised)
PAS 24 Related Party Disclosures v
(Revised)
|PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit
Plans .
PAS 27 Separate Financial Statements ' v
(Amended) Amendments to PAS 27 (Amended):; Equity
method in Separate Financial Statement
Investnents in Associates and Joint Ventures




-

HLe 5 oy Lo

(Amended)

Amendment to PAS 28 (Amended); Measuring an
associate or joint venture at fair value

PAS 29

| IFRIC 12

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Eeonomies A
PAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation v
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable
Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on -
Liquidation ‘
Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights
Issues
Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial v
_ Assets and Financial Liabilities
| PAS 33 Earnings per Share v
PAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting v
| PAS 36 Impairment of Assets 4
{PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent v
. Assets
{PAS 38 Intangible Assets
- {PAS 40 Investment Property v
| Amendments to PAS 40: Transfers of Investment v
oo Property
‘| PAS 41 Agriculture
Amendments to PAS 41: Bearer Plants
Philippine Interpretations
|TFRIC1  |Changes in Existing Decommissioning,
O Restoration and Similar Liabilities
" |IFRIC2  {Members' Share in Co-operative Entities and
B . Similar Instruments ,
'|IFRIC 4 | Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a v
: Lease
 '|TFRICS  |Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning,
' Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation
‘ - Funds
|IFRIC 6 Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific
Market - Waste Electrical and Electronic
Equipment :
IFRIC7  |Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
. Economies '
IFRIC 10 |Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment v
Service Concession Arrangements




g

ek

The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum
Funding Requirements and thejr Interaction

Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC- v
14, Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
_ Requirement
|IFRIC 16 |Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation v
N IFRIC 17 |Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners v
- {IFRIC 19 |Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity v
) ‘ Instruments
~ |{IFRIC 20 |Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a 4
; Surface Mine
© IIFRIC 21 |Levies | v
IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance v
. Consideration
{TFRIC 23 |Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment
- |SIC-T Introduction of the Euro v
{SIC-10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to v
N Operating Activities
- |sIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives v
- |SIC-25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an v
‘ Entity or its Shareholders
| SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
o Involving the Legal Form of a Lease
SIC-29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures. v
.|SIC32  |Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs v




= gl ! | : { .
ki 7

IMPERIAL RESOURCES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARY
As at and for the years ended December31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 n

Pursuant to Revised Securities Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 68 Part 1 General Financial Reporting
Requirements No, 5 Other Documents To Be Filed With The Financial Statements.

A, Per Subsection C. “Regulated Entities Enumerated in Section 3 (b) (i) of Part 1 of This Rule”

' requirement of a schedule, showing financial soundness indicators in two comparitive periods as

 follows: (i) current/liquidity ratio; (ii) solvency ratios, debt-to-equity ratios; (iif) asset-to-equity

- “ratios; (iv} interest rate coverage ratios; (v) profitability ratios; (vi) other relevant ratios as the
Commission may consider necessary.

2018

' 2020 2019
* (@) Current/liquidity ratios:
: Current assets ?,939,360 - 38241 3,031,287 = 12.65:1 _ 3,543,776 _ 1561
Current liabilities 768,864 239,583 2,273,251
Ry ", (i) Debt-to-equity ratios:
N - Total Habilities 55,200,696 _ 0.07:1 48,595,377 _ 0.06:1 41,223,110 _ 0.05:1
o ' Equity 829,535,412 o 796,884,279 o 799,234,167 o
: ‘ (iii)_Solvency ratios: ,
Total liabilities 55,200,696 - 0.061 48,595,377 - 0.06:1 41,223,110 = 0051
‘ Total assets 884,736,108 845,479,656 840,457,277
| . (iv) Asset-to-equity ratios: ,
L Total a'ssets 884,736,108 - 1071 - 845,479,656 - 1.06:1 840,457,277 - 1.0'5:1
E Equity 829,535,412 796,384,279 799,234,167
- . (V)‘Interest rate coverage ratios (Eamings before interest and taxes/Interest expense):
: 1  . . This ratio is not applicable since the Parent Entity and Subsidiary has no interest expense.
\f‘f"w , (vi) Profitability ratios (Net profit after taxes/Revenues before cost of services):

" Thisratio isnot applicable since the Parent Entity and Subsidiary has no revenues.
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IMPERIAL RESOURCES, INCORPORATED
As at and for the year ended December 31, 2020

MAP OF THE CONGCLOMERATE OR GROUP OF COMPANIES
WITHIN WHICH THE REPORTING ENTITY BELONGS

IMPERIAL RESOURCES, INCORPORATED
' (IRT)

T . Phjllipine Cyber College Corporation
\\}f R L (99% owned by IRI)
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IMPERIAL RESOURCES, INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARY
As at and for the year ended December 31, 2020

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY ANNEX 68-F

This Annex prescribes the disclosure requirements including the form and- content of the schedules
required by section 6, Part II of Revised Securities Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 68. '

- ‘S"chedule A, Financial Assets

. This schedule is not applicable to the Parent Entity and Subsidiary since there is no Fair Value through

VProﬁt or Loss as at December 31, 2020.

- Schedule B. Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties and Principal
“Stockholders (Other than Related Parties)

~_This schedule is not applicable to the Parent Entity and Subsidiary since there are no amounts receivable
* from directors, officers, employees, related parties and principal stockholders (other than related parties)

from whom an aggregate indebtedness of more than One Million Pesos (P1 Million) or one per cent (1%)

_of total assets, whichever is less, is owed at December 31, 2020.

Schedule C. . Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are eliminated during the

. Consolidation of Financial Statements

" This schedule consists of:

Ending balance
Name and Balance at
Designation of Beginning Amounts  Amounts : Balance at End of
Debtor Period Additions Collected Written Off - Current Non-current Period
Philippine Cyber Colicge Corporation (Subsidiary)
* Due from Subsidiary ‘
’ P 23,561,934 P 214,000 P - P - P - P 24175934 P 24,175934

* Allowance for impairment loss

(23,378,000) (440,000) - {23,818,000) {23,818,000)

P 357,934 P 357,934

'

Lo
'

o]
1

P 533,934 P {226,000) P

e R——_

Schedule D. Long-Term Debt

This schedule is not applicable to the Parent Entity and Subsidiary since there is no long-term debt as at
December 31, 2020,
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Schedule E, Indebtedness to Related Parties

This schedule consists of advances from shareholders for continuous Support to the Parent Entity’s
operations as at December 31, 2020:

. Balance at end of
Name of related party Balance at beginning of the period| Additions (Paymenis) }+ period
" Qliverio G. Laperal, Sr, - 12,861,215 50,000 12,911,215
LTC Real Estate Corporation 31,001,625 6,521,000 37,522,625
43,862,840 6,571,000 50,433,840

. ~ Schedule F. Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers

o ‘_This' schedule is not applicable to the Parent Entity and Subsidiary since there is no guarantees of
-+ securities of other issuing entities by the jssuer for which the statement is filed as at December 31, 2020.

Schedule G, Capital Stock

" This schedule consists of:

. Number of shares held by
Number of shares
issued and Number of shares
outstanding at reserved for
shown under related | options, warrants,
Number of shares balance sheet conversion and Directors, officers
1 Title of Issne authorized caption other rights Related parties and employees Others
_Common Stock 1,800,000,000 636,563,546 - 22,952,375 3,250,000 610,361,171




IMPERIAL RESOURCES, INCORPORATED
B2-1 4th Streat, New Manlls, Quaton City

e
RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED lllNlNGi,\
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

Asof Dacamber 33, 2021

Unappropriated Ritained E'lr;ilnp,- . adjusted to
avallabla for dividend disteibution, Dacamber 31, 2017

Add: Natincome actually ssrned/renfized during 2018
Netincome during 2018 closed ta Retalned Earnings

Lets:  Non-actustfunrealizad Income net af tax
Equity in net incama of associate/[oint venturs
Unrealizad foreign sxchange gain - net luwpuhnu atcrllnmhlom
Cash and Cash Equivalents) ! guin
Falr value adjustment {M2M gains)
Falr value adjustmant of Invastment Property tasulting to guin
Amaunt of racognired DTA that ncrassed tha amount of Ineomlmuplm
Adjustment dus ta devistion from PFRS/GAAP-galn
Other unraslized gains or adjustments to tha ratainad warnings
ax a result of certain transactions accounted for undas the PFRS

Sub-total

Addi  Non-actuallosses
Depreciation an revaluation increment {after tax)
Arnount of racognized DTA that Inersesed the amount of Income tax sxpenie
Ad|ustmant due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP = otk
Loss on fair valus of Investment proparty {after tax)

Nat Income actually enrnsd during 2018

Unapproprizted Ined s d'to
avafinble for dividend dkmhuﬂnn, Decambar 3%, 2018

Add: Nat Income setunlly enrned/rasltized during 2018

Net loss during 2019 closad to Retalned Eamings

Less:  Non-actualfunresiized Incomm net of tax
Equity In net Incamae of sssociate/jalnt venture
Unreallzed fareign axchange gafn - hat {uxcapt those attributable to
Caxh and Cash Equivatents) L | ial gein
Fair value adjustmndnt [M2M galns)
Fair value adjustmant of Investment Praperty resulting to galn
Amount of tacoghiaed DTA that Increated the amount of Income tax axpense
- AdJustmant due Yo devistion from PFRE/GAAPgaln
Other Iizmd galis orad) to the ratalned
¢ result of cartain tranzactions accountad for undar the PFRS

Sub-totsk

Add:  Non-actual losees
Pepreciation on reval 1 {after tax}
Amount of racagnizad DTA thatincraased the amount of [ncome tax axpenss
Adjustmant dus to deviation from PFRS/GAAP - lass
Loss on fair value ad] tof proparty {after tax}

NatIncome actually samad during 2019

1} lated Retalned Earnings, a1 ad]i dt0
yvalluble for dividend distributl 11,2018

) ) Aﬁd: Nat [nceme sctually aprned/reatized during 1020

Net Inceme during 2028 closed to Retained Exmings

Lags:  Non-actualfunrasiized Income net of tax
Equity In net income of sssociate/jolnt verture
Unrealltad foralgn uxchange gain - net (except thoss atirlbutable to
Cash and Cash Equivaients) Unrealizad actysrial gain
Falrvalue adjustmant [M2M gatns)
Fair valua ndjustmant of Investment Property resulting to gatn
Amount of racognized DTA that incraased the amaunt of income tax expense
Adjustment du to deviation from PFRS/GAAP-galn
Other unrealizad gaing or ad) to the retalnad asrninge
a5 a rasult of certain transactions accounted for under the PFRS

Sub-tetal

Add:  Nen-actual losses
Dopeeciation on revalustion Increment {after tax)
Amaunt of racn:nlznd DTA that decreased the amount of [ncdme tax axpanse
Adjustrmant due to deviatinn from PFRS/GAAP = foss
Loz on falr value adjustment of Investment property {afar tax)

Nutincome actually samed durdng 2020

Unapprapriated Ratained Esrnings, as ndjusted to
llabla for dividend ., bar 31, 2020

s
L

bty sy . I
s

{225,928 420)

227,801,712

235,900,000

235,000,000

94,916

YT
(7098,372)

— e

(2,495,352}

5,500,000

—— .
5,500,000

103,937

103,537
(7,291,455)

{240,918,247)

32,863,524

39,500,000
38500000

{238,658

—T
(6,874,734}

{247,752,982)



ANNEXFE

CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

-

[, ANTHONY NELSON G. MENDOZA , Filipino, of legal age and a resident of
103 Acacia Avenue, Ayala Alabang, Muntinlupa City, after having been duly sworn to in

accordance with law, do hereby declare that:

1. 1am a nominee for independent director of IMPERIAL RESOURCES,
INCORPORATED and have been its independent director since April 21,

2010.

2. I am affiliated with the following companies or organizations (including
Government-Owned and Controlled Corporations):

1 COMPANY JORGANIZATION POSITION/RELATIONSHIP | PERIOD OF SERVICE
BLESS Microfinance Corp. President 1998 — present
BLESS Tahanan Corp. President 2005 - present
BLESS Entreprenuetial Agri-

Business Development Corp. President 2007 - present
BLESS Omnitrans Services Corp. President 2008 - present
BLESS Kaunlaran Corp. President 2011 - present
BLESS Nutrifoods Corp. Treasurer 2016 - present
BLESS Ing. President 2016 - present
BLESS Amare Inc, President 2016 - present
BLESS Okiniiri Resto Inc. President 2017 - present
BLESS LAS PAELLAS, INC. President

2017 - present

3. 1 possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of IMPERIAL RESOURCES, INCORPORATED , as
provided for in Section 38 of the Securities Regulation Code, its Implementing
Rules and Regulations and other SEC issuances.

4. 1am related to the following director/officer/substantial shareholder of (covered
company and its subsidiaries and affiliates) other than the relationship provided
under Rule 38.2.3 of the Securities Regulation Code).

NAME OF DIRECTOR/
OFFICER/ SUBSTANTIAL -
SHAREHOLDER

COMPANY

NATURE OF
RELATIONSHIP

NOT APPLICABLE




5. To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding / I disclose that I am the subject of the
following criminal/administrative investigation or proceeding (as the case may

be):
OFFENSE CHARGED/ TRIBUNAL OR AGENCY STATUS
' INVESTIGATED INVOLVED

NOT APPLICABLE 4

6. 1shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
independent director under the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing
Rules and Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance and other SEC issuances.

7. 1shall inform the Corporate Secretary of IMPERIAL RESOURCES,
INCORPORATED of any changes in the above-mentioned information within
five days from its occurrence. -

Done this ___day8fiy g1 2620 2021 at

ANTHONY NELSON G. MENDOZA
Affiant

JUN g 2028

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of , 2021;
affiant personally appeared and exhibited to me his Passport No. P2488122A issued at

DF A, Manila expiring on March 27, 2022.

Doc. No._u_ [
Page No._\[]
Book No. ;
Series of 2021.
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CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

I, GENELITA G. MANANDIC, Filipino, of legal age and a resident of 1 Maya-
maya Circle, Corner Maya-maya Drive, Victoria Valley Subdivision, Bgy. Dela Paz, Antipolo
City, after having been duly sworn to in accordance with law, do hereby declare that:

1. Tam a nominee for independent director of IMPERIAL RESOURCES,
INCORPORATED and have been its independent director since June 10, 2010.

2. Tam affiliated with the following companies or organizations (including
Government-Owned and Controlled Corporations):

COMPANY / ORGANIZATION POSITION/RELATIONSHIP {PERIOD OF SERVICE
Filipinas Golf & Country Club,Inc. Director 2010 - present
Fruit and Veggie Friends Club, Inc. Founder, Lecturer 2004 - present
Thocaris One Corp. Partners 1990 - 2018

Subic Bay Waterfront Dev. Corp. Group Manager 1998 - 2000
COCOLIFE Agency Manager 1892 - 1595
[COCOLIFE Life Underwriter 1991 - 1992
Ewerlasting Memorial Park Marketing Manager 1996 - 1997

3. I possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications fo serve as an
Independent Director of IMPERIAL RESOURCES, INCORPORATED, as
provided for in Section 38 of the Securities Regulation Code, its Implementing
Rules and Regulations and other SEC issuances.

4. 1am related to the following director/officer/substantial shareholder of (covered
company and its subsidiaries and affiliates) other than the relationship provided
under Rule 38.2.3 of the Securities Regulation Code).

NAME OF DIRECTOR/

OFFICER/ SUBSTANTIAL COMPANY NATURE OF

SHAREHOLDER RELATIONSHIP
NOT APPLICABLE

5. To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding / I disclose that I am the subject of the
following criminal/administrative investigation or proceeding (as the case may

be):
OFFENSE CHARGED/ TRIBUNAL OR AGENCY STATUS
INVESTIGATED INVOLVED

NOT APPLICABLE




6. Ishall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibiiitie; as
independent director under the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing
Rules and Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance and other SEC isspances,

7. I'shall inform the Corporate Secretary of IMPERIAL RESOURCES,
INCORPORATED of any changes in the above-mentioned information within
five days from its occurrence. ¥

Donethis__dayoiiuM g1 B ,2021 at

—
GE A G. MANANDIC
ant

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this fgﬁg Jrl 2% ,2021;
affiant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me proofs showing her identity and
government issued Driver’s License No. 0293038475 issued at Robinson Cainta DLRC

Field Office Code 0423 ! expiring on April 22, 2022,
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